Phoenix Journal # 219



By Gyeorgos Ceres Hatonn

Table Of Contents

CHAPTER 1	1
YEARLY VACCINE-INDUCED HOLOCAUST	1
TROOPS TO RECEIVE ANTHRAX SHOTS	1
DEPOPULATION AGENDA IN FULL BLOOM	
AN INTERVIEW WITH Leonard Horowitz, D.M.D., M.A., M.P.H.	
12/29/97 RICK MARTIN	1
FOLLOW-UP QUESTIONS 12/18/97	
IMMEDIATE RELEASE—DECEMBER 15, 1997	20
DEFENSE DEPARTMENT TO START	
IMMUNIZING TROOPS AGAINST ANTHRAX	20
FACT SHEET	
ANTHRAX VACCINATION PROGRAM	22
INFORMATION PAPER	23
ANTHRAX VACCINE	
ENTIRE MILITARY TO GET SHOTS AGAINST ANTHRAX	
U.S. BLOCKS THE IMPORT OF EUROPEAN CATTLE, SHEEP	
EPIDEMIC OF NEW STRAIN OF FLU MAY BE STARTING	25
PENTAGON ADMITS USING TEST VACCINE	
KILLER 'CHICKEN FLU' TERRIFIES HONG KONG	
KENYANS HIT BY MYSTERIOUS BLEEDING DISEASE	27
CLINTON SEES LITTLE ANTHRAX THREAT TO CIVILIANS	
By Steven Findlay	
CHAPTER 2	
THE NEWS DESK SPECIAL REPORT by Dr. Al Overholt 12/23/97	
TRUTH ABOUT MILITARY VACCINATIONS AGAINST ANTHRAX?	
CHAPTER 3	
SOLTEC: SOUNDING THE CLARION FOR WHAT IS COMING QUICKLY	
12/28/97 SOLTEC	
72-HOUR EMERGENCY KIT CHECKLIST	
CHAPTER 4	
THE NEWS DESK by Dr. Al Overholt 1/3/98	36
SUIT CHALLENGES GOVERNMENT'S	
ROLE IN MEDICARE OPTION	
UPDATE ON THIS STORY	
ON JIANG ZEMIN'S VISIT	
ANOTHER GOVERNMENT ASSAULT/INSULT	
BIG TROUBLE—COMING FAST!	
THE FOUR STAGES OF LIFE AFTER DEATH	
RUSSIAN MAC ATTACK	
BILL CLINTON'S NEW FRIENDS	
CALIFORNIA DREAMIN'	42

GEM OF THE DAY	42
"LIAR BILL" TELLS THE TRUTH Can you believe it?	43
UPDATE ON NEW RIVER	
THE GLOBAL POVERTY INITIATIVE	44
ANOTHER EARTH FOUND IN OUR SOLAR SYSTEM	44
MONKEYS ARE GIVEN HEAD TRANSPLANTS	45
NASA PLANS MEGA BALLOON	45
MAYOR SAVES TOWN MONEY BY ENDING PROPERTY TAX	46
GLOBAL WARMING PACT IS SHELVED	46
MINIMUM SELF-STEERING ABS	47
VOLUSIA SCHOOLCHILDREN DIG UP SOME FOUL STUFF	47
THAT MAN IN HEAVEN	48
LIVING PROOF	48
CHAPTER 5	50
BANKS, BANKSTERS & MONEY	
WHAT YOU DON'T KNOW CAN ENSLAVE YOU!	
PART VI IN A SERIES by Calvin Burgin 11/14/97	50
ASSASSINATION ATTEMPTS ON FORD	50
THE PLUTONIUM SAGA CONTINUES	52
POISONING OFFICIALLY DENIED	53
WILLIAM SIMON'S LETTER	55
GENERAL JOHN RYAN EXPOSES SIMON'S LIE	56
THE POISON LEAK COVERUP	56
ED DURELL'S LETTER	57
DON'T RAIN ON MY CHARADE	62
GOLDFINGER WAS REAL	63
ROGER BABSON'S WARNING	64
CHAPTER 6	65
THE BLACK NOBILITY UNMASKED WORLDWIDE by Dr. John Coleman	
10/86 DR. JOHN COLEMAN	65
CHAPTER 7	
THE NEWS DESK SPECIAL REPORT by Dr. Al Overholt 12/31/97	
CONCENTRATION CAMPS LISTING?	74
CHAPTER 8	80
WOWTHANK YOU ALLAND HAPPY NEW YEAR, TOO!	
by Dr. Edwin M. Young Editor-In-Chief	80
CHAPTER 9	
ATON: A REMINDER TO THOSE WALKING THE "TRUTH BEARER" PATH	83
1/3/98 ATON	
CHAPTER 10	
THE NEWS DESK by Dr. Al Overholt 1/10/98	
OREGONIANS LAUD STATE IN SHUNNING	
SOCIAL SECURITY IN FAVOR OF IRAs	
NAZI HUNTER NAMED HITLER COLLABORATOR	
60,000 PISTOL-PACKING FEDERAL	87

BUREAUCRATS SHOW WHY PEOPLE FEAR THE GOVERNMENT.	87
WATER IS DANGEROUS	88
STUDY: USELESS DRUGS WERE GIVEN TO BOSNIA	88
HELPING HEARING	89
WAR ON RIGHTS	90
RUNNER BILLS TO INCLUDE HIV	90
WHERE IS THE EAGLE? GONE	91
TCAP STORAGE DEVICE	91
SUBJECT: INTERNET, FCC	93
TERRORISM SEMINAR SPONSORED BY FEMA	93
JUDGE: FBI SHARPSHOOTER MUST FACE	
TRIAL IN RUBY RIDGE CASE	94
1998 YEAR OF DESTINY?	95
UNIDENTIFIED FLYING OBJECTS SPOTTED OVER COSTA RICA	95
GRASSROOTS ACTION IS IMPERATIVE	96
CHRISTIAN AMERICA?	96
ANTON LAVEY DIES	96
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF RELIGION	96
DESERT STORM TROOPS TO HAND BACK MEDALS	97
A POEM	97
BE A MAN, MY SON!	98
A POEM	98
DON'T QUIT	98
CHAPTER 11	
THE NEWS DESK SPECIAL REPORT by Dr. Al Overholt 1/10/98	
WORLD DOMINATION	
AMERICA FLAUNTS POWER ON "EVE OF DESTRUCTION"	
STATE TERRORISM ON A COLOSSAL SCALE	
WORLD GOVERNMENT BY ANY MEANS NECESSARY!	101
THE GLOBAL CONQUESTS OF	
A DESPOTIC "NEW WORLD ORDER"	
THE WORLD HATES U.S.	
AS THE SAYING GOES, THERE IS "HELL TO PAY"	104
FOOTNOTES:	105
UN/USFS (UNITED STATES	
FOREST SERVICE) TAKEOVER! by Dr. Al Overholt 1/10/98	
CHAPTER 12	
THE NEWS DESK	
ANOTHER SPECIAL REPORT	107
COMMANDER KORTON SPEAKS	
ABOUT CURRENT WORLD SCENE	
11/21/97 KORTON	
U.N. CONTROL OF U.S. AIR FORCE	
STARS IN THE AFTERNOON?	
11/27/97 KORTON	109

BEINGS FROM "SPACE": FRIEND OR FOE?	110
CHARIOTS OF FIRE AND SILVER CLOUDS	111
HOAX OF THE TWENTY-FIRST CENTURY	111
12/29/97 KORTON	112
SHOTS ACROSS THE BOW	112
APOCALYPSE BUGS: E.T.s WILL BE BLAMED	113
EVEN THE VERY ELECT SHALL BE DECEIVED	114
12/30/97 KORTON	115
DISC-SHAPED "UFOs": WHY ALL THE HYPE?	
1/5/98 KORTON	118
THE BATTLE LINES ARE BEING DRAWN	118
FIRSTHAND INFORMATION	118
STAR TREK IS BASED ON ACTUAL COMMUNIQUES BETWEEN	
NORAD AND SPACE COMMAND	119
BACK TO MORE EARTHLY TOPICS	120

CHAPTER 1

<u>YEARLY VACCINE-INDUCED HOLOCAUST</u> TROOPS TO RECEIVE ANTHRAX SHOTS DEPOPULATION AGENDA IN FULL BLOOM <u>AN INTERVIEW WITH</u> Leonard Horowitz, D.M.D., M.A., M.P.H.

12/29/97 RICK MARTIN

On CNN, 12/15/97, they announced that our soldiers will be vaccinated with six immunization shots over an 18-month period against anthrax, followed by an annual booster. The program will cost \$130 million dollars and over 100,000 troops will be initially affected, or should I say infected? Ultimately, over the next six years, 2.4 million troops, including reservists, will be receiving these injections. After a 3-year study, Secretary of Defense William S. Cohen stated, "This is a force protection issue. To be effective, medical force protection must be comprehensive, well documented and consistent. I have instructed the military to put such a program in place."

The vaccine itself is produced by the Michigan Biologic Products Institute, of Michigan's Department of Health. Apparently they've had a virtual monopoly on the vaccine since the early 1970s.

Read carefully what Dr. Horowitz has to say about immunizations generally, and if that announcement about our soldiers doesn't curdle your blood, check your pulse! And for those of you wishing to refresh your memories with Leonard Horowitz's previous interview, refer to *CONTACT* Vol. 15, No. 12 (Jan. 28, 1997) & No. 13 (Feb. 4, 1997). Dr. Horowitz is author of the book *Emerging Viruses: AIDS & Ebola—Nature, Accident or Intentional?* With the advent of this breaking news concerning troop immunizations, I had a second conversation with Dr. Horowitz on December 18. I believe you'll find his comments insightful and alarming, to say the least.

For those of you interested, Dr. Horowitz may be reached by writing in care of: Tetrahedron Publishing Group, P. O. Box 402, Rockport, MA 01966; (508) 546-6586 or Fax (508) 546-9226. His *web* address is: http://www.tetrahedron.org.

It has been a very interesting few weeks if you've been watching the news. For example, on the front page of the December 17, 1997 *USA Today* we read the following headline: "Clinton sees little anthrax threat to civilians" by Steven Findlay. The first sentence of the article reads, "President Clinton says he doesn't plan to be vaccinated against the deadly bacteria anthrax and 'couldn't recommend' that civilian Americans be vaccinated." Wow. For the official Department of Defense "party-line" on this anthrax vaccine issue, see their own Press Release on the subject elsewhere [*see p.46*] in this issue of *CONTACT*.

As if that were not revealing enough, in the Tuesday, December 23, 1997, edition of *The Bakersfield Californian* we read, on the front page, the following headline: "Pentagon admits using test vaccine—The shots for Gulf War troops are now eyed as a source of illness." Interesting timing. For our long-time

readers, I would refer you back to the series *CONTACT* ran on the Gulf War Syndrome beginning with Vol. 10, No. 4 (Aug. 22, 1995), No. 5, No. 6, & No. 7.

And now, without any further introduction, let's listen to what Dr. Horowitz had to say in this interview conducted on 12/8/97, about immunizations, designer viruses and other relevant and urgent information.

Rick: I'd like to frame this interview a little differently than our last one. By now our readers are very well versed as to who are the perpetrators. You've been out there "in the field" now for over a year, touring, lecturing, speaking with citizens and professionals of all kinds. What have you experienced? What have you observed? What are people most concerned about? What are you being told by those who come to hear you speak? Take as much time and space with your response as you need. In short, "What's happening out there?"

Dr. Horowitz: Most people are extraordinarily concerned about the threat of biological weapons, of terrorist attacks, particularly in urban areas, that have been predicted by political officials, as well as mainstream media. And their greatest concerns are not necessarily that these actions will be taken by terrorist groups or elements within the patriotic or militia movements, but given my audiences and the recognition of the rationale behind the concern that our own CIA may be behind such terrorist attacks, they're concerned as to what to do about that. The rationale and concern that the CIA may be behind these types of attacks is based on the fact that they have far more motive and far more means to accomplish those devious ends.

So, they're concerned about what to do about bio-weapons attacks. They want to know if there is some way that they can protect themselves and their loved ones. They want to know what antibiotics, if any, might be taken. They want to know where safer places might be that they might move to. They want to know what protective equipment, if any, exists against these things. They want to know how to boost their immune systems in light of the likelihood of infectious diseases affecting them. They want to know—I know I'm missing something here, Rick.

Rick: Obviously you're hit with a hundred questions every time you speak.

Dr. Horowitz: There's one more thing that I thought was important.

Rick: There's a lot of attention in the major media now concerning a wide variety of meat contaminants, with turkey, chicken, pork, and of course, beef. What information do you have concerning the meat industry...

Dr. Horowitz: That's the one that I was trying to think of.

Rick: ...and do you have any health tips for our readers?

Dr. Horowitz: Yes, people are indeed concerned about the foods. Yes, my recommendation has been to try to obtain organically grown fruits, vegetables, meats and, basically, that concern is based upon the clear fact that these types of micro-organisms such as *E-Coli 157*, were undoubtedly laboratory engineered. In fact, there are Congressional records that clearly show that *E-Coli* was one of the major CIA/MK-

NAOMI bio-weapons under investigation.

And, in fact, I predicted the Hudson beef-plant takeover by Tyson. I informed approximately 750 people in two seminars the week before the takeover happened that it was likely. My premonition was based upon the fact that, when you read the writing on the wall and you read between the lines and you understand, for example, that CIA Director Woolsey had come out in Congress and he had stated that in the post cold-war era, the chief function of the CIA was to provide industrial espionage support for the institutions and organizations that requested it and that given that knowledge, and given the knowledge that *E-Coli 157* was most plausibly MK-NAOMI-engineered, it occurred to me that the recall of Hudson's 125 million pounds of beef was setting Hudson up for a major kill. (They never knew for sure how that happened, how the beef got contaminated.) And so, I predicted to at least 750 people, that the company would be taken over by a large, multi-national conglomerate and, lo and behold, a week later it came out in the newspapers that Tyson took over Hudson because they saw the 30-percent drop in Hudson's stock as a perfect opportunity to buy the corporation.

So, there are indeed questions and concerns about food. I can give you other examples. This is an example that relates to the issue of vaccines where you see, several months ago, there was an outbreak of hepatitis-A that was associated with the United States government's production of over 8,000 school desserts made from contaminated, or allegedly contaminated, blueberries and strawberries that were said to have come from Mexico. And the dessert was given to, as I said, well over 8,000 children in I think it was 9 states. And what did we read in the media in response? It was that parents were to blame, not the United States government. The Mexicans they just basically slapped on the wrist, saying, "Oh, you know those Mexicans, they don't clean their food well enough—or they don't inspect them well enough." But who do they blame? They blame American parents for not getting their children vaccinated. And so, I looked at this as an outrageous insult to intelligence because, in any other industry where you have a breach of safety standards, what you have ensuing from something like that is a Congressional investigation and you get pressure on the corporation and the safety standards improve and there is no let-up until the situation is rectified. But, in this situation, the government wasn't even blamed and the parents were used as the fall-guys in what was, obviously, an agenda to promote vaccines.

Rick: Along these same lines, we are obviously in the time of year when the flu-bug strikes many cities, and consequently the push is then on to "get your flu-shots". Would you comment to our concerned readers about vaccinations generally, and specifically what parents can do to avoid having their children vaccinated without breaking the law?

Dr. Horowitz: Well, you bring up a very, very difficult issue for me in a number of ways. You bring up a difficult issue for me from a personal perspective, as well as a professional perspective. From the personal perspective, my mother died from an illness called Guillain Barré, an immune-suppression-related disorder, and then cancer. The former is commonly linked to the flu-vaccine. And my mother was religious about getting her flu-vaccines. In the mid-1970s, of course, we had the Swine Flu fiasco wherein you had thousands upon thousands of people who developed immune-system-related disorders and this illness called Guillain Barré. When you study this illness, it serves as a great example of how all of the vaccines have the potential to cause immune-system-related disorders and that the pathogenesis of these disorders—that is the way that the disease comes about—is consistent with virtually all of the vaccines. And my mother's case and the Swine Flu vaccine incident are good examples.

What happens is, when you get injected with a vaccine, the vaccine contains foreign viral particles or bacterial particles or proteins that are from other animals, and they're foreign to the human being. And when they get into your bloodstream, these foreign proteins and particles attach to your own cell proteins and depending on where they attach, there is an immune response against that particular area. In other words, when a foreign protein is injected into your body, it attaches to your own host-cell protein and that forms what is called an antigenic complex. And that antigenic complex, therefore, is made up of a foreign piece of germ, as well as your own host-cell protein, where your body now recognizes the entire complex as foreign. So part of the antibodies that attack these antigenic complexes are antibodies that attack your own host-cell proteins. And when these antibodies attach to these foreign viral particles, that again forms another antigenic complex. So now you've got more antibodies made to attack even some of your own antibodies. And also, you have cells—your own natural lymphocytes, white blood cell body-guards—being attacked by some of your own antibodies because these white blood cell body-guards have also attached themselves to parts of the foreign viral particles or bacterial proteins. And so, in essence, what you have is an auto-immune response that gets created.

Now, in my mother's case what happened is that after getting the flu-vaccine she began to develop Guillain Barré. Her own white blood cell body-guards began to eat away at the myelin sheath surrounding her nerve fibers where the foreign vaccine proteins had attached themselves, and so her own white blood cell body-guards began to attack her own nerve sheath and she became progressively weaker and paralyzed and she suffered with that for about 3 years. And then, when we thought she was going to get over that, she developed another immune-system-related disorder called cancer, and then a few radiation treatments and a couple months later my mother was dead. So, that's the personal bias that I have regarding the discussion on flu-vaccines and vaccines in general.

Now, the professional issue for me is that I used to, as a public health professional, routinely recommend vaccines to people because I had not been educated to the risks, and I had followed, virtually, the propaganda that the Rockefeller-led military-medical-industrial complex had developed. And why I say Rockefeller is because of a very interesting book called *The Science of Coercion* by Christopher Simpson, Oxford University Press, 1994—where Simpson lays out the fact that after studying psychological warfare methods used in science from 1945 to virtually the present, he says at the root of the scientific agenda stand the Rockefellers. And if you as a health professional, a scientist, public health official, if you do not subscribe to the Rockefeller agenda, then you were typically demoted, defunded, and ostracized. And that is how control has been maintained over the health-science industry. So, ultimately, when you look at the fact that I was disinformed when I recommended vaccines, now my position is totally different. Now, after coming to terms with the information, the horrifying facts about how contaminated vaccines are and how poorly they are regulated, I can no longer, in good conscience, recommend people get vaccinated with ANYTHING until there is a thorough, independent, scientific investigation and, also, ideally, a Congressional investigation into all the documented facts. And if and when a Congressional investigation ensues in this area, clearly a Rockefeller should not be sitting as chairman of the hearings committee.

The issue of all vaccines now—all one has to do to basically feel uncomfortable about that issue, is consider—well, two things come to mind. Consider, number one, the Centers for Disease Control's own published statistics about vaccine injuries. They tell us that, let's say, between 1990 and 1995, and there's a more recent report that's even worse, but between 1990 and 1995 their data shows that there were 45,000, more than 45,000, vaccine-induced injuries in the United States. And that, they said, represented less than 1 percent of the actual injuries due to gross under-reporting. And so, now, you have to take 45,000 plus victims and multiply that times 100 to get the actual (by at least 100)—to get the actual injuries. And when you do that, now you're looking at 4.5 million Americans who were vaccine-injured over a 5-year period. That represents approximately 800,000 people who are getting vaccine-injured every year in the United States; and when you consider that, and then reflect on the fact that we have an on-going holocaust of vaccine-induced injuries, every year, in the United States that you don't hear a word about in the mainstream media—I think you need to begin to ask some very critical questions, such as, why isn't mainstream media covering this? Who's involved in suppressing that information? And what political agendas are served by, literally, inducing damage in 800,000 Americans a year?

Now, of course, authorities will balance that by saying, "Well, vaccines eliminate millions and millions of people suffering from increased mortality and morbidity." Well, that's not really been shown. In fact, a couple months back I met with three CDC vaccine officials, and a consultant for the pharmaceutical industry in the area of vaccines, and when they suggested that they had what's called "definitive risk-benefit and cost-benefit analysis" that proved positive in so far as vaccines are concerned, I stopped them and I said, "Excuse me! I've looked for that information and nobody can seem to find that information to give it to me, so when you say you have this, I don't believe you. Show it to me."

The fellow who represented the pharmaceutical industry, hemmed and he hawed, and he said, "Well, we have definitive cost-benefit analysis." Meaning, he really didn't have definitive risk-benefit analysis, which means he really didn't have the data that showed that the vaccine industry wasn't killing and maiming more people than they were helping and saving.

So, I said, "You have definitive cost-benefit analysis? Well, show me that because I don't believe you've even considered all the costs." Because when they tell you that they have definitive cost-benefit analysis, in other words, they say that it only costs 30 cents or something to produce this vaccine and administer this vaccine and it saves maybe a dollar-fifty or two dollars in public health expenditures, well, guess what? That cost, most likely, doesn't include the cost to society from let's say 800,000 people being injured from vaccines and out of work, or dead, whereby they lose a lifetime of productivity. What is the cost to society for that? And have these vaccine companies REALLY considered all the costs? And when you look at the scientific evidence, they haven't. And the bottom line then is whether we are following science in the vaccine industry or are we following a political agenda? And the facts are very clear. The facts speak to the latter. So, the question becomes, what are the political agendas? Well, you can say-lots of people, in fact I think the word out there is mostly that, oh, people can appreciate that the government or their shadow governors in the industrial complexes might be doing this to make a lot of money. I don't think it's just that. Clearly these people are making vast fortunes off of humanity's suffering. And, again, when I say these people, ultimately you come to realize that the Rockefellers monopolized American health care by the 1920s. And they did that, not only in the 1920s by establishing the cancer industry, but also by funding Flexner, whose investigation led to the Congressional legislation that outlawed virtually every natural healing modality available and basically said that everything was quackery, except pharmaceutical-based, drug-based medicine. And that's why we now, today, call acupuncture and homeopathy and herbology "alternative medicine". In fact, THAT IS TRADITIONAL MEDICINE, and pharmaceuticals are basically the monopoly that the Rockefellers were able to institute; and so, when you look at the agenda that the Rockefellers might have, I think it goes beyond money because, can you imagine having as much money as the Rockefellers have? And when you have that much money, it's not a matter of not having enough money, it's a matter of what you are—kind of like, driven—what you are moved, from a philosophical or ideological and/or even a spiritual perspective, to do with your money. And, for example, I begin the book *Emerging Viruses: AIDS & EBOLA* with the famous quote by Solzhenitsyn that says that "to do evil, a person must first believe that what they are doing is good. It is ideology that gives devil-doing its long sought justification."

So, the Rockefellers, what do they believe? Well, they're certainly funding population control, population reduction programs, now aren't they? When you realize that a second major funder of population control is the Merck Fund, which is Merck, Sharp, & Dohme, the leading vaccine developer in the world, and when you recognize that there was a partnership between I.G. Farben, Germany's leading industrial organization and the Third Reich, and John D. Rockefeller's Standard Oil, that had been engineered by the Dulles brothers-the partnership had-and that, at the same time that the war was going on, the President of Merck, Sharp, & Dohme, George W. Merck, had been President Roosevelt's and Secretary of War Stimpson's hand selection as director of America's biological weapons industry; and, unfortunately, the company was a very strong player in German economics and pharmaceuticals at the time that the Rockefellers were launching their bid to create a monopoly over the world's pharmaceutical industry, and that I.G. Farben had the same, exact agenda. And, that this was done for the, quote, New Ordnung, to accomplish the "New Order", that is, the New World Order; and, in fact, Hitler, before he lost World War II, had instructed Martin Borman, who was in charge of the Nazi war-chest, to "bury your treasure" for, he said, we will need this not only for Germany's economic recovery but for "the rise of the Fourth Reich". And they discussed the fact that their partners desired to create a virtual monopoly over the world's pharmaceutical and chemical industries. (Their partners were, again, I.G. Farben and the Rockefellers, Standard Oil.) And that, given this, Hitler instructed Borman to bury his treasure into 750 corporations to create that virtual monopoly and, among the major recipients of this Nazi war-chest was Merck & Company. And, what's interesting about that is the fact that at that same exact time the company's president was advising President Roosevelt as America's biological weapons industry director.

Now, in the new audio-tape that we produce called "The Nazi-American Bio-Medical/Bio-Warfare Connection", we trace the family connections, the connection between the Rockefeller family, the Bush family, the Royal Crown, the Royal Family, the Nazis and Henry Kissinger's role, and how this virtual monopoly, as well as the very Satanic agenda of reducing world populations insidiously through the use of chemicals, as well as biologicals—how this has evolved. What's most striking on this new audio-tape is about a 15minute audio-taped segment of Merck & Company's chief vaccine developer, his name is Dr. Maurice Hilleman, wherein you will hear with your own ears not Dr. Len Horowitz telling you how hideously contaminated with cancer viruses Merck's vaccines were, but you will hear Dr. Hilleman explain this. And he will also tell you, "We brought the AIDS virus into North America in contaminated African Greens (*monkeys*), and we didn't know it at the time." This is what HE said, and this is what I had virtually concluded in the book *Emerging Viruses: AIDS & EBOLA*, in Chapter 13, that Hilleman had brought in contaminated Chimpanzees and Rhesus monkeys for the 1974 experimental hepatitis-B vaccine that was given to gay men in New York City and Blacks in Central Africa, and that this was the vaccine that most plausibly delivered AIDS to the world. Now, on the tape we've just published, Dr. Hilleman is saying the same thing, virtually.

So, you know you have to look at the connections between the Rockefeller family, the vaccine industry, the Merck, Sharp, & Dohms of the world and the fact that they don't just do what they do for money. They

have ideological, philosophical, political agendas that they are heavily funding, and one of those agendas is population reduction. You, I'm sure, have published the fact that in the March/April issue of the Council on Foreign Relations magazine, *Foreign Affairs*, there was a full-page plea to council members, who represent among the worlds leading military, medical-industrialists, the urgent need to reduce the United States' population now by 50 percent, down to 1940s levels by the year 2015. This is clearly being accomplished in these insidious ways of contaminated foods and contaminated vaccines and contaminated blood and exposures to biological weapons in urban and rural areas even. This is being accomplished. In fact, in one of the latest cancer rates we're told that one out of every two Americans are going to be getting cancer in their lifetimes. Well, that's exactly 50 percent. So, you have to understand, one out of every two people reading this article are going to succumb to the effects of what these people are putting out. So, that's basically what the picture is. People are very, very concerned about that picture, or they're not concerned at all because they think of this as foolish, conspiratorial nonsense, and they don't have eyes to see the documentation or ears to hear the truth and they walk, very blindly, into a very dark night.

Rick: Now, obviously a lot of the adults out there are free-will adults and they can choose whether they get their flu-shot or whether they get their immunizations but there are many children out there being affected right now by vaccines that are compulsory. And I know there are many parents out there who are concerned about their children receiving vaccines without their permission. Can you counsel our readers about that and also talk about your own experience.

Dr. Horowitz: Yes, indeed. It is false and misleading to state that these vaccines are "mandatory". The mainstream news media has been very, very effective in promoting that, as well as the fear campaign that says your children must be vaccinated or they will not be allowed into school or you will not be given a job in this facility unless you get vaccinated. That is propaganda and the bottom line is that they don't want you to know that exemptions for spiritual/religious reasons exist, and can be used to exempt you from being vaccinated because the schools, for instance, are under financial agreement with the Federal Government to administer these vaccines to at least 90 percent of the student population; or else the funding is stopped. So, the school nurses and the school administrators don't want you to know that in their desk drawers are exemption forms that, if you demand them, they will give you. And that, again, you simply say, "For spiritual and religious reasons, we refuse to have our children vaccinated." And that's all you say. You don't give any other argument because virtually nothing else works. If they give you grief about that, you can call them on the bluff because most Americans are still under the impression that we have a separation of Church and State, when in fact, we never really had—we really don't have that—but we are under the impression that we do. You can say then to most Americans, "Excuse me, are we not living in the United States? Don't we have separation of Church and State here?"

And then they'll say to you, "Well, yes, I suppose we do."

And then you can say to them, "Well, in my religion, in my spiritual beliefs, it is inappropriate to allow anything to be injected into our blood." And you can also tell them, "Isn't it interesting that we have separation of Church and State because our forefathers decided that it's inappropriate to allow a government institution to inject into our minds the beliefs regarding political and spiritual persuasion that we should hold. Now, to the same extent, shouldn't we have separation of medicine and State? Isn't it equally just to discourage the United States Government, or any government, from deciding what should be injected into our bodies?" So, you can say that, and basically lots of nurses and administrators will hem and haw and then they'll reach for their desk drawer and pull out the exemption forms.

The other thing that you can do in a work situation, particularly in a hospital situation or even emergency room techs or police officers and fire department people are very concerned as well because they're now told they must get hepatitis-B vaccines. Which, by the way, continue to contain carcinogenic, that is "cancer-causing" enzymes, besides other risky components, and that what you can then say to the administrators of this organization is, "Ok, I'll do it under one condition."

And then they'll say, "What's your condition?"

Then you say, "Well, I'll do it if you supply me with a bonded, notarized affidavit that swears that you will assume all medical, legal and financial risks in the event that I am injured (or my child is injured)." And then you will see rats scurrying away with their tails between their legs. They would never want to do that. And so, you'll get your exemption there as well.

Now, again, if any—and there are very few times when you are blessed to get involved with litigation on this matter—again, it's a violation of your civil rights to get fired or not be allowed to work in a certain job and you take this to court, then I urge you to contact us at 1-800-336-9266 and what we'll do is guide you to lawyers and experts who will, basically, take the opportunity on to admit evidence in your defense—books like *Emerging Viruses: AIDS & EBOLA*, wherein we show you the government contracts under which numerous AIDS-like and EBOLA-like viruses were developed, show you that the vaccine industry cannot be trusted, show you that vaccines most plausibly delivered AIDS to the world, and have expert testimony and scientific testimony to support this. And you think these people want to allow that? They'd never want to have this come out.

So, those are the ways that we have decided that it is best to deal with the problem.

Rick: What is happening with your own law case?

Dr. Horowitz: Which one?

Rick: Regarding your child being immunized in the hospital.

Dr. Horowitz: The story of what happened to my child in the hospital...

Rick: In fact, that's a good story to tell our readers.

Dr. Horowitz: Ok, well, what happened—this is a horrible story—what happened was that last November I was in New York City to give a presentation at the American Public Health Association meeting, and then two days after the presentation I was suppose to be educating public health professionals as to what my findings in the emerging viruses investigation were. So, this was Monday; we had finished the presentation. Tuesday morning I wake up at 7:30 in the morning to screams. My wife, of course, was with me. The two kids were with us in the room. Grandma was visiting from Canada in the room, and at 7:30 in the morning what happened was, my baby Aria, 2 years old, climbed behind my 5-year-old Alena, who

accidentally nudged her off the bed. She fell and broke her arm. We took her to the hospital, St. Luke's Roosevelt Hospital in Manhattan where, after keeping us waiting for about 5-and-a-half hours, the orthopedic resident mis-set the baby's arm. He took an X-ray and then said, "Dr. Horowitz, unfortunately the bone is 45 degrees off of where it should be. It is going to necessitate an immediate surgical procedure with a placement of two pins, one of which will become dangerously close to the ulnar nerve, perhaps leaving the child paralyzed for life."

Anybody, with any bit of intelligence, and you don't have to have a Harvard M.P.H. like I have and be a consumer health advocate, like I am, to say, "Time out! It's time for a second opinion." So I told him that and I said I wanted to discuss it with my wife. I go 10 feet away and I start to talk to Jackie about it and I said, "Jackie, I think we're about 5-hours drive from Boston," which is where we live. Of course, she knows that we have a fabulous referral network there, and Boston Children's Hospital.

I said, "I can either drive you back now, or fly you back with the baby this afternoon." Wherein the resident piped-up, "Excuse me, you're not going anywhere with this child."

And, you see, the issue became, "Why aren't your children vaccinated?" Because when the nurse took the medical history, my wife, when asked, "Why aren't the children vaccinated," threw out her hips and basically said, "Well, have you seen the new issue of *Money* magazine, December '96, that talks about the multi-billion dollar vaccine industry and that tens of thousands of children are developing brain damage from DPT vaccines and polio vaccines are carrying cancer viruses to our children? That's why my children aren't vaccinated," she said.

Well, don't you know that the nurse wrote down that my wife was a little kookie, and perhaps believed in "holistic medicine". My wife didn't even say that. And, ultimately, the physician now turns to this and says, "Your children aren't vaccinated." And his concern then became one of not only potential negligence, parental negligence, but one of potential parental abuse given the baby's got a broken arm. It didn't occur to him that my children were well dressed, constantly smiling—both Alena and Aria smile all the time—clean. Grandma was there. You can never imagine a more loving grandma in all your life.

Don't you know that we lost custody of our baby for four days. They threatened me with arrest. They threatened my wife with arrest. And we did not know our rights, at the time. And we did not know that what we should have done, basically, was threaten him with a personal liability suit, or anybody that came at us, including a security officer with a gun. We did not know that what we should have done, at that point, is grab a video camera and tell them, point blank, "You touch me and I will not just hold your organization liable, I will hold you, personally liable for my breach of civil rights."

In essence, what they did was they kidnapped our baby because we were ignorant to our rights. And they basically kept her for four days, and don't you know, under those incredibly intimidating events, we were my wife came to me with tears in her eyes and she said, "Len, we'll never ever see our baby again unless we consent to this and sign this consent form for the surgery." Well, I couldn't do it. I could not bring myself to do it. My wife did sign it and ultimately, thank God, another doctor who was not a lunatic like this idiot, he basically came in and he did a procedure. It was a closed reduction. Nothing that that idiot told us needed to be done actually needed to be done, and ultimately the baby is fine. I sought legal counsel and I called around. I got the names of people who have been involved in this for quite a while. I got hold of people who had been involved in litigation in this field and, ultimately, I got connected to a law firm in Salem, Mass., and after extensive evaluation, I was very surprised that they declined to get involved in a lawsuit. Ultimately, I was instructed as to how to not have to pay them anything, because again, it was a complete breach of our rights. It wasn't an informed consent. It was malpractice. In fact, ultimately they ended up over-charging and over-billing, which was, again, a common type of thing that these people who lack ethics and morals, do. And so we had them also on fraud, and negligence, and malpractice, and breach of civil rights, kidnapping. So, basically, I ended up sending them this, but it, ultimately, has gone nowhere. The only good thing that has come out of it is that, thank God, the baby's arm is fine and I haven't paid these idiots a dime.

Rick: But there's been no resolution in the case.

Dr. Horowitz: No, no. So, again, if you're in a position like I'm in, at this point, I dropped that months ago because there are so many other more pressing litigation issues at hand right now.

Rick: Let's talk about that.

Dr. Horowitz: One is what I had spent a good deal of time on, a couple months back, wherein I had first been invited to the Centers for Disease Control, along with the Minister of Health for the Nation of Islam, Dr. Alim Muhammad. Following Dr. Muhammad's recommendation for a moratorium against U.S. Government-promulgated vaccines, the Director of the CDC, Dr. David Satcher, who now, you are probably aware, is the next Surgeon General of the United States, appointed by President Clinton and that he was actually an acquaintance of Dr. Muhammad. They went to school together at Howard University. And as a result of the recommendation for a moratorium that Minister Muhammad made, not only to the Nation of Islam Directors, but also the National Medical Association Legislative Committee which represents all the Black physicians in the United States, Dr. Satcher called a meeting of the CDC officials and invited us down and we met. I met with the officials in Washington, but then he invited us also to Atlanta to discuss the issues. And so, I wrote him a letter saying, "I'm happy to come. Thanks for the invitation, but I will come under only one condition because I don't want to waste your time or mine. And that condition is that you seriously consider the role that the Centers for Disease Control played, along with Merck, Sharp, & Dohme in developing the vaccine that most plausibly delivered AIDS to the world." Because, you see, the FDA (the Food and Drug Administration), the CDC, the National Institute for Allergies and Infectious Diseases, and Merck & Company combined their efforts in developing the four lots of experimental hepatitis-B vaccine that was given to gay men in New York City and Blacks in Central Africa in 1974, and that's what most plausibly initiated the AIDS epidemic because the vaccines, those lots, were prepared partly in heavily contaminated Chimpanzees supplied to the vaccine producers by the sixth top biological weapons contracting firm called Litton Bionetics. And, they were, as I said [among] the six top Army biological weapons contractors for the late '60s and early 1970s and they, routinely, shipped heavily contaminated Chimpanzees. In fact, I tracked virtually ALL of the world's EBOLA virus outbreaks, that is, EBOLA-like outbreaks, including Marburg and Reston virus, as well as several AIDS-like virus outbreaks that occurred in California, Davis labs and in Philadelphia, to Litton Bionetics-supplied monkeys or their laboratory or holding facility cohabitants. At any rate, to make a long story short, Dr. Satcher, then, given this scientific evidence that I GAVE HIM, wrote me a very nasty letter, basically saying that I'm "disinvited" down to the CDC and that what the CDC does-they establish policy based upon sound

scientific support and evidence. And, of course, that's absolutely bogus because, if that were the case, then the CDC would not have allowed, along with the vaccine manufacturers and the blood industry, to have these vaccines that are causing so many injuries. Moreover, they would have stopped the distribution of the blood and the blood serum and Factor 8, which brought not only AIDS to tens of thousands of people around the world, it brought hepatitis-C and cancer as well. Of course, we have a committee of 10,000 here in the United States who developed AIDS because of the contaminated blood. And, of course, the Rockefellers are, again, intimately connected with the blood industry. It was, for example, Laurance Rockefeller that put together the council of doctors known as the New York City Blood Council, and they gave rise to the New York City Blood Bank that became the International Blood Banksters, if you will. And ultimately I told Satcher this. Meanwhile, I've got scientists on my side who are saying it's extraordinarily credible and it's most plausible.

And so, they're not looking at the, literally, story of the millennium. They're not looking at the very likely ongoing genocide and the science that, basically, lays out what's going on.

And so, when you think of the fact that Dr. Satcher is Director of the CDC, and is now Surgeon General of the United States, that this man is responsible for the public's health, and as a scientist and a public health professional he's being negligent in not considering the scientific evidence. His statements are, literally, fraudulent when he says that there is no scientific evidence to support what I am laying out. I mean, for God's sake, I've reprinted the United States Government contracts under which numerous AIDS-like and EBOLA-like viruses were developed. One of those documents shows that among the recombinants, the viral recombinants, was a combination of leukemia, plus influenza viruses. I mean, how would you like to have an aerosolized leukemia virus, one that could spread leukemia by sneezing? I mean, these people were absolutely insane in what they did. Just look at the scientific documents that I reprint in the book. Anyway, the man is obviously a fraud. So, I've been seeking legal counsel to bring a fraud and negligence suit against Dr. Satcher. Unfortunately, I'm told, and I've just been recently told, that you can't do that against a public official. I mean, this is OUTRAGEOUS. That's one lawsuit.

The other lawsuit that has the greatest possibility right now is with the parents of the Willowbrook State School mentally retarded children who were involved as experimental subjects in the early hepatitis-B vaccine trials that were ongoing on Staten Island, in New York. Head of this project was Dr. Sol Krugman from the New York University Medical Center, who [was serving] under United States Army contractsand this organization, by the way, was also a major biological weapons contractor for the Department of Defense. They had administered heavily contaminated vaccines, as well as what they felt were cancercausing viruses-that is, the hepatitis-B virus-to these children. Hundreds of the children clearly died from this manipulation, and by 1970 the project then went to Merck, Sharp, & Dohme [in care of] Maurice Hilleman, and they continued to use the children even as late as 1974, when the vaccine that most plausibly delivered AIDS to the world was produced by these people. And so, it is VERY likely that in 1976, two years later, when they closed the school, they closed it because the children were probably among the world's first AIDS victims. And they closed the entire school, everything, except for one building which, even to this day, continues to conduct molecular biology and microbiology lab experiments. This particular case is very interesting because, you see, it was the story that made Geraldo Rivera famous. Many people remember that Geraldo Rivera, in 1976, came out with the story that these children at Willowbrook were being physically, emotionally, and perhaps, sexually abused. And it created such a furor that they ended up closing the school and sending approximately 5,000 students back into the community. And, meanwhile, it is my opinion, based on the evidence, that some administrator fed Geraldo Rivera a press-release and that the real story was that these children started to die and they needed some excuse to close the school. So, isn't it interesting? Rather than prosecute the abusers, including perhaps the director of the school, they let them go and they just closed the entire school and sent all the children back into the community.

Again, I think this is what we're looking for and I think what will happen, and hopefully we will be getting attorneys who will take this on as a crusade because that's really what is required. We're looking for attorneys that are not so much looking at this as a financial windfall, but as a crusade for humanity. Hopefully we've found a couple and we're working with these folks right now and progress is very, very slow because we're underfunded. So, if anybody reading this can help, we'd greatly appreciate it. The bottom line is, we'd hope in the next several months to be placing advertisements into New York newspapers for parents whose children were mistreated at Willowbrook to come forward and give us some information as to what these children ended up dying from. And I believe very, very strongly that we will find that they were dying from immune-system-related disorders associated with the hepatitis-B trials.

Rick: Is there anything new that has happened with the CDC or Litton Bionetics that our readers should be aware of?

Dr. Horowitz: Litton Bionetics is now defunct. They sold out to Medpath, one of the largest laboratories in the United States. But in terms of the CDC, what's new is that they have clearly sped up their vaccine campaign. I mean, you've been reading it. You go into any city in the United States and we're just being inundated with advertisements to get your children vaccinated, and get your infants vaccinated. What's horrifying, I mean, it's incredible that the Clinton administration passed legislation that allegedly, allegedly now, "mandated" the hepatitis-B vaccine be given to 12-hour-old infants. Now, that is ABSOLUTELY INSANE. IT IS OUTRAGEOUS. It has virtually no valid scientific support. There are so many reasons why it is insane. It could only come about from a political agenda vs. a scientific, public health agenda. And first, just briefly, these infants don't even have mature immune systems. Number two, the vaccine itself is meant primarily for a sexually transmitted disease. Hepatitis-B infection is a blood-borne pathogen, sexually transmitted disease, and/or I.V. drug-user disease. And that is, far and away, hepatitis-B transmission. In fact, that accounts for approximately 96 percent of all the hepatitis-B infection cases. And so, why would you give infants, 12-hour-old infants, whose immune systems are not even mature, a vaccine? And, in fact, when you study the issue you realize that when children, or when adults, get naturally exposed to hepatitis-B, 98 percent of them develop life-long immunity and they do not develop any major problems, no major diseases. They heal up fine. Whereas if you get inoculated with hepatitis-B vaccine, it's false immunity that wears off in approximately seven years, if you've got a strong immune system. And according to the pharmaceutical companies, if you're over age 55, say, and have a weakened immune system, you have to get rechecked for antibodies in response to the vaccine every five years. Well, does that make sense? Because now you've got to bring your child back at age seven, let's say, to get rechecked—an expensive \$175 blood test to see if they're maintaining the antibodies. And then, if not, you've got to have them boosted and rechecked, again. And then at age 14, now another seven years later you've got to do the same thing. And what's insane from a behavioral perspective is, you try to get a 14-year-old teenager who's into sex and drugs already, to do anything, let alone to go into a physician's office or public health unit and get "stuck". I mean, that's a very, very good trick. As a public health, behavioral science expert, I can tell you that that's just not going to happen. So, it doesn't make sense from a behaviorist perspective, or from a scientific perspective. Nothing about this legislation makes sense, except for the fact that it represents an opportunity to deliver immune system ravaging microorganisms and foreign proteins that cause auto-immune diseases to our nation's population and, particularly now, focusing on our children. And again, that's very, very consistent with their published desire to reduce the United States' population by 55 percent, down to 1940s levels, by the year 2015.

I mean, I could literally go on about the hepatitis-B vaccine for another 15 minutes. I literally do that in the new video that we produced called *Emerging Viruses and Vaccinations*. We have a fabulous video now, actually two excellent videos: one is called *Emerging Viruses and Vaccinations*, where I spend about 45 minutes discussing the vaccine issues, whether in fact they are safe and effective. They are not. And a lot more attention, both scientific and mainstream media, needs to be focused on that issue.

And then, a brand-new video that goes pretty well into the vaccine issue is called Gulf War Syndrome: The Spreading Epidemic Cover-up, and it features myself, Captain Joyce Riley, Dr. Garth Nicolson who was a Presidential panelist on Gulf War Syndrome, and Canada's leading Gulf War Syndrome activist, Lt. Louis Richard, who is suffering terribly with Gulf War Syndrome. This tape will go into the fact that we know that vaccines most plausibly initiated Gulf War Syndrome. We know that our troops were given experimental AIDS-vaccine. This information came out in August of 1997, whereby a vaccine component called squaline was found, and anti-bodies to squaline were found in many of the veterans. And, by the way, the particular ingredient is only present in experimental vaccines and that the mycoplasma microorganism that Dr. Nicholson and others have determined are associated with Gulf War Syndrome, chronic fatigue immune dysfunction symptoms, has the AIDS-virus envelope gene attached to many of those micro-organisms. And, in fact, this would be consistent with the AIDS-vaccine experiment that the United States Army was preparing to do on our troops in the late '80s, that I was reading about in the Public Health literature. And so it has come out now that vaccines most plausibly initiated Gulf War Syndrome. It makes sense because it's the only common denominator. It explains why some of our troops that went to the Gulf, that were exposed to all of the biologicals and chemical fall-out, why they did not develop symptoms, versus others who did not go to the Gulf, like Captain Joyce Riley, they sustained vaccineinduced injuries that we now call Gulf War Syndrome. The fact of the matter is we show these liars in living color. General Schwarzkopf and Colin Powell were outlandish liers when they went before Congress and alleged that they had no knowledge of the fact that the troops were required, and not given the right to refuse these vaccines. And we also showed them to be outrageous liars when we show, in living color, the weapons dump at Khamasiyah where the military authorities blew up the dump, allegedly because they didn't want to have the bio and chemical weapons fall back into Saddam Hussein's hands, when the fact of the matter is, they blew it up most plausibly because they wanted to get rid of the evidence that incriminated them. The fact of the matter is that Schwarzkopf lied in front of Congress saying that he was not aware that there were chemical and biological weapons in the Khamasiyah arsenal. He said that he couldn't read Arabic? Excuse me, again, that's an outrageous insult to anybody's intelligence. Here we spend \$26.6 billion a year to fund our CIA and General Schwarzkopf can't get an agent to go in there and read Arabic? But, by the way, the writing on those weapons WAS NOT IN ARABIC. By in large, they were EN-GLISH. In fact, many of the weapons came from the United States. The Bush administration supplied Saddam Hussein with not only military armaments up until two weeks before he invaded Kuwait, but also the biological and chemical weapons. We show you that the weapons inside the Khamasiyah dump were color-coded with OUR COLOR CODES, denoting chemical and biological weapons-as well as they came, some of them, from Oklahoma, and they were in English. So, Schwarzkopf is an outrageous liar! And he has absolutely committed treason against the United States.

Rick: And, of course, Peter Kawaja has some interesting evidence as well on all of this.

Dr. Horowitz: Yep. Yep.

Rick: Have you ever experienced any threats or coercion or been approached by any governmental agency in an effort to stop the flow of information?

Dr. Horowitz: No, I really haven't and I don't think that's the way they'll work so much. I received one minor threat. In fact, I had one Pentagon official, a higher-up, basically say that it was probably a good idea for me to join the Masonic temple. When I asked why he said, "Because then they won't spill your blood."

I said, "What do you mean?"

He said, "Well, they'll kill you, but they'll make it neat."

And I thought to myself, "So what?" If you are going to die, so what if it's a bloody mess or not? But at any rate, I haven't because I don't think that's the way they work.

First of all, you have to ask yourself, why would they allow somebody like me to go out and continue to put this information out there, when the fact of the matter is, most people are brain-washed and brain-dead and they could literally allow a half-a-dozen Dr. Len Horowitzs out, and it's probably not going to have any major effect.

So, number one is, they try to avoid you as long as possible. Over the past year, the first year, in fact, they avoided me and hoped I would disappear. Well, I haven't disappeared. And so, phase two kicked in about 3 or 4 months ago, where, interestingly enough, the *Phoenix CONTACT* and myself were in the same national news story, targeted for disinformation. And, I was, during this segment of *Extra*, cited as the new cult leader in charge of all the lunatics who believe that the AIDS-virus was man-made. And, in fact, that segment showed a picture of the *CONTACT* with the headlines: *EBOLA & AIDS MAN-MADE*, with my name running across it, and the next segment was, the voice-over was that this was insane and then they showed a picture of Henry Kissinger and how they alleged that all the lunatics that follow us believe that Kissinger was involved in this, when in fact, he was indeed the one who virtually ordered the development of these types of micro-organisms under the CIA's top-secret project MK-NAOMI. And that is where the buck stopped, according to CIA Director Colby, Bill Colby, in front of Congress in 1975.

But at any rate, so that's the next thing. The next step was to discredit. You see, when you're faced with a message that's irrefutable, you've got to character-assassinate the messenger. And that's indeed what these people have started to do. In fact, if you go into Barnes & Noble bookstores today and I recommend you do this. You can go and ask for them to carry the book *Emerging Viruses: AIDS & EBOLA*, but when you're there go look for a brand new book that they've got a large display on called *Bio-Hazard: Beyond The Hot Zone*. Take a look at the book. Don't buy it, but take a look at it. And you'll see, out of approximately 200 pages of this not-referenced book, written by a *Reader's Digest* author—

and, of course, the Rockefellers are heavily in control of *Reader's Digest*—the author spends about a page-and-a-half of a mere 200 pages on the entire topic, explaining why Dr. Len Horowitz must be mentally ill.

Rick: [Laughter.]

Dr. Horowitz: [*Laughter.*] So they, literally, started a disinformation campaign, and I think it's so humorous. And I'll give you another example. Within weeks of the book *Emerging Viruses: AIDS & EBOLA*, which has, by the way, if you've seen the book, a black cover with red and white letters, the authorities came out with a book called *Virus Hunters Of The CDC*, black cover, black and white and red letters, virtually the same colors. And, interestingly enough, one of the contributors was an author by the name of Horovitz.

Rick: [Laughter.]

Dr. Horowitz: Right? So, I thought to myself, "Two can play this game." We got together and we produced a fabulous 3-hour audiotape cassette package called *Virus Makers Of The CIA*, black, white and red letters—I basically used their layout. [*Laughter*.] So, these are the games people play. But the bottom line here is, those who have eyes to see the evidence and the ears to hear the truth will be in a far better place to avoid the risks, whether the risks are vaccines, or contaminated blood, or the foods that we're eating, or even the air that we're breathing, the water that we're drinking—I mean, all of these things are attacking us now. But it is not unusual. It is not unexpected. It's been prophesied for centuries and that the current and coming plagues are just a symptom of a larger spiritual battle that we are engaged in.

Rick: That (was going to be) my last question, so keep talking.

Dr. Horowitz: Well, again, the spiritual warfare aspects of this, I think, are the most clear. I think as human beings we search for meaning in life. The age-old war between the dark vs. light forces, good vs. evil, I believe that that's clearly what we're seeing. And this has been prephesied by every major prophet and seer and people who've written things from the Book of Revelation to the Hopi prophecies-that there would be a time when there would be great plagues upon the Earth, that there will be, in the Book of Revelation, a third of the world's population decimated and that these will be brought on by beasts and famine and pestilence, and what we're seeing today is the beginning of this. For people who don't believe that, all they have to ask is maybe 10 people, if they have had friends or family over the last few years, develop bizarre immune-system-related disorders or weird cancers with no family history-and they may be surprised to find that 4-or-5 out of 10 will say, "Yes, I have." And everything from chronic fatigue immune dysfunction to fibromyalgia to Guillain Barre to lupis to M.S. to AIDS to adult-onset diabetes to asthma, allergies, all of these things are associated now with the contaminated vaccines and/or contaminated blood. The whole, huge epidemic of cancer likewise. So, when you look at the fact that we are, right now, in the throes of the plagues that for centuries have been predicted that would occur at the end of times, you have to appreciate who wins in the end; and appreciate the prognosis. See, it is those people who have eyes to see and ears to hear. It's going to be survival of the fittest. In this case, survival of the most intelligent. Those are the people who are awake to the risks, who avoid the risks, are going to be among the "remnant", if you will. And those who aren't are going to be, probably, dead. So, in the end, however, all of the prophecies have said that we will witness-and I don't think it's too far off-we will

witness a thousand years where we get our act together, when human beings live in peace. It's called *Yis-rael*, "when the lion lies down with the lamb", when we have peace on Earth.

And the fact that there are among us, many people—in fact, one of the most amazing things that happens in my seminars and lectures most recently is, I've asked this question: How many of you out there have experienced, over the last 8 months to a year, an incredible increase in your intuitive capacity, in your spirituality, in little synchronicities of experiences whereby you think of something or someone and it just happens and it clicks, and there they are the next day or the next moment, and little miracles and big ones, perhaps, as well, that are just happening in your life, and this is just an amazingly spiritual time for you? And you would be surprised, and most people are astounded, to see, in the United States, particularly, in my Christian audiences, of course, I'd say patriotic audiences, I'd say that many militia people have also attended—I'd say 60 percent of the people raise their hands. The other day I gave the same question in a Black audience in St. Louis and I had about 80 percent of the people raise their hands. It was miraculous. People looked around and they were astonished. And it goes down to maybe 40 to 50 percent in your average American audience. In France, when I returned just a couple of weeks ago, it was approximately 20 percent of the people raised their hands. So that may give you an indication that America is still the seat of spirituality in the world today.

At any rate, what's happening to the average person out there is miraculous. It is spiritually endowed, and it has been prophesied, and it is part of that spiritual endowment, that intuition, that will empower the people who are destined to survive, to survive. And that's what this whole process is for me at this point.

I think it's a joy. People always ask me, aren't I afraid that they're going to "knock me off"? And I did go through months of not sleeping. But the bottom line now is, what a magnificent blessing that this has been. Because the fact that I was required to come to terms with my mortality gave me a complete new lease on life. The fact that any moment I could walk out my front door and get a micro-biological dart implanted into my neck that kills me with a heart attack or some other infectious disease, the fact that that could happen, means that every time that I see my daughters and my wife, I look for the sparkle in their eyes and I drink it up like a sponge. I soak it up because THAT is what the true meaning of life, in my opinion, really is. It's really loving, in total, the relationships and the people, in the moment.

So, thank you very much, Rick.

Rick: That's a good place to stop. I appreciate your time.

FOLLOW-UP QUESTIONS 12/18/97

Rick: The news has been hot and heavy these last few days concerning our military being injected with anthrax vaccines, specifically, each soldier being given six shots over 18 months. Obviously there is SO MUCH MORE to this story than is being told. What is the real story concerning the anthrax vaccines and what can our readers expect to see or read about in the weeks, months, and years ahead as a direct result of these inoculations?

Dr. Horowitz: If you've read *USA Today*, like I have, you'll probably get a little bit of a picture that is not being discussed. You had *USA Today* declare that President Clinton was NOT going to get vaccinated.

[*The date of the article is Wednesday, December 17, 1997.*] I think that it is a very wise choice, and I think that it is an absolutely insane policy. And I think that President Clinton has probably made the wisest decision in his Presidency.

The anthrax vaccine is as potentially risky as all the other vaccines, including the vaccine that most plausibly initiated Gulf War Syndrome. That in terms of the other *USA* report, where they question this vaccine's efficacy, particularly long-term, where they were very clear to tell you that this was not a life-long immunity. It was not potentially a full-coverage immunity, and that you'd still be susceptible to potentially getting anthrax.

The question that I have is: Why is it, all of a sudden, that the Pentagon did a reversal of its position on administering the anthrax vaccine after, virtually, a century—if not longer, actually it's been about a century now, because World War I was largely won because of the anthrax bacteria. Basically, this sudden policy reversal is HIGHLY QUESTIONABLE. I've been, personally, in touch with two Pentagon officials and both tell me that they are equally concerned that the Pentagon has done this, and it strikes me as odd that anthrax has been a "known" threat and has been a relatively easy micro-organism to culture and distribute, as numerous people have explained, and why, all of a sudden, would these troops be given such a vaccine when the risk has been there all along, if it wasn't for another agenda?

Now, according to the authorities, if we are to believe what they tell us, it will be some terrorist organization that delivers anthrax. Well, if THAT'S the case, then you certainly would not give it to your <u>entire</u> military because that doesn't make any sense, because terrorist organizations play guerilla warfare.

Number two is, haven't the military and the federal government learned a lesson from Gulf War Syndrome? The bottom line is that they're still not telling people the truth about Gulf War Syndrome. The 3-hour video-tape called *Gulf War Syndrome: The Spreading Epidemic Cover-Up*, shows General Norman Schwarzkopf and Colin Powell to be outrageous liars. And that the entire Congressional hearing, headed by Jay Rockefeller, was a complete travesty of justice. And the bottom line was, we know now, as of last August, it appeared in several papers, and so scientific literature disclosed that the United States Army was doing experimental vaccine tests on our military—which, literally, IS NOT NEWS! In fact, I was in the National Library of Medicine on Wednesday and found out that in 1971, they were using our military personnel for virus cancer-related studies. So, the bottom line with Gulf War Syndrome is that it was most plausibly initiated by contaminated or experimental vaccines, one of which was an AIDS-vaccine.

Now, is there perhaps another agenda, a covert agenda that the Pentagon or people in the military are not telling us about, or that people in the government are not telling us about that has to do with testing experimental vaccines on our troops for God-knows-what reasons? Or, is there, alternatively, a known agenda called the New World Order agenda whereby a strong United States military represents a liability in the wake of United Nations Peace Keeping Forces and NATO Alliance officers dictating policy to American troops? I suppose that if you were someone who desired to bring about a New World Order where you look upon patriotic Americans and military personnel in this country, who like to maintain their national sovereignty, you might think to yourself that this represents a risk to us, particularly the fellas who don't like to sign-away on the dotted line saying that they would fire upon U.S. citizens, if asked—which is one of the questions, apparently, the military personnel are being asked today.

So the Pentagon officials that I am in touch with are concerned that this may be part of the defunding, defanging, and literally "taking out" of the U.S. military. And that is a tremendous issue with far-reaching implications, and I think that it deserves some serious consideration despite the fact that it is considered conspiratorial nonsense by those officials who are using the mainstream media as mouth-pieces for their propaganda.

Rick: Do you have any specific information concerning the producer of the vaccine?

Dr. Horowitz: I've been told that the Michigan company [*Michigan Biologics Products Institute, a division of Michigan's Department of Health*] was formed in the early 1970s, I think it was 1971, which alone is pretty interesting, given the fact that this was kind of like the high time for the population agenda. That was the year that Henry Kissinger penned the National Security Memorandum 200 calling for population reduction in the Third World as U.S. national security's primary foreign policy objective. It's also interesting because that comes right on, right in the hot-bed of the issues that I deal with in *Emerging Viruses: AIDS & EBOLA*, but this company, apparently, has the monopoly on the anthrax vaccine.

Rick: While I have you on the line, last night Art Bell had on Richard Preston discussing the anthrax issue and other things. Would you please, AGAIN, for our readers, clue us in as to who exactly Richard Preston is and the agenda he is promoting and why.

Dr. Horowitz: Richard Preston is an author, a journalist, who virtually came from nowhere to write the best-selling book, The Hot Zone. The theory presented by Richard Preston in The Hot Zone is that these types of EBOLA-like viruses, the Marburg, the Reston, these hemorrhagic fever viruses, were just spontaneously mutating at the bottom of some dark cave in Africa, and that as man ventured into this area and as population explodes and man cuts down the African rain forest, these micro-organisms are just spontaneously mutating there and jumping up into us as God's wrath against humanity. The vast majority of the media and people have bought into that deception and when you contrast that disinformation, in comparison to the scientific literature, in fact, expert testimony, then you see that this is hogwash; that organizations, including Litton Bionetics Research Labs, which was 6th on the list of major Army biological weapons contractors, created and/or isolated in their laboratories numerous AIDS-like, EBOLA-like, and virtually every other micro-organism including MAD COW disease that are now afflicting humanity. These were precisely the micro-organisms that were being manipulated in this bioweapons laboratory during the 1960s and early 1970s, as the documentation in the book Emerging Viruses: AIDS & EBOLA proves. And so, Preston, I found out when I investigated him further, was funded \$20,000 to write that piece of counterintelligence propaganda put out, published by the CIA-mouthpiece organization called Random House, and that the Sloan Foundation had a small but significant role in the development of these types of microorganisms through their supplying of some of the materials that were used by Litton Bionetics research head for the National Cancer Institute, Dr. Robert Gallo, who was overseeing this particular project which was titled, "Investigations of Viral Carcinogensis in Primates". That means, investigations of viral-induced cancers in monkeys AND HUMANS.

Richard Preston's *The Hot Zone* was largely funded by the Sloan Foundation, Alfred P. Sloan Foundation, a sister organization of the Rockefeller Foundation. The same organization funded Lauri Garrett's book *The Coming Plague*, which, again, is recognized as a definitive text in this field of emerging viruses. And it is, again, very, very suspicious that Laurie Garrett, in her very well researched and meticulously

referenced text, would completely overlook the entire decade from 1965 to 1975 when Sloan was supplying with Dr. Gallo, who was working initimately with Bionetics researchers, to develop these types of micro-organisms. And, in fact, she even incriminates herself by saying, and actually repeating the garbage propaganda, that said that we couldn't have manipulated these types of viruses in the labs until 1975 because, according to Dr. Gallo, I quote him, "We did not have the sophisticated, molecular, genetic, biotechnology capabilities that would have allowed us to construct these types of viruses—like the AIDS virus, gene-by-gene-until 1975." Well, that's virtually true. But Alexander Graham Bell did not need fiber-optics to make his first telephone call. And the documentation proves beyond any doubt that between 1965 and 1975 this particular laboratory, and others that were working as biological weapons contractors for the Department of Defense, as well as the CIA in their Top Secret project called MK-NAOMI, were producing with very sloppy and haphazard methods, and tedious methods of mutant virusrecombination, these types of viruses, as well as mutant bacteria for anthrax and E-coli organisms. These were taken; they were mutated very, very easily by the techniques that made themselves available already in the 1950s. And we have SOLID, ABSOLUTELY SOLID DOCUMENTATION, including the government's own documentation, that shows that this was taking place. [It is also extremely interesting to note that in the very latest Jan./Feb. 1998 edition of Foreign Affairs, Laurie Garrett has written a 4-page review essay titled "Runaway Diseases And The Human Hand Behind Them".]

You know, this anthrax thing really bothers me, too.

Rick: Did you have anything else to say about that? I would like to hit this one hard.

Dr. Horowitz: I think it's a great service that you're doing by giving that information.

Again, it is untrustworthy, that's the bottom line. You cannot trust these people. You can't trust their vaccines. You can't trust their political agendas. They consistently lie. They cover-up. And, it's unfortunate that the military personnel, when they sign on the dotted-line, they sign their lives away to these people. And, unfortunately, the Pentagon officials that I've spoken with, like President Clinton, would refuse to have these vaccines. But, unfortunately, the forces themselves, they are going to be used as experimentally, whether or not it is an acknowledged experiment or not.

Again, I would have to emphasize that all of the immune-system-related and neurological disorders that are coming and growing into epidemic proportions today, like I discussed previously with you today, Rick, including chronic fatigue, Gulf War Syndrome, fibromyalga, Guillain Barré, lupis, MS, Alzheimer's, adult-onset diabetes, rheumatoid arthritis, all of these now have been shown to have a similar pathogensis in that vaccines, whether they're contaminated or not contaminated, just regular vaccines, it's normally how they work—whether it's a live protein bacteria or virus that's injected, or a weakened one, or a dead one, completely, or even a synthetic one—all of these particles when they are injected into the human body, it breaches God's natural barrier, which is the skin, which has enzymes on it that destroy bacteria. And it breaches that when you inject, right into the bloodstream, these foreign particles, and what happens is that these foreign particles combine with your own proteins in your own cells, and that becomes a foreign body, what is called an "antigenic complex", that the body now sees as foreign; it recognizes it as foreign. And now an immune response is initiated to try to attack those foreign bodies, those antigenic complexes, and in the process your body starts destroying itself. It begins to attack your own host-cell proteins, and if those proteins are on the muscle tissue, you get weakened muscles. And if it's in the joints, you get

inflammation of the joints. And if it's in the pancreas on the Islets of Langerhans, you get diabetes. And if it's in the brain, you get brain lesions like those associated with chronic fatigue.

This is what our troops are going to now be exposed to. Now, I'm sorry, you've got to be a fool to take those, if you have choice, and if you have any information. And certainly, "informed consent" is something that the Nuremberg trials and the Code of Ethics in medical experimentation calls for. I don't believe that our troops are going to be given that.

Rick: That's a good place to end. Thank you, Len.

Dr. Horowitz: God bless. Have a happy holiday, Rick.

Editor's note: In a fax received directly from the Michigan Department of Community Health, we read this following Press Release from the Office of Assistant Secretary of Defense (Public Affairs) in Washington, D.C., which addresses the issue of the Defense Department's implementation of troop immunization against anthrax. Time to test those discernment skills!

* * *

[QUOTING:]

<u>IMMEDIATE RELEASE</u>___DECEMBER 15, 1997 No. 679-97 Public (703) 697-5737

[Also available on Defense.LINK, a World Wide Web Server on the Internet, at: http://www.defenselink.mil]

DEFENSE DEPARTMENT TO START IMMUNIZING TROOPS AGAINST ANTHRAX

The Department of Defense today announced plans that will lead to the systematic vaccination of all U.S. military personnel against the biological warfare agent anthrax. The vaccinations are expected to start next summer.

After a three-year study, Secretary of Defense William S. Cohen concluded that the vaccination is the safest way to protect highly mobile U.S. military forces against a potential threat that is 99-percent lethal to unprotected individuals. The anthrax vaccine will initially be administered to approximately 100,000 military personnel assigned or deployed to the high-threat areas of Southwest Asia and Northeast Asia. Within the next several years it will be given to all active duty and reserve personnel.

"This is a force protection issue," Cohen said. "To be effective, medical force protection must be comprehensive, well documented and consistent. I have instructed the military to put such a program in place."

Vaccinations would start only after several conditions are met:

* Supplemental testing, consistent with Food and Drug Administration standards, to assure sterility, safety, potency and purity of the vaccine.

* Implementation of a system for fully tracking personnel who receive the anthrax vaccinations.

* Approval of appropriate operational plans to administer the immunizations and communications plans to inform military personnel of the overall program.

* Review of health and medical issues of the program by an independent expert.

"Our goal is to vaccinate everybody in the force so they will be ready to deploy anywhere, anytime," explained Deputy Secretary of Defense John Hamre, who will monitor implementation of the program. "This is an important new dimension to overall force protection. The anthrax vaccination will join other immunizations we already give everyone in the military."

The anthrax vaccine is FDA-licensed and exhibits fewer side effects than flu or typhoid vaccines. It has been widely used in the United States since the early 1970s by livestock workers and veterinarians. The military currently immunizes people working in at-risk jobs and some 3,000 personnel assigned to special operations units, the Army Technical Escort Unit and the Marine Chemical-Biological Initial Response Forces.

The Department of Defense will immediately begin consultations with Congress and other federal government agencies and brief military personnel. Vaccinations for the first group of personnel who serve in or who would deploy early to the high-threat areas are planned to begin in Summer 1998. Details of the schedule for the total force vaccinations will be determined as the program moves forward.

Defense Department officials have been reviewing an implementation program with the Joint Chiefs of Staff during the past year. The immunization program follows the recommendation of Gen. Henry H. Shelton, Chairman of the Joint Chiefs of Staff. [*Emphasis added*]

The immunization program will consist of a series of six inoculations per service member over an 18-month period, followed by an annual booster. Although protection levels increase as shots in the series are given, the entire six-shot series is required for full protection.

Consistent with the Force Health Protection Program announced by President Clinton on Nov. 8, 1997, the anthrax vaccination plan will serve as a prototype for long term force protection. The Secretary of the Army is the executive agent for the effort, including procurement of the vaccine, tracking and oversight of the vaccination program, and coordinating with other service secretaries on the execution of the program. Because of the mobility of military personnel, Cohen said he must be satisfied there is a medical management system in place to track individuals through the series before the immunizations begin. The Secretary of the Army, as executive agent, will serve as the focal point for the submission of information for the services.

Anthrax is a disease that normally afflicts animals, especially cattle and sheep. Anthrax spores can be produced in a dry form that can be incorporated into weapons. When inhaled by humans, these particles

cause severe pneumonia and death within a week. At least ten countries have or are suspected of developing a biological warfare capability.

The Defense Department addressed the threat of anthrax and other biological and chemical weapons when it released the report "Proliferation: Threat and Response" in late November 1997.

Even though the plan has been reviewed extensively in the Pentagon, Cohen directed that it be independently assessed before implementation by Dr. Gerald N. Burrow of Yale University, who serves as Special Advisor to the Yale President for Health Affairs.

"We owe it to our people to move ahead with this immunization plan," Cohen said. "But we also want to make sure that our overall immunization program is safe and effective."

FACT SHEET ANTHRAX VACCINATION PROGRAM

Since the Gulf War, the Department of Defense has increased the level of attention given to biological warfare defense and other force protection measures. The current world threat environment and the unpredictable nature of terrorism make it prudent to include biological warfare defense as part of our force protection planning.

Anthrax is one such threat. It is an infectious disease that normally afflicts animals. If placed into weapons, it would be 99-percent lethal to unprotected individuals who have been exposed. A safe and effective vaccine is available that will protect our forces.

Manufactured under contract by the Michigan Biologic Products Institute (MBPI), the anthrax vaccine has been licensed and in use since 1970. It is a formalen inactivated vaccine and uses dead bacteria rather than live bacteria. In this respect it is similar to diphtheria vaccinations (DPT) that American children receive before entering school. There is no evidence from records at the MBPI that anthrax vaccine is associated with any chronic or permanent local or systemic effects.

Immunization consists of three subcutaneous injections, 0.5 ml each, given 2 weeks apart followed by three additional subcutaneous injections, 0.5 ml each, given at 6, 12, and 18 months. If immunity is to be maintained, subsequent booster injections of the vaccine at one-year intervals following the initial series are necessary.

Inoculations of personnel in high-threat areas will begin as soon as possible with general vaccination of the force to follow. The Michigan Biological Products Institute, under contract to the Department of the Army, has produced and stockpiled the vaccine to support inoculation of the force.

This decision has not been taken lightly. Applying any program, procedures or process to the entire U.S. military force is a complicated and expensive process that must be thoroughly planned and carefully executed to achieve the desired results. The athrax vaccine is already used to protect some of our military and civilian employees, but the decision to vaccinate the total force is much more difficult. Protection against anthrax is particularly challenging because the protocol requires multiple vaccinations to achieve

immunity, and thus involves significant administrative and logistical issues.

When all associated costs (transportation, storage, administration, etc.) are included, the cost to immunize an estimated 2.5 million personnel (over a six-year period) is approximately \$130 million.

INFORMATION PAPER ANTHRAX VACCINE

* Human anthrax vaccine was developed in England and the U.S. in the 1950s and early 1960s.

* The vaccine is FDA-licensed and has been routinely given in the U.S. since 1970 to protect veterinarians, meat packers, woolworkers, hat makers, state health officials, etc.

* The current dose schedule for the U.S. vaccine consists of 6 shots given over an 18-month schedule and an annual booster thereafter.

* The vaccine has an excellent safety record.

* Since 1971, the FDA has received only 1 report of an adverse reaction, and this reaction was attributed to the use of a dirty needle used to inject the vaccine. The reaction was an infection at the injection site.

* Studies by the U.S. Army Medical Research Institute have shown that most people have more side effects to the flu shot than the anthrax vaccine.

* The most common side effects reported are: Mild discomfort (localized swelling and redness at the side of injection), joint aches, and in a few cases, nausea, loss of appetite, and headaches.

* There is no evidence from records at the Michigan Department of Public Health which is the only U.S. producer of the vaccine—that the vaccine is associated with permanent, local or systemic effects. [END QUOTING]

ENTIRE MILITARY TO GET SHOTS AGAINST ANTHRAX

The Pentagon made the decision because of biological-war threats emanating from Iraq and North Korea.

From *The Orlando Sentinel*, 12/16/97: [quoting]

WASHINGTON—Defense Secretary William Cohen on Monday ordered all 1.5 million men and women in uniform to be inoculated against anthrax, citing a growing worldwide threat from the deadliest form of germ warfare.

"This is a force-protection issue," Cohen said in a statement. "We owe it to our people to move ahead with this immunization plan."

Terrorist bombings aimed at U.S. troops in Saudi Arabia and fears that enemies such as Iraq and North Korea might use biological weapons prompted the Pentagon initiative, officials said. The move comes amid the confrontation with Iraq's Saddam Hussein and the United Nations' efforts to uncover his weapons of mass destruction.

More than one-quarter of U.S. forces who served in the Persian Gulf War were inoculated against anthrax, an infectious disease that usually afflicts only animals, especially cattle and sheep.

Anthrax spores can be produced in a dry form suitable for weapons—in an artillery shell that could explode and spray the poison over a wide area, for example—and can be fatal in microscopic amounts, Pentagon officials said.

Iraq, Russia and as many as 10 other countries are thought to have the capacity to use anthrax in weapons.

The Pentagon considers it the easiest biological weapon to make and use, and the most lethal as well.

The inoculations involve six shots over an 18-month period. Over the next six years, about 2.4 million people will receive the shots at a cost of about \$130 million, a Pentagon statement said. An annual booster also is required.

Inoculation is considered the best protection. Pentagon officials insisted the vaccine is safe and effective; it has been licensed by the Food and Drug Administration since the 1970s and is used mainly by those who come into contact with cattle and sheep.

The first shots will be given next summer to about 100,000 soldiers, sailors, airmen and Marines deployed to "high threat" areas in the Persian Gulf region and around the Korean Peninsula, officials said.

"Our goal is to vaccinate everybody in the force so they will be ready to deploy anywhere, anytime," Deputy Defense Secretary John Hamre said in the statement.

Some members of the reserves and the military's civilian work force also will be vaccinated if they are expected to be sent to a high-threat area.

At the Pentagon briefing, an official said extra precautions are being taken in the case of the anthrax vaccine.

For example, pregnant women will not be given the drug until after they have given birth and returned to duty.

Inoculations against a variety of diseases are normal for military personnel. They can range from measles to smallpox to typhoid to polio or yellow fever, depending upon the need.

Just like any vaccine, the anthrax vaccine, manufactured by the Michigan Department of Public Health, can cause mild reactions at the injection site, said Bonnie Lee, a senior policy analyst at FDA who deals with vaccinations.

Some 4 percent of people have moderate inflammation at the injection site, and a few also have bruising of the forearm, she said.

Fewer than 0.5 percent of patients have any systemic reaction, such as malaise or chills. Those who do should not receive subsequent shots, Lee said.

Military lab workers and soldiers and Marines involved in chemical and biological warfare units and special operations forces already are given the vaccine, Pentagon officials said.

The decision to administer the shots to all U.S. Military personnel was made informally last year but was delayed over concerns about whether a proper procedure could be set up to monitor those who were inoculated.

The Pentagon came under severe criticism for having poor records involving the health care of the veterans from the Persian Gulf War, some of whom years later had concerns about their health and the inoculations they had received.

About 150,000 of the more than 500,000 U.S. troops in the Gulf War in 1990 and 1991 were given anthrax vaccinations. No link has been established with Gulf War illnesses. [End quoting]

U.S. BLOCKS THE IMPORT OF EUROPEAN CATTLE, SHEEP

From *The Orlando Sentinel*, 12/13/97: [quoting]

WASHINGTON—The United States on Friday banned imports of all cattle and sheep from Europe until the risk of spreading mad cow disease in this country is fully examined. No case of bovine spongiform encephalopathy—the proper name of the neurological disorder fatal in cattle—has ever been reported in the United States. Eating meat from cattle tainted by the disease is thought to cause the brain-wasting Creutzfeldt-Jakob disease, which has killed at least 20 people, mostly in Britain. Previously, the Agriculture Department had restricted imports of cattle, sheep and many products such as fresh meat and bone meal from nine European countries. [End quoting]

EPIDEMIC OF NEW STRAIN OF FLU MAY BE STARTING

From The Orlando Sentinel, 12/13/97: [quoting]

WASHINGTON—Six people in Hong Kong who caught influenza from chickens may turn out to be the first patients in a world-wide epidemic caused by a new flu strain, says an expert who predicts that "it's only a matter of time" until the virus starts spreading from human to human. Robert G. Webster, a member of the World Health Organization influenza team and virus expert at St. Jude Children's Research Hospital in Memphis, Tenn., said Monday that a unique strain of flu never before seen in humans could rage around the globe if the virus mutates so that it can be transmitted between people. Flu shots now in use offer no protection, he said. [End quoting]

PENTAGON ADMITS USING TEST VACCINE

From *The Bakersfield Californian*, 12/23/97: [quoting]

The shots for Gulf War troops are now eyed as a source of illness.

CLEVELAND (*AP*)—The Pentagon acknowledged Monday that a vaccine with unknown health effects was given to 8,000 soldiers in the Persian Gulf War but said the injections were optional in at least some cases.

The comments came in response to a story in *The Plain Dealer* about injections of botulinum toxoid vaccine, which was meant to protect against chemical and biological warfare. The vaccine is now being studied as a possible source of the health problems associated with "Gulf War syndrome".

While the military had permission from the Food and Drug Administration to give the vaccine without consent of the soldiers, the U.S. Central Command decided to make the program optional, Defense Department spokesman Jim Turner said.

However, Turner said he wasn't sure what soldiers had been told about the injection. He said it is possible not all the troops were given a choice to reject it.

Just before the war with Iraq, an Army board warned that it would be unethical to give the drug to troops without warning that the effects were unknown, the newspaper reported.

That warning was overridden after the Pentagon cited national security concerns, the newspaper said.

A transcript of an Army ethics committee's meeting in Maryland on Oct. 4, 1990, showed that Army physicians weren't confident the unlicensed vaccine would protect troops from illness.

The transcript, obtained by *The Plain Dealer*, showed the committee learned that while limited testing in laboratory animals showed promise against the deadly botulism toxin researchers were uncertain whether it would work and whether troops on the move could be safely immunized.

The FDA requires that Americans be fully informed about an experimental drug before they agree to take it.

But in 1964, the FDA agreed to allow the Pentagon to use experimental drugs to protect against battlefield exposure without following all FDA rules, including informed consent.

The Defense Department has used similar unlicensed vaccines for years, but only after notifying individuals.

The deadly botulism toxin is believed to be in Iraq's arsenal. [End quoting]

KILLER 'CHICKEN FLU' TERRIFIES HONG KONG

From The Orlando Sentinel, 12/17/97: [quoting]

HONG KONG— The Hong Kong government launched a plan Tuesday to combat a mysterious killer "bird flu" amid fears the virus could be transmitted from person to person.

Hong Kong Health Director Margaret Chan said although there are indications the influenza virus, known as AH5N1, could be passed from human to human, there is no hard evidence yet to prove it.

Two children, cousins of a 5-year-old girl who contracted the virus, are suspected of having the infections, Chan said.

"We believe at this stage, even if person-to-person transmission is happening, it is occurring at a very slow level," she said.

The virus, which experts say illustrates the risk of a sudden flu epidemic, struck humans for the first time this year with two deaths in Hong Kong.

Chickens have been identified as the most likely source, but it is not known whether any birds other than poultry are carrying the virus.

In Hong Kong, six people have come down with the flu, including the two who died.

In Washington on Monday, virologist Rob Webster said the new strain of "chicken flu" poses a real threat of a global epidemic.

Flu shots now in use offer no protection.

The government-launched plan includes monitoring and border checks of poultry imports from mainland China, which supplies most of the chicken consumed in Hong Kong.

Genetic analysis showed the virus originated from poultry in four of the six cases of infection, Chan said.

Only two of those infected reported contacts with poultry within the incubation period, she said. "This points to the fact that the transmission of the virus both from bird-to-human and human-to-human are possible."

Many Hong Kong residents buy their chicken live or freshly slaughtered from warehouse-like markets. [End quoting]

KENYANS HIT BY MYSTERIOUS BLEEDING DISEASE

From THE TORONTO STAR, 12/27/97: [quoting]

NAIROBI (*AP*)—A mysterious disease that's caused scores of Kenyans to bleed to death from the nose and mouth also may be killing livestock, a U.N. official said yesterday.

"At this point, we're concerned it may be something that affects both animals and people," said Douglas Klaucke, a World Health organization representative in Kenya.

Lab workers were testing dozens of blood samples from humans and livestock suspected to have died from the mysterious disease in remote, flooded parts of northeastern Kenya. [End quoting]

* * *

USA Today—Final Edition—News—Wednesday, December 17, 1997, pg. 08A

<u>CLINTON SEES LITTLE ANTHRAX</u> <u>THREAT TO CIVILIANS</u> By Steven Findlay

President Clinton says he doesn't plan to be vaccinated against the deadly bacteria anthrax and "couldn't recommend" that civilian Americans be vaccinated.

The commander in chief's comment at a news conference Tuesday came a day after the Pentagon announced it would begin inoculating all 2.4 million military personnel against anthrax next summer. The measure is meant to protect troops against biological warfare or a terrorist attack using anthrax spores.

Infection is usually fatal. Iraq and other countries possess anthrax in weapons form.

Medical and public health experts agreed with the president's view.

"There is no reason now for broad public use of this vaccine," said Phillip Russell, former president of the Army Medical Research and Development Command at Fort Detrick, Md. "The threat of exposure is too low to justify it."

The drug's manufacturer and the Food and Drug administration recommend that veterinarians and researchers who work with animals from countries where anthrax may be common consider getting inoculated.

Kenneth Berry, president of the American Academy of Emergency Physicians and head of PREEMPT, a counterterrorism group based in Wellsville, N.Y., dissented from the mainstream medical advice.

"We ought to be planning to make anthrax vaccine widely available to the population, starting in the major cities," Berry said.

He said military experts believe that a terrorist attack in a major U.S. city using a biological weapon is likely within five years.

CHAPTER 2

THE NEWS DESK SPECIAL REPORT by Dr. Al Overholt 12/23/97

TRUTH ABOUT MILITARY VACCINATIONS AGAINST ANTHRAX?

From the INTERNET, courtesy of James Seabourn, 12/17/97: [quoting]

CONFIDENTIAL SOURCES and current events have led me to the conclusion that the trigger is about to be pulled on the final stages of the plot for the takeover of America.

It is now clear that the United States Military can not be made to be a tool of the Conspiracy, due to the formation of substantial pockets of resistance within the military and their reluctance to attack/kill Americans under any pretense short of overt aggression against this country.

As a result, it appears clear that the decision has been made to neutralize the vast majority of front-line American military. As you know, vaccines have been used recently to spread disease very successfully. If you doubt this, do some research and confirm this for yourself. The Gulf War Syndrome was only a test.

Now think about this. Why try to eliminate the military with guns, when you can get them to sit in a chair, one-by-one, and be infected/poisoned?

The decision has now been made to use the proposed anthrax vaccine on ALL military personnel. Military personnel MUST refuse to take these vaccinations. If sufficient numbers do, and enough focus is put on this matter, the program will be halted.

Foreign troops are already massed in huge numbers inside the United States and have stockpiled hundreds of tons of weaponry, primarily under the umbrella of the United Nations. Think about this for a minute. Does America have plenty of weapons? Yes. Why would foreign powers bring in hundreds of tons of additional weapons?

Primarily because they know that many soldiers will destroy American weaponry rather than letting it fall into enemy hands.

Contact every one you can in the military TODAY and urge them to voice their STRONG OBJECTION to the vaccine and to REQUEST FOR INVESTIGATION of its dangers IMMEDIATELY.

As usual, the vast majority of leadership in the military has been kept completely in the dark and have been led to believe that this vaccine is necessary for the health of the soldiers.

Only a small number have any suspicion or knowledge. Once the vaccination program begins, soldiers will be given NO CHOICE in the matter.

Let your friends and family know to be ready for anything these demons may try to pull. We must act as God's Soldiers and not as sheeple.

It is time to take a stand.

The resisters in the military will wage a war from within, if necessary. This will include the elimination of any persons trying to execute this plot.

This means that you need to be especially sure to warn personnel in the medical corps that they are in DOUBLE JEOPARDY.

The vaccine is only part of the plot to put foreign soldiers in control of the United States. The overall plan is believed to be as follows:

1. Create a biological/environmental emergency which can be blamed on foreign powers which will hasten the apparent need for the vaccine.

2. The structure of what will appear to be a non-planned economic collapse.

3. Allow the people to riot over the unfolding events.

4. Use propaganda to encourage the people to beg for military intervention. Most compromised governors, and mayors, are already poised to call for such intervention.

5. Install U.S. Military into key control positions under a declared martial law/state of emergency.

6. As the U.S. Military becomes sick from the vaccine, slowly replace them with foreign troops who will not hesitate to shoot Americans for any reason.

7. Put all troops under U.N. control as a "peacekeeping" operation.

I understand that I am taking great risk by bringing this into the open. I can provide no further information.

If you are hesitant to believe this is real, go back and review the major events of the last few months and see if it fits into the overall picture.

Also, go back and read all the information you can about how AIDS was spread through Hepatitis-B vaccines and how tainted vaccines are spreading disease at an alarming rate. Then find out where the serum came from to create the anthrax vaccine.

You certainly will not want anyone, you care about, taking it!

If you believe this is possible, you owe it to America to take action. If this threat is not real, all that will happen is that the government will be forced to take an objective look at the safety of the vaccine.

In God We Must Have The Greatest Trust, Terry

PLEASE REPOST

Paul Andrew Mitchell, Sui Juris : Counselor at Law, federal witness B.A.: Political Science, UCLA; M.S.: Public Administration, U.C.Irvine, tel: (520) 320-1514: machine; fax: (520) 320-1256: 24-hour/day-night; email: <pmitch@primenet.com> website:<http://supremelaw.com>: c/o 2509 N. Campbell, #1776:

This is free speech, at its best Tucson, Arizona state: state zone, not the federal zone Postal Zone 85719/ tdc: USPS delays first class w/o this: Law is authority in written words.

As agents of the Most High, we came here to establish justice. We shall not leave, until our mission is accomplished and justice reigns eternal. —James M. Seabourn

CHAPTER 3

SOLTEC: SOUNDING THE CLARION FOR WHAT IS COMING QUICKLY

12/28/97 SOLTEC

Good afternoon, my friend. It is I, Toniose Soltec come in the Radiant One Light of Creator Source. Be at peace!

Thank you for sitting this day, for there are messages that need to be penned. Much is happening all around your globe this day. Many of the players in the global arena are playing their hand. This will cause a very interesting course of events on all fronts, from stock market manipulations to weather modification and, yes, earthquake and volcanic triggerings as well. [See Comander Hatonn's writing on earthquakes on p. 32.]

These are truly interesting times in which to be experiencing. As the evolvement of these experiences begins to more directly impact your daily lives, you will be quite happy that you have made preparations for that which IS coming. We have "sounded the clarion" yet we witness that, for a large part of your population, it has fallen on "deaf" ears. Such is the challenge of the third-dimensional compression in which you ones find yourselves.

Perhaps the most interesting course of events to follow will be the "chain reaction" of events as the tapestry of interconnected events unravels. This is to say, again, that ALL IS CONNECTED TO ALL. The Native Americans have long tried to convey this concept.

From the perspective of an energy point of view, the intent is to exploit your world in such a manner as to keep the masses confused and off-balance, while the Elite of your world depopulate the planet with "natural" disasters. Plagues and famine are all about you. Throw in a few earthquakes, tsunamis, hurricanes, and volcanic eruptions—all timed with the collapse of the world economy—and you will have created quite a desperate situation on your planet.

These are planned and orchestrated events that will fool the majority of your population. However there are ones among the masses who are putting forth great effort towards exposing these elite would-be-kings. Certain confirmations of my claims shall come from ones who have researched smaller pieces of the whole picture.

We of the Hosts have done our assigned duties in sending forth The Word, as promised that it would be! It is up to each and every individual to choose that which they will do with the information offered.

We take no offence if you choose to ignore the warnings offered, for it is not our place to judge another. However, it does sadden us when we see ones turn away from their responsibilities, for we know the agreements and the soul-intent of each who has come to participate. Our challenge is to find a route that will communicate the Guidance for which you ones so often petition. Frequently we see ones receiving clues to that which they seek, yet these same ones do not pay attention to (or ignore) them—again, usually because of the implied responsibility that comes from acknowledging the information we send. So be it! And be careful about that which you ask, for what you will receive will most certainly not give-in to anyone's druthers for avoiding the responsible path.

Let us again, please, take this opportunity to "sound the clarion", for there is always the possibility that yet one more might wake-up enough to see, and thus prepare, for what is coming.

Let us take a moment to address the earthquake situation.

There has been, for the last 4 weeks, an ever increasing build-up of pressure around the western side of the Pacific Tectonic Plate, otherwise known as the "Ring of Fire". Remember that both the frequency and magnitude (intensity) of earthquake activity has been greatly increasing for some 24-36 months now. What we are referring to here is a big jump in that rate of increase during the last 4 weeks.

I ask for inclusion of the world earthquake activity map for just this past week [*see nearby*] covering 12/21/97 through 12/27/97. This map shows ONLY earthquake activity equal to or greater than a magnitude of 2.5 on your "discounted" measurement scale.

As an aside here, according to the numerical data which accompanies this map (accessed from the Internet), there were 1117 total events (earthquakes) this past week of magnitude 2.5 or greater. However, the data-handling capacity of the computer program which draws this internationally accessed map stops at 999 events (out of the 1117 total) so you are not seeing plotted on the map quite all of the activity. This situation is not a matter of incompetence by the ones who set up this collection operation; rather, there were so many earthquakes that the total number this past week EXCEEDED the capacity that was built into the data-collection machinery! THAT SITUATION, IN ITSELF, OUGHT TO BE A *BIG* CLUE TO YOU WHO PAY ATTENTION TO THE LITTLE DETAILS FOR YOUR CONFIRMATIONS!

The entire western side of the Pacific Plate is in an alarming state of upheaval. From the northeastern coast of Russia, down through Japan, and on around through the South Pacific islands, there are ever increasing numbers of "moderate" quakes in the 4-5 magnitude range.

The key here is the INCREASING numbers. This means that the pressure is continuing to build and is NOT relieving, despite all of the activity.

Now look to where the seismic events are migrating and you will see that the Asian continental plate is fracturing! Look closely at Gordon-Michael Scallion's *Future Map Of The World* and you will have great insight into the change that is coming. Are Scallion's maps 100% accurate? They are accurate enough so that you would be wise to study them and heed the warning offered. [*Editor's note: To order Scallion's* Future Map Of The World *or his* Future Map Of North America, *call 1-800-628-7493 or 1-603-256-6759 or write to Matrix Institute, P.O. Box 367, West Chesterfield, NH 03466-0367.*]

Shifting attention back to a discussion of the larger picture, there are other players in this "chess game" who are not so "hell-bent" on destroying the planet or enslaving its population. Never, never underestimate God's divine gamesmanship—especially when there is direct petition for Guidance and Assistance.

Ones are experiencing quite "unexplained" phenomena that triggers an Inner Knowing of what it is that they are involved in, and these ones, once touched in this manner, are not easily dissuaded from following what they know in their heart to be the "right" thing.

These are ones in very influential positions around the world and they are quite aware, for the most part, of the corruption and power struggles in play at this time. Be assured that God has the ultimate trump card and He will ultimately win—and do so with such style that all involved will grow in some way from having taken part in this experience.

It would be the better part of wisdom, for those of you who have not yet prepared, to do so NOW. Food, clean water, and shelter shall become quite scarce for many. Beans and rice can be procured in large quantities and are relatively inexpensive. If you have prepared for your own family, perhaps you can store extra for the neighbors. Only through true community effort will it be possible to physically survive that which is unfolding. [*See 72-Hour Kit Checklist.*]

May you ones effort to go within and commune with the Higher Guidance that is offered. Learn to trust the inner "gut" feelings. Please find comfort in knowing that you have within you the potential to overcome any and all challenges that cross your path. May you have the fortitude and wisdom to recognize the clues and answers to your prayers (petitions) when they are presented to you.

I am Toniose Soltec, come as a Messenger for our Father (He who created us) so that His promise to you would be fulfilled. It is within His Light that we all exist!

Salu.

world earthquake map

72-HOUR EMERGENCY KIT CHECKLIST

Water

Stored in a portable container; at least three gallons per person (for a three-day supply). Rotate regularly. Have water purification method(s) such as 10-12 drops (per gallon of stored water) of 35% food-grade hydrogen peroxide, plus water filtration equipment.

Food

Suitably packaged for long-term storage. Also cups, utensils, paper plates, can opener if needed.

Extra Clothing

A complete outfit of warm clothing for each family member. Include socks, underwear, walking shoes.

Warmth and Shelter

Coats, hats, scarves, and gloves for everyone. Include warm blankets (wool or emergency blankets are best). Rain ponchos, garbage bags, umbrellas to keep off the rain. Warm packs or other heat sources. Tent or tarp.

Light Sources

Flashlights with extra batteries, or chemical lightsticks. Flames from kerosene, propane lanterns require caution. Have at least two quick and safe light sources.

Tools

Pocket knife, camping shovel, duct tape, matches, pocket sewing kit, screwdriver, pry bar, hammer, etc.

Important Papers

Important documents (birth and marriage certificates, insurance forms, wills, etc.), addresses and phone numbers of relatives, and places to meet if separated.

Money

Store at least \$20.00 (CASH) per person. Be sure to include change, such as quarters for phone calls, etc.

First Aid Supplies

Pain relievers, bandages, antiseptics, clean cloths, burn ointment, rubbing alcohol, first-aid instruction manual. Include personal medications and prescriptions.

Special Needs

For babies: diapers, ointment, bottles, pacifiers, hand towels, special foods, other supplies. Consider needs of elderly, handicapped, or other special cases. Don't forget pets. Include pet foods and any medications they need. A pet carrier will be handy.

Stress Relievers

Card games, books, small hobbies, audio (music) tapes and player. For children: small toys, paper and pen, and favorite security items (blanket, stuffed toy or doll).

Communications

Portable radio with batteries (one requiring no batteries is best), signal mirrors, whistles, red flags, signal flares.

Personal Sanitation

Toothbrushes, mouth wash, hand soap, dish soap, razors, sanitary napkins, towels, toilet paper.

Portable Container(s)

Backpacks and duffel bags are ideal. Container should be light-weight, sturdy, water-proof, and easy to carry. Shoulder straps are best for traveling long distances.

Additional Items

Add as carrying weight and budget will allow. Extra food, camp stove, cooking equipment, tents, sleeping bags, sun block, insect repellant, portable toilet, additional tools (like axe for clearing fallen branches) and more sophisticated first-aid items including the *USArmy Survival Manual* (FM 21-76, available from Barnes & Noble Books).

CHAPTER 4

THE NEWS DESK by Dr. Al Overholt 1/3/98

SUIT CHALLENGES GOVERNMENT'S ROLE IN MEDICARE OPTION

UPDATE ON THIS STORY

From THE DAILY NEWS, Los Angeles, 12/31/97: [quoting]

A new federal law scheduled to take effect Thursday has set off a fierce dispute over the right of elderly people to choose their own health care and to negotiate fees with their doctors.

A conservative group that represents more than a half-million elderly people filed suit in Federal District Court here Tuesday to block the law, which was included in the balanced-budget bill signed last summer by President Clinton.

Republicans originally drafted the legislation to guarantee that doctors could sign private contracts with Medicare beneficiaries willing to pay more than the fees set by the government. But in an effort to protect elderly people against price gouging by doctors, Democrats insisted that Congress impose many restrictions on the use of such private contracts.

Plaintiffs in the lawsuit, led by the United Seniors Association, contend that the law, rather than protecting elderly patients, severely limits their right to use their own money to buy more health care, or pay higher fees, than Medicare deems appropriate.

The lawsuit is the opening salvo in what promises to be a long-running battle in federal courts and in Congress over the new law.

Sandra Butler, president of the association, asserted that the law would destroy "seniors' ability to pay the doctor of their choice, for services of their choice, without the interference of the federal government."

Medicare pays doctors according to a fee schedule and strictly limits their ability to charge higher fees even if Medicare patients are willing to pay more. Doctors say that patients are sometimes willing to pay two or three times the Medicare fee for the services of an eminent specialist.

Butler and many Republican members of Congress contend that Medicare beneficiaries need an unfettered right to sign private contracts with their doctors, even for services that would otherwise be covered by Medicare. They say such contracts will become increasingly important as the government is tempted to control costs by rationing care.

But Rep. Pete Stark, D-Calif., said that private contracts exposed patients to "extortion" by doctors. Sick

patients, fighting for their lives, are in a weak bargaining position and have no realistic opportunity to negotiate the terms of contracts with their doctors, Stark said.

Medicare finances health care for 38 million people who are elderly or disabled. It has a pervasive influence on the practice of medicine, extending far beyond the elderly, because most doctors receive some payments from Medicare.

The new law, the Balanced Budget Act of 1997, says a doctor may enter a private contract with a Medicare beneficiary for a specific item or service only if the doctor signs an affidavit promising not to file any claims with Medicare for any services provided to any patients for two years.

In other words, a doctor who signs even one private contract must agree to stay completely out of the Medicare program for two years. Few doctors are willing to make such a financial sacrifice. [End quoting]

Who do you trust the most, your doctor or the government? I feel most doctors would be far more trustworthy today if the government and the Rockefellers had kept their greedy hands out of the medical field.

I feel safer trusting a doctor, even today, more than I trust a greedy, lying, power-hungry government agent.

They didn't do this to protect the elderly—it was to cut money for Medicare and gain further control over the elderly.

ON JIANG ZEMIN'S VISIT

From THE FREE AMERICAN, Dec. 1997: [quoting]

On October 27, the stock market dropped 541.26 points. Bill Gates of Microsoft lost 1.75 BILLION dollars in a single day. As I write this, the market is supposedly rallying. This is primarily due to the large corporations, like IBM and AT&T, and investment funds buying back their own stocks to bolster confidence in the market. It may be that the crash we all expect, has been held off for a few more months, or even years, but I find the sudden drop extremely suspicious in lieu of the source of this mini-panic.

The talking heads on TV are all abuzz about this "market correction". The origin of this "domino effect" was a crash of the Hong Kong stock market. This news coincided with the arrival in the U.S. of Jiang Zemin, the "President" of the Republic of China.

Was this mini-crash created in much the same manner that the stock market crash of 1929 was engineered? It was reported that J.P. Morgan brought Winston Churchill to the floor of the stock market to witness the crash as a demonstration of the banker's power. Was this drop in the market the result of China flexing its economic muscle?

The free world (if there really is such an animal) watched silently as China assumed control of Hong Kong. Was the market crash there a result of that takeover or did China use its control to influence the market?

Since China's Communist government controls most of the industry within its borders, and heavily influenced our own elections with its wealth, this scenario cannot be ruled out.

It appears that Clinton is enamored of Jiang if not indebted to him.

President Clinton has warned Americans (the dissenting citizens) not to interfere with Jiang's visit. Demonstrations are being allowed but out of sight of Jiang. Clinton doesn't want the American people, still angry over Tiananmen Square, to publicly disagree with the architects of the revolution which killed and imprisoned millions of innocent Chinese people.

China is currently making a bundle on the American people (check out the tags on all of the merchandise in Walmart and the trade deficit between US and China) while rapidly acquiring our technology (ask Boeing how their plant in China is coming along), by stealth (ask the sales people in the booths at the electronic trade shows how closely they have to watch their Chinese shoppers) or by blatant influence buying. (See Senator Thompson's hearing transcripts if you require further proof!)

Likewise, the international corporations view China as the next great market. (After all, YOU already have a car, a toaster, a TV and a microwave.) To them, it is both a source of cheap labor and an unlimited new market. (Check the latest population figures for China, compare to the US.)

The question then arises, "Are we leading China down the road to democracy and freedom for the millions of Chinese people or are we being gently herded into the Chinese/Russian version of a 'New World Order'"?

Jiang was quoted as saying prior to his trip, "I hope the American people will understand that the U.S. democracy and freedom are not absolute concepts, and they must be brought into consistency with the economic development, history, cultural traditions and education of the people."

Freedom is not an absolute concept? Why must we be brought into consistency? Which people? Whose traditions? Whose History?

Following in the footsteps of his associates, like Wang Jun, Jiang is having tea with Clinton today. How many of you reading this are confident that your president is standing up to Jiang, telling him how OUR history and cultural traditions are far superior to the more recent standards imposed on the people of China by his revolution? Do you think Clinton is hammering Jiang to release the political prisoners rotting in Chinese jails? Grant more freedoms? Hold honest elections? Quit backing North Korea's nuclear bomb projects? Give up on re-acquiring Taiwan?

I don't think so!

A more likely scenario:

Jiang: "Is it OK to talk in here?"

Clinton: "You think I'm an idiot like Nixon? No way. I have the KGB come in and sweep the place twice

a day. Haven't had any problems since I got rid of that damn Aldrich. He was always hassling my guys, about shit like security clearances."

Jiang: "My congratulations on your election."

Clinton: "Couldn't have done it without your help. Americans are so tight these days."

Jiang: "We are pleased with your progress. The implementation of the internal security is going right on schedule. The demonization and demoralization of the nationalists is going well. We are also impressed with the balance of trade and the realignment of industry to our sector. I am a little disappointed with the failure to institute the ID-card systems and the removal of weapons from your people."

Clinton: "Hey, I've done more than the last three presidents, haven't I?" I got the Terrorist Bill pushed through! I've managed to get enough new federal crimes on the books that it won't be long before no American will be able to own a gun. They won't be able to spit without getting a felony on their record. Hell, I've already got more of 'em in our work camps than you do!"

Jiang: "Speaking of the Terrorist Bill, initially, I thought the bombing was a master stroke, but there is still entirely too much personal freedom here. The story is unraveling. The state of Oklahoma is investigating your investigators. Magazines like this *Free American* are appearing on the newsstands beside *Time* and *Newsweek*."

Clinton: "I'm aware of the problem. He sends me one every month. But I've got this guy listed as "armed and dangerous". The FBI's Domestic Terrorist Task Force is almost together. I could send them in but, hell, the guy doesn't print that many and, he lives way out in the desert."

Jiang: "Why are you making excuses?"

Clinton: "Hell, I like the way he writes! OK?" [End quoting]

Why should Clinton hammer at any other country about civil rights after what he did at Ruby Ridge, Waco and Oklahoma City? This is political double-speak at its finest.

ANOTHER GOVERNMENT ASSAULT/INSULT

Be Aware Of "Dirty-Tricksters-Banksters"!

From a FAX sent by Angie Carlson, 12/17/97: [quoting]

It's an interesting trap—and one that is very dangerous. The banks have to report the transaction, but they don't havo to tell you that you do, also. You have to report it—or you're a criminal.

And, the teller can make a bundle for turning you in.

Early in 1997, the latest in a string of government regulations that target ordinary citizens took effect. Because of this you could be liable for serious trouble without any idea you had done anything. Imagine this scenario:

You need to send your brother money for a family emergency.

You walk into your bank and purchase a \$3500 money order, with money from your savings account. The teller handles your transaction and says nothing. You drop it in the mail and quickly forget about it. A few days later, you're arrested; and every penny in your savings account—your major life savings—is seized.

You're convicted of a felony—failure to file a "currency transaction report" (CTR), IRS Form 4789. The bank could have done it for you, but under the law it's your responsibility—and the teller stands to make a fortune if you don't report it. [End quoting]

This is one more law to rob you and at the same time make you a criminal so they can legally enslave you. They are passing many of these kinds of laws so that you **can't possibly live without becoming a criminal.**

BIG TROUBLE—COMING FAST!

Excerpted from CONSPIRACY NATION, 12/97: [quoting]

...I wonder whether when J. Anthony Lukas decided on the title *Big Trouble* for his book, about the assassination of Idaho ex-Governor Frank Steunenberg in 1905, he was thinking "Big Trouble **then;** Big Trouble now". (The book is about much more than the assassination. It takes several detours in which it sketches labor troubles of that time.) We certainly have "big trouble" these days, with the working people of America struggling to make ends meet. True, there is plenty of "money" and credit being pumped into the economy (unlike ca. 1866-1893), so Bill Clinton and other flunkeys can say, "Hey. The economy is good." **Good for whom?** According to *The Nation* magazine (10/20/97), "The estimated combined wealth of the *Forbes* 400 increased 31 percent, from \$477 billion in 1996 to upwards of \$624 billion this year." Meanwhile, **from dire necessity**, millions of American families must have both husband and wife now as wage-earners. This situation is touted as a **bold New Day**(tm), with the women now "liberated" to work outside the home. Over 1 million Americans are warehoused in prisons, and more prisons are being built. The "good" economy uses many of these prisoners as dirt-cheap labor. They compete with illegal immigrants who, along with "liberated" women, have hugely increased the labor pool. But with over a million bankruptcies last year, it seems the "good times" are ending. We've got **Big Trouble.** [End quoting]

It is always encouraging to find others spreading the truth.

THE FOUR STAGES OF LIFE AFTER DEATH

From NEW DAWN, Nov./Dec. 1997: [quoting]

Despite rumors to the contrary, Elizabeth Kubler-Ross, the Swiss psychiatrist whose 1969 book, *On Death and Dying*, brought the subject to the mainstream, is still very much alive and well. In fact, she has just written her autobiography, *The Wheel Of Life*. In it, she marks the four stages of life after death, based on her interviews with more than 20,000 patients:

—Phase 1: Leave the physical body. No matter what the cause of death, the recently deceased are aware of the scene they just left. They assume an ethereal existence and exprine a wholeness.

—Phase 2: Meet guides. Leaving body behind, the deceased enter a state defined as "spirit and energy". Angels or guides comfort them and introduce them to previously deceased relatives and friends. It is a time of "cheerful reunion".

—Phase 3: Enter the tunnel. People report feeling excitement, tranquillity and the anticipation of going home. No matter what their religious background, all agree that seeing the light taught them there is only one explanation for the meaning of life, and that is love.

—Phase 4: In the presence of a higher Source. In this state, people go through a life review to see what they made of God's greatest gift—free will. They are asked: "What service have you rendered?" Their answer determines whether or not they learned the lessons they were supposed to learn, the ultimate being unconditional love.

After her many years of working with the dying, Kubler-Ross leaves us with these thoughts on the subject: "I have no doubt that there's life after death. I always say that death can be one of the greatest experiences ever. It's like walking through a door and to the next room, except the next room is much, much better than this one. There's no pain and no anxiety. Live honestly and full so that you don't look back and regret that you've wasted your life." [End quoting]

She's painting a rosy picture which I feel for many won't be true.

We will receive on the other side of the veil what we earned on this side of it. If you are honest with yourself you'll know this. Is it any wonder there are so many people who are afraid of dying, considering their behavior?

RUSSIAN MAC ATTACK

From NEW DAWN, Nov./Dec. 1997: [quoting]

The leader of Russia's Liberal Democratic Party Vladimir Zhirinovsky made known his distaste for damaging Western food imports by tearing apart and trampling on a Big Mac.

As part of a campaign to limit imports of poor quality foodstuffs, Mr. Zhirinovsky said his party would demand the expulsion of ambassadors from Britain and Belgium, "the main exporters of poisonous beef".

He was referring to the 'mad cow' disease crisis earlier this year and reports that British beef had been illegally exported to Russia through Belgium.

In front of a McDonald's restaurant in central Moscow on 27 August, Mr. Zhirinovsky declared that the golden arches were a symbol of Western decadence.

"This is not real meat," he said as he ripped apart the burger. [End quoting]

No wonder Zhirinovsky is such a dark horse among Soviet politicians.

BILL CLINTON'S NEW FRIENDS

From NEW DAWN, Nov./Dec. 1997: [quoting]

There's good news for those of you who have lain awake worrying about whether U.S. President Bill Clinton will find happiness after his term expires.

The President has been making new friends. On top of the many bonds he has made in political circles, he has now made what the *Wall Street Journal* describes as "a remarkable circle of wealthy friends" who vacation with him regularly at Martha's Vineyard. The *Journal* says there has been a real "synergy to these relationships" with leading financiers and CEO's leading to a virtual "tycoon lovefest".

This rebirth of Woodstock is a result, they say, of mutual admiration. The rich respect what Clinton has done for them. The President "relishes the lifestyle these people lead," so much so, that the President is described as "diligently networking for the next phase of his life".

[*It is*] (s)o instructive to learn that whoever you are, networking with those higher up the foodchain remains important. [End quoting]

CALIFORNIA DREAMIN'

From THE AMERICAN SPECTATOR, The Prowler section, Jan. 1998: [quoting]

Enroute to the former Soviet Union in November, first lady Hillary Clinton told staffers on her plane that husband Bill is favoring a move to California after he leaves the White House. As well as being closer to Chelsea at Stanford, and the opportunity for year-round golf, California offers an abundance of high-end, corporate law practices that will pay to have his name on the door. "We've got to go where the money is," Hillary said, "but we don't want to live in Washington." Wherever they go, they'll have to buy a house—the only residence they own is the president's mother's cabin. The Prowler hears that Clinton pals in both Hollywood and Santa Barbara have offered to help finance a new home for the loving couple. The thinking seems to be, if Ron and Nancy got away with it, why shouldn't they? [End quoting]

Bill and Hillary—Always Sniff Out And Go For The MONEY, no matter the cost!

Didn't the Clintons' buddies tell them their plans to drop California and a bunch of their Khazarain buddies into the ocean **before the year 2000**?

GEM OF THE DAY

From UNKNOWN newsclip: [quoting]

(Credit Dorothy Parker): If you think there is some good in everybody, let me remind you that you haven't met everybody. [End quoting]

For those readers who don't know who Dorothy was: She was a very famous humorist and newspaper columnist several decades back. As such, she had an excellent knowledge base from which to come to her conclusion. She paid the ultimate price for this knowledge—**she was murdered.**

<u>"LIAR BILL" TELLS THE TRUTH</u> Can you believe it?

From THE FREE AMERICAN, Dec. 1997: [quoting]

"Nearly everyone will lie to you given the right circumstances." -Bill Clinton, Time magazine

Bill, of all people, ought to know! [End quoting]

UPDATE ON NEW RIVER

From a FAX, sent by Jerry White, 12/22/97: [quoting]

Las Vegas, Nevada, 21 December 1997 Joseph M. Arpaio Maricopa County Sheriff 102 West Madison Phoenix, Arizona 85003

Re: NEW RIVER, ARIZONA, MARICOPA COUNTY

Dear Sheriff Joe,

I have read in many publications over the years that you claim to be the "TOUGHEST SHERIFF IN AMERICA". In as much as John McGaw and his jack-booted raiders have unlawfully invaded your county, NOW IS THE TIME FOR YOU TO PROVE THAT YOU HAVEN'T BEEN JUST BRAG-GING. I would say that it is time for you "to either fish or cut bail". If you did not have your fingers crossed when you took your oath of office, then you are now in violation of your oath. Right now you should show the people of Maricopa County that you have the TESTICLES to handle the sheriff's job or start wearing a dress so it will be easier for you to squat to urinate. If you do not understand the duties of a county sheriff, then I would suggest that you might contact the sheriff of BIG HORN COUNTY, WYOMING and/or the sheriff of OWYHEE COUNTY, IDAHO. These two sheriffs and possibly/probably many more in these States, united, have gone on record as understanding their duties and their intentions of upholding their oath of office when it comes to protecting the soviergenty of their individual counties.

It appears that the Governor of Arizona, JANE DEE HULL, has shown more fortitude than you have in this case, and as far as I know, she has never bragged about how TOUGH she is.

SHERIFF JOE, YOU ARE THE FINAL LAW OF MARICOPA COUNTY if you have the "GUTS" that it takes to be a county sheriff.

I sincerely hope that you either decide to act as a Sheriff or admit that you do not have what it takes to be a County Sheriff and resign so that someone that might have what it takes can assume your vacated office. YOU HAVE THE POWER TO PREVENT ANOTHER "RUBY RIDGE" OR "WACO"—TWO SLAUGHTERS THAT WERE CAUSED BY THE B.A.T.F.

Respectfully,

Jerry White 1888 Catalpa Trail Las Vegas, Nevada 89108

cc to: [Many others] [End quoting]

There seem to be very few sheriffs who have the guts to stand up against the Feds and their intimidation and blackmail even if they don't agree with them.

Don't forget the great excuse for shirking their duty: "I have a family and kids to think about."

THE GLOBAL POVERTY INITIATIVE

From THE FREE AMERICAN, Dec. 1997: [quoting]

The UN Development Program has a new plan to erase poverty worldwide. The "Global Poverty Initiative" will bring 100 cities together in a call for action. World wide wealth is estimated at \$25 trillion even while there is more poverty than ever. [End quoting]

This plan to erase poverty includes killing off more than 80% of the population over the next couple of years. All of the poverty and the bugs—viruses, etc.—the UN and others are creating and using are part of this plan.

ANOTHER EARTH FOUND IN OUR SOLAR SYSTEM

From THE STRATEGY, Australia, Nov. 1997: [quoting]

The Australian, New Zealand and the Pacific UFO Hotline, monitored today at 10:15 UTC the following statement from Russia's *Voice of Russia*, *World News Service*.

VoR reports that information to hand says our solar system has two EARTHS. The information said, a planet whose mass and dimensions equal our home planet is located behind the Sun, on the other side of the solar system, it never shows up because it takes it, and EARTH exactly the same time to orbit the Sun. None the less, it can be seen if a space satellite with a telescope aboard is launched towards MARS or VENUS.

To hear a copy of this statement call Ross Dowe on 190-224-3529. [End quoting]

Hatonn gave us this information many years ago.

It's good that others are willing to put forth this information.

I wonder how the astrologers will handle this. It seems to me it will mess up all of their charts.

MONKEYS ARE GIVEN HEAD TRANSPLANTS

From THE STRATEGY, Australia, Nov. 1997: [quoting]

Surgeons have transplanted monkeys' heads on to fresh bodies, paving the way for a new era in human transplant technology.

By maintaining the brain stem, which deals with reflexes such as breathing, heart function and digestion, the research team has been able to keep the new brain supplied with fresh, oxygenated blood.

A series of experiments involving up to 30 animals has allowed surgeons to perfect a technique of minimizing loss of blood supply to the heads during severance operations.

The researchers also believe there was little disturbance to the monkeys' higher brain functions as a result of the procedure.

The animals were able to maintain the cycle of waking and sleeping. They were capable of visually tracking laboratory staff and could react to voices and noises.

Their facial nerves were still operational and they could eat and drink normally.

THINK ABOUT IT! WHAT NEXT? [End quoting]

A month or two ago there was an episode on *The Learning Channel* (TLC) on TV about this and they showed them working on the monkeys in the lab.

Why aren't the animal-rights groups yelling their heads off over this? NASA PLANS MEGA BALLOON

Excerpted from THE ORLANDO SENTINEL, 12/23/97: [quoting]

A balloon taller than a 30-story building and wider than 100 yards will be built by NASA to carry instruments to near the edge of space.

The balloon will carry more weight higher and fly longer than any other scientific balloon, said Jack Tueller, a Goddard Space Flight Center astrophysicist and chief project scientist for the Ultra Long Duration

Balloon Project.

The balloon would lift about 3,000 pounds more than 22 miles high and would stay aloft for 100 days, long enough to circle the globe about five times if the winds are right. [End quoting]

Can you imagine them using "horse and buggy" technology in the spaceage? What shows the Elite will put on to keep their advanced tecnology under cover from the sheeple.

MAYOR SAVES TOWN MONEY BY ENDING PROPERTY TAX

Excerpted from THE ORLANDO SENTINEL, 12/23/97: [quoting]

FORT LAWN, S.C.—Mayor Earl Thrailkill wanted to save taxpayers a few dollars. And he found just the ticket: a whole year without property taxes for this town of 780 residents in Chester County. Thrailkill said town officials discovered that abolishing the property tax actually would save money. Fort Lawn collects \$42,000 in a local sales tax and about \$20,000 in property taxes. But the town must give more than \$20,000 of the sales tax to the state. If the town doesn't have a property tax, it can keep all \$42,000 of the local sales tax. [End quoting]

Maybe many other local governments can find similar laws that will save some of the enslavement taxes for their citizens.

GLOBAL WARMING PACT IS SHELVED

Sensing Anger On Hill, Clinton Delays Action

From a FAX sent by N. McLaughlin, 12/18/97: [quoting]

The Clinton administration will delay submitting a global climate pact to a hostile Congress indefinitely while it rounds up more promises from developing countries to match U.S. emissions cuts.

"As we said from the very beginning, we will not submit this agreement for ratification until key developing nations participate in this effort," Vice President Al Gore said on Dec. 11, briefing reporters on the 160-plus-nation deal reached in Kyoto, Japan, hours earlier.

The administration "will bring it up in '99 when the details of Kyoto are forgotten," said one GOP aide privately.

Senate Republican leadership aides said that putting the treaty on ice gives Mr. Gore and the administration a chance to sell the plan, delays a potentially embarrassing vote for Democrats, and keeps the issue alive for the 2000 presidential election. [End quoting]

Don't think he'll give up. Bill and his henchmen will probably get together in the middle of the night

sometime soon and pass it-we'll never know about it until we see the results.

MINIMUM SELF-STEERING ABS

From Popular Science, Jan. 1998: [quoting]

An advanced generation of antilock brakes developed by ITT's automotive division provides yet more control in stopping a vehicle under slippery conditions.

The new system senses when a car is oversteering (starting to spin out) or understeering (losing steering control) under hard braking on slippery roads. The system corrects the understeer by reducing the braking force on the front wheels. It corrects oversteer by braking one rear wheel harder than the other.

Key to the system is a yaw sensor, developed by ITT, that determines the rate the car is turning.

A test on ice demonstrated the ability to maintain steering control under hard braking, dramatically improving the ability to avoid an obstacle while slowing down. [End quoting]

Sounds great—especially for front-wheel-drive vehicles.

VOLUSIA SCHOOLCHILDREN DIG UP SOME FOUL STUFF

From THE ORLANDO SENTINEL, 12/8/97: [quoting]

Students at Discovery Elementary prepared embalmed fryer chickens last year as a class project. Wednesday they dug them up. Their aim was recreate the ancient Egyptian practice of mummification.

"I wanted the students to get a basic understanding of ancient cultures and some of the customs," said teacher Deborah Marino, who organized the lesson for two third-grade classes last year.

There were no elaborate tombs for burying the four raw chickens, just holes in the ground at the Deltona school.

Parent Jean Walker, who uncovered the bird dubbed "King Tut" grasped the chicken by its wings, holding it up for all to see.

The fowl was brownish black and smelled like fermented garbage, which had children plugging their noses and pulling shirts over their faces.

"It's disgusting," said Candice Sereneta, 9.

In spite of the stench, the kids were excited.

"It's fun finding stuff," said Justin Rhodes, 9. [End quoting]

Why can't teachers use the little time they have with their students to teach them about living and life instead of ancient methods of burial. Instead the students come out of school and can't read or add well and many are not even able to get a decent job.

THAT MAN IN HEAVEN

From THE NORTHWEST ARKANSAS OPINION, 8/13/97: [quoting]

Nearly five years have passed since the event I like to think of as "Hillary's Revelation".

No, I'm not talking about that Hillary. I mean little Hillary Stone, the precocious daughter of our county reporter Lori Harrison Stone.

At the time, Hillary was not quite 3. She and her mother were having a discussion about Heaven in which Hillary was explaining how she looked forward to returning to Heaven one day.

Lori was humoring her when from out of the blue, her little girl added, "That man in Heaven told me to pick you out."

Confused, Lori asked, "What man?"

"That man in the picture in the hallway," Hillary said.

Lori asked Hillary to show her the picture she was talking about.

They walked around the corner together where Hillary pointed to a picture of Lori's late father, Bill Harrison. He had died four years earlier, or a year before Hillary had been born.

"Him, Mommy, that's the man who told me when I was still back in Heaven to pick you out, so I did," she said.

Hillary, now 8, doesn't recall that day, I suppose much like none of us recall learning to walk.

But the message understandably remains with Lori each day. And now that I have told you, it is also something for you to save. [End quoting]

"Out of the mouth of babes" comes much truth.

LIVING PROOF

From ANGELS ON EARTH, JAN/FEB 1998, Guideposts, 39 Seminary Hill Rd., Carmel, NY 10512: [quoting]

"No Chad," I snapped, spotting my energetic little boy racing for the front door as it closed. "You can't go with your sister." Chad ran to the window and knocked on the glass. Shauna waved before she ran off

down the street to play with her friends. At two-and-a-half, Chad was a handful. Trying to keep him out of mischief and danger, I'd nailed drawers shut, built a wooden box over the TV knobs and duct-taped safety plugs into the electrical outlets. For nearly two years, since I'd suffered a slipped disk and had to leave my job, Chad and Shauna had been my responsibility at home. My wife, Lori, worked at her gift shop, which specialized in angel items: books, cards, ceramics, jewerly—everything she could find to offer her customers some of the glory she found in these heavenly beings. Lori saw angels as symbols of God's love; to me they were merely a source of income. My day was consumed by more practical matters; namely, making sure Chad stayed out of trouble or worse.

I watched him at the window that morning, tears welling up in his green eyes. *I'll never be good at this househusband thing*, I thought.

Suddenly Chad streaked away from the window and up the stairs. Just walking was an effort since my injury; running was out of the question. I went after my son as fast as I could. It was another long day.

When we picked up Lori in the evening, I decided to treat my family to dinner at the Burger King near her shop. After we finished eating, Lori and I talked while Shauna and Chad played around a partition near our table. Then Shauna came back and plopped down in her chair. I got up to get Chad.

The second I reached the partition I heard the restaurant's door click shut. I looked across the dining room through the wall of glass windows at the traffic streaming by on Lincoln Avenue. There was Chad. He'd already bounded across the sidewalk and was ready to step into the street.

I'd never get to him in time. "Please, God," I begged, "he's just a baby. Don't take him now." Instinctively, I started to run, and amazingly, my body obeyed. But I couldn't feel my feet hit the floor. A force seemed to lift me by the seat of my pants, propelling me toward the door. I kept my eyes on Chad. He stepped off the curb, and headlights loomed toward him in the dark. "No!"

In the blink of an eye I reached Chad. I scooped him up with one arm, whirled and made for the curb. The car sped past, missing us by inches.

Neither Lori nor I could find words to talk about the incident. The next day seemed like any other. I tried keeping pace with Chad, my body struggling with the limitations I knew so well. How had I suddenly become so agile and strong in those crucial moments the night before? My son was living proof that it had happened. When we picked up Lori that night at her shop I asked her to tell me more about angels. Surely God had told them about me. —Mark Shields [End quoting]

Can we ever hear enough about God's personal love for us?

CHAPTER 5

BANKS, BANKSTERS & MONEY WHAT YOU DON'T KNOW CAN ENSLAVE YOU! PART VI IN A SERIES by Calvin Burgin 11/14/97

The following is Part VI of the excellent investigative historical series from Calvin Burgin which began in the 11/18/97 issue of CONTACT as the Front Page story.

ASSASSINATION ATTEMPTS ON FORD

Sara Jane Moore took a shot at President Ford in San Francisco on September 22, 1975. Unlike the incident 17 days earlier with "Squeaky" Fromme, the attempt by Mrs. Moore was real. Had President Ford gone across the street as planned to mingle with the crowd, he would have gone exactly where she stood patiently waiting with her gun, which she had picked out for purchase the previous day with a *United States Treasury agent* by her side. You may have heard of all the accounts of her attempts to get arrested ahead of time and her unsuccessful efforts to stop herself. But she truly could not help herself, because she was electronically brainwashed and programmed as an assassin by Rockefeller Intelligence agents.

On October 14, 1975, still another odd occurrence happened to President Ford. He was involved in a traffic accident, so-called, as his motorcade drove through downtown Hartford, Connecticut. And for the third time in a row, an apparent brush with possible death by the President was caught beautifully by the TV news cameras which just happened to be riding in the motorcade this time, three cars behind the President. The limousine President Ford was riding in was supposedly the same one J.F.K. rode in when he was killed, but 90% rebuilt. Due to the accident, it would, of course, have to go into the Ford Motor Company shops for repair in Detroit. Did it return to service, outfitted once again as a murder car as it was that day of November 22, 1963, in Dallas? After all, the Rockefeller Brothers have a habit of using any trick that proves successful over and over again.

Meanwhile, the Fort Knox Gold story had taken a deadly new turn; and, as before, Congress was doing absolutely nothing about it. The Central Core Vault of the Bullion Depository at Fort Knox contained canisters of liquid radioactive superpoison processed from Plutonium 239, the deadliest substance imaginable. These canisters were leaking due to corrosion, and the radioactive leakage was escaping through the porous concrete walls of the Vault and through the dehumidifying system and getting out into the countryside to be carried away on the winds, contrary to what officials tell you. The prevailing winds in that area for the past several years had been very unusual—from essentially due west rather than from the northwest, as is more common. As a result, the thin invisible fog of radioactive poison from Fort Knox was being carried from the Depository (which is located south of Louisville) eastward in the general direction of Lexington and West Virginia, and onward approximately toward Washington, D.C.; and this leakage has already been going on for several years in sufficient quantity to be having an initial impact on health statistics now.

Beter said that his own investigators reported to him that many doctors in the region east of Fort Knox were baffled by a large increase in the incidence of cancers of all types; and on November 7, 1975, the Government itself released statistics that show the same thing. The National Cancer Institute announced that so far that year the cancer death rate nation-wide was up by 5.2%. This is five times the rate of increase that has prevailed over a period of many years, and they frankly admitted that they were at a loss to explain it. But buried in those same official Government statistics is a regional breakdown, and that east-central states containing Fort Knox and the area east of it shows an astronomical 17 to 18% increase!

On November 12, 1975, the *Louisville Courier-Journal* broke the Fort Knox plutonium story on its front page, in the best traditions of newspaper reporting. Another publication that covered the story was *Myers Finance and Energy*.

In his Oct. 31, 1975 issue Mr. Myers capped off a story on Fort Knox by quoting the following letter of an associate of Dr. Beter, Mr. Ed Durell, to the Acting Director of the Mint:

"I now ask you for the record, please, to confirm or deny the existence of the Central Core Vault at the U.S. Bullion Depository at Fort Knox, Ky. I refer to the single, large, centrally located underground chamber serviced by elevator.

"Why can't the Acting Director of the Mint answer simply YES or NO? The whole nation is asking a question. Why won't they answer?"

They received a dead silence from the Government. Myers also asked: "What then is Congress doing? Is it, too, just writing off 9,000,000 people rather than sound the alarm and get the deadly situation at Fort Knox corrected?"

The United States Government has to this day never admitted the existence of the Central Core Vault, which was not mentioned to the 100-odd visitors of Fort Knox on September 23, 1974. To admit its existence would all by itself prove that the so-called "Gold Inspection Visit" by Congressmen and newsmen was a total fraud, and also the so-called "Audit" done by the GAO and the Treasury together. And since the Central Core Vault is where the leaking plutonium poison is, they want desperately to keep you from knowing that the Vault exists.

In mid September Beter held private discussions with Congressman Pike about the situation at Fort Knox. At that time Beter did not yet know about the plutonium poison stored there, but did know that the CIA and FBI were tied in with the theft of America's gold from Fort Knox on behalf of the Rockefeller Brothers. Pike appeared to be generally interested and courageous as well—a quality which has virtually disappeared from the United States Congress today; but his major sticking point which he came back to time and time again was the Central Core Vault at Fort Knox. Its existence had never been admitted by the Government, so Congressman Pike could not believe that it did exist. The No. 1 requirement that he placed on Beter was, therefore, to prove that the Central Core Vault does exist.

Beter said: "So on September 26, 1975, we met again with Congressman Pike and two of his top staffers in his office, and this time we had with us no less than a former Commanding General of Fort Knox, Lieut. General John L. Ryan, Jr., U.S. Army (retired). General Ryan commanded Fort Knox from 1956 to 1959.

He had also served two earlier tours at Fort Knox, the first being in the late 1930's when he was placed in charge of the Army contingent that was assigned to help store the nation's gold in the Bullion Depository for the very first time. All of the gold was put in the Central Core Vault at that time, it having been constructed specifically for that purpose. The many small jail-cell-like storage compartments seen by the Fort Knox visitors last year were also in existence at that time but were not intended for the storage of gold but for other valuables. General Ryan stated that for the entire duration of his long experience with Fort Knox, the gold was always kept in the Central Core Vault. He also said he was mystified as to why the gold would ever have been removed from the Central Core Vault and placed in the small jail-cell compartments on the levels above, which offer a much lower degree of security.

"Congressman Pike then asked us for certain further information, including specific connections between the Fort Knox affair and the Intelligence community which is within the jurisdiction of Congressman Pike's Committee. We agreed to provide what he asked, and it was in following up the connection between Fort Knox and the Intelligence industry that my sources informed me of the hideous plutonium poison in the Bullion Depository at Fort Knox.

"But when we returned to Congressman Pike ready to provide witnesses and other evidence about the plutonium and other things, Mr. Pike's response had changed. It is now the classical position that is always used to say 'good-bye' on Capitol Hill, quote: 'We're too busy to work on this.'"

THE PLUTONIUM SAGA CONTINUES

During the early and mid 1960s, over 200 pounds of plutonium superpoison was made for the CIA and FBI Intelligence communities. It was processed in four plants—two in Louisville, Kentucky, one in North Dakota, and one in Southern California. One thing it is handy for, in very small doses, is putting trouble-some individuals out of the way. But why so much plutonium poison? For political blackmail!

In 1966 the CIA divided up this poison and sent about 60 pounds to each of four Latin American countries—Peru, Panama, Bolivia, and Argentina. There threats were made that it would be used to contaminate United States-planned and built water aqueduct systems—can you imagine?—unless certain political and economic actions were taken. In Argentina this successfully laid the foundation for the return to power of the Peron group; and then the poison was no longer needed there, and so it was returned to the United States in 1968.

But a problem arose: where to store this illegal nuclear poison? CIA agents within the Treasury, however, knew that the Central Core Vault at the Fort Knox Bullion Depository was being emptied of gold and suggested that it be stored there. This was done with all but 12 grams (less than half an ounce), which the CIA extracted from one canister to experiment with. This 12-gram sample of the plutonium poison, whose full effects still were not fully understood at that time, was taken to the White Sands Proving Grounds in New Mexico for evaluation purposes.

During the experiment there, about 3 grams 'accidentally' leaked into an underground water supply which was being used by 12 families in that sparsely settled area. All of them died quickly from the poison; and the CIA mounted an elaborate cover-up, burying those innocent victims secretly. Perhaps you will recall, in fact, some strange news items several years ago about the sudden disappearance of some ranch folk out West, a disappearance that never was explained. Well, now you know what happened.

November 8, 1975, a secret meeting was held in the White House to discuss alternative means of disposing of the deadly poison. The discussion included some ideas that would be as insane as the poison itself such as dumping all 60 pounds of it into the underground streams that lie under Fort Knox. Not only might this allow the poison to spread uncontrollably from there, but it could possibly also cause contamination of any of the huge underground caverns under Fort Knox which are used for natural gas storage. Now if this were to happen, natural gas could carry traces of the radioactive plutonium poison straight into the industrial plants and homes of thousands of people in that area. The deadly plutonium radiation would be unaffected by passing through gas flames, after which it could be inhaled or set on to food.

Beter received updated information to the effect that the poison is now spreading throughout the entire Southeast of the United States and even beginning to enter the Gulf of Mexico.

POISONING OFFICIALLY DENIED

Beter was able to extract a letter from Mrs. Mary Brooks, the Director of the Mint, dated November 21, 1975, indirectly through Congressman Kenneth Robinson of Virginia.

As you read the letter, try, if you can, to find any clear-cut YES-or-NO-type answer to anything. You will only find one to the effect that a certain statement, and I quote: "is simply not true." But the statement referred was a carefully selected misstatement of charges by someone else. Now here's the letter: [quot-ing]

Dear Mr. Robinson:

Thank you for your letter of November 10, 1975, concerning allegations that plutonium-239 was stored in the so-called Central Core Vault at the United States Bullion Depository, Fort Knox, Kentucky.

We do not store plutonium-239 or any other radioactive substance at the Depository, and have no reason to believe that it is stored there by other government agencies. We authorized the Military at Fort Knox to make radiation tests in the Depository last week. We were informed that the tests did not disclose any evidence of radioactive material.

The allegations relating to the so-called Central Core Vault are carried in a Swiss Newsletter entitled *Myers Finance and Energy* that is currently being circulated by those who have persisted with all the wild allegations about the Bullion Depository at Fort Knox. The Newsletter discusses Dr. Peter D. Beter's allegations and states (and the letter quotes as follows):

"In 1942-43 Major Stanley Tatom designed and oversaw the construction of a Central Core Vault below the Main Vault. To get to this ultrasafe vault, an elevator had to be installed and it used up the space occupied by 12 of the former Vault compartments. This explains why the numbering in the Vault compartments upstairs had a 12-digit gap.

"This statement is simply not true. There were no major alterations to the Vault after construction of the Depository was completed in 1936. The elevator was installed at the time the Depository was constructed. We have no record of Major Stanley Tatom designing or overseeing the construction of a Central Core

Vault. In fact we do not, and find no record that we ever did, refer to any part of the Depository by that name.

"The Visitors Log at the Depository does show the name of Major Daniel F. Tatum as calling on the officer in charge on July 29, 1942. We also have records which show that a steel door was erected by the Champion Wire & Iron Works, Louisville, Kentucky, at the entrance to the corridor that leads to Compartments numbered 1 through 14 in the basement level of the Depository. This work was completed on January 7, 1942, and the No. 15 was assigned to the door. After this work was completed, gold was stored in the corridor for a time during which the door was locked and sealed." Still quoting from her letter: The allegation that there is a 12-digit gap in the numbering of compartments is also inaccurate. Our records show that the Depository had 28 compartments, 14 on the lower level and 14 on the upper level at the time of construction. The compartments on the lower level were numbered 1 through 14, and the corridor door was numbered 15 when it was added in 1942. The compartments on the upper level were numbered 21 through 34. There is no record of the numbers 16 through 20 ever being used on Vault compartments of the Depository.

If I could be of further assistance in this matter, please let me know.

Sincerely,

/s/Mary Brooks, Director of the Mint

[End quoting]

This letter was the product of a year-and-a-half of continuous effort on their part to refine their story and put their very best foot forward. It was written with great care, with careful choice of every word. The letter was not even written by Mary Brooks alone. Much of it was written by an official in the General Accounting Office who has ties to the Intelligence industry. The GAO itself is implicated in the Fort Knox cover-up through the falsified Gold Audit done in the fall of 1974, so this letter is important, and it deserves closer examination.

First: Why did the Government deliberately go so far out of its way, to Switzerland no less, to find someone else's misstatement of the Bullion Depository modifications so that they can attack that instead of refuting Beter's own statements? As Beter clearly stated, the Central Core Vault was built into the Depository at the start. Major Tatom's job later on was to build a rapid retrieval system into the Gold Vault, not to build the Vault itself. He also explained that there is a gap of six digits, not 12, on each floor of Vault compartments.

Notice also, in trying to wave aside references to Major Stanley Tatom, how cleverly it is done! We can prove that he was there and did oversee the work on the rapid retrieval system, and apparently the Government knows we can. Therefore the following sentence is used to mislead without actually lying:

"We have no record of Major Stanley Tatom designing or overseeing the construction of a Central Core Vault." Of course they don't, because that is just not what he did. He built a rapid retrieval system to give

access to the Central Core Vault. The writers of the letter included one other item which was intended to help throw everyone off the track, but actually does just the opposite. According to Beter's sources, during the work on the rapid retrieval system in 1942-43, the disruption was so great that the gold was taken out of the Central Core Vault and, quote: piled around in the corridors. Now we are told in this letter about the strange corridor door, which was installed for unstated reasons. Listen again to these astonishing words from Mrs. Brooks' letter:

"This work was completed on January 7, 1942, and the No. 15 was assigned to the door. After this work was completed, gold was stored in the corridor for a time during which the door was locked and sealed." Mrs. Brooks does not tell us for how long a time, much less why!

Look at all the assertions and denials that are all couched in the words, quote: "Our records show..." or "We have no record..."—this coming from the same office whose records were so suspect in other ways.

Records of the quality of gold stored in Fort Knox and elsewhere, disagreed with one another in glaring ways. The official Mint records omit shipments. Even the case of the missing experimental aluminum pennies is another example of the 'dependability' of United States Mint records.

But notice also that the letter spends the least time on the most important matter of all—the radioactive plutonium poison stored in the Central Core Vault. It is stated that the radiation tests by the Military, quote: "...did not disclose any evidence of radioactive material." In much the same vein, and with similar bureaucratic phrases like, quote: "We have no evidence...," the Kentucky Department of Human Resources claims that there is nothing to worry about. But, my friend, plutonium radiation is very hard to detect, yet very deadly if it gets inside your body. Experts sum it up with the phrase:

"If there is enough plutonium to detect, it is already too much." Therefore nothing less than a serious, comprehensive, honest check by top experts with the best equipment available can be considered satisfactory. The stakes for over 36-million Americans in the Southeast United States are too high to settle for less. The United States Government expects you to just take their word for it regardless of what they may tell you. No proof, no criteria, just believe what they say.

It's sad that we have to look overseas to see any meaningful reporting about the Fort Knox plutonium disaster. In the *Financial Times of London* for Thursday December 11, 1975, the story was broken by C. Gordon Tether, whose financial column was read the world over. In his article titled "A New Twist Of Fort Knox Saga", he reviews the Fort Knox Gold Scandal cover-up and then informs his readers of the latest charges concerning plutonium. He ends the article with words that no columnist of his stature in America has yet dared to write, and I quote:

"But whatever the cost in terms of loss of face, might not the United States authorities be well advised to do whatever is necessary to demonstrate that there is no Ft. Knox cover-up? In the light of what is happening in the United States during the past few years, deeds inevitably now speak louder than words; and the refusal to prove that they have nothing to hide is inevitably destined to go on fostering precisely the opposite impression."

WILLIAM SIMON'S LETTER

In a letter to a friend of Beter's dated December 10, 1975, former Secretary of the Treasury William Simon said the following:

"The allegation that plutonium 239 is, or ever has been stored at Fort Knox in a central core vault is false, and the Army has just conducted an extensive test of the Bullion Depository and has found no evidence of radioactivity. I should add that there is no such thing as the Central Core Vault."

Notice that Simon's denial of the presence of plutonium-239 at the Depository is tied right in with his denial of the existence of the Central Core Vault. Obviously if there is no Central Core Vault, then it cannot contain plutonium-239! But on the other hand, to have any faith that his denial about the plutonium is truthful, you must also believe his assertion that there exists no Central Core Vault at the Depository. If he would lie about one, he would lie about the other.

GENERAL JOHN RYAN EXPOSES SIMON'S LIE

With that in mind, see this letter written to one of Beter's associates by a retired Lieutenant General, John L. Ryan, Jr., a former Commanding General of Fort Knox. General Ryan probably knows more about the Depository than anyone else who ever commanded Fort Knox. He spent two tours of duty there before he returned a third time as the Commanding General; and when the gold was moved to Fort Knox to be stored there for the very first time in 1937, it was he who was placed in charge of the actual physical movement of the incoming gold into the Depository. With regard to the disputed Central Core Vault, he says, quote:

"When I use the word 'vault' I am referring to the central core of the Depository where the bullion was stored. This vault was below ground level and could be entered only through a specially constructed bank-type door that opened onto a screw lift. This door was in the Receiving-Shipping area of the Depository. The Receiving-Shipping room was above ground level. The vault was below ground level. Around the vault proper, or central core, below ground level was a passageway. On this passageway were a number of cell-like compartments. There was no means of entering the vault from this passageway."

The passageway with its compartments are all that the visitors saw in September 1974. The existence of the Central Core Vault, which is where the gold, if any, should have been, is absolutely confirmed by General Ryan; and as his letter makes clear, the 1974 visitors had no chance of finding out about it while wandering around in the passageway and looking at the small compartments you heard and read about in the news.

THE POISON LEAK COVERUP

In the same way, a cover-up campaign was launched in regard to the leakage of the plutonium-239 super poison from Fort Knox. On January 12, 1976, exactly two months after the *Louisville Courier-Journal* broke the Fort Knox plutonium story on its front page, a truck carrying radioactive waste just "happened" to have an accident in eastern Kentucky, smack in the heart of the area now most heavily affected by radioactive poison leakage from Fort Knox. Fourteen of the 32 drums of waste on the truck fell off, and 8 of them broke open and leaked. The newspaper stories around there about it contained the usual assurances that there was no danger, that it had been cleaned up, etc., but leakage had occurred.

Just six days later on January 18 newspapers contained big articles about still another alleged radioactive waste leakage problem in Kentucky.

The truck mentioned had been on its way to a nuclear waste dumping ground at Maxey Flats, Kentucky, which had been in use since 1963, and then we were suddenly told that the leakage is occurring there too. Federal investigators, those wonderful watchdogs we are supposed to trust and admire, claimed that radioactive waste in steel, wooden, and even cardboard drums has been just dropped into trenches and covered up with dirt; and after 12 years they have just now abruptly discovered that some of it has gotten loose and is spreading through the ground, through the water, and through the air. And a study by the General Accounting Office, while it gave the standard assurance that there is no immediate danger, recommended a crash program to correct the situation and develop systematic standards for safe disposal of radioactive waste.

Now, why all of this sudden concern about leakage of radioactive contamination? And why did the spotlight on actual leakage cases just happen to be on Kentucky? After all, there were vastly more serious problems of this sort elsewhere in the United States, for example, in New York State—but so why Kentucky?

ED DURELL'S LETTER

Here is a letter to Congressman Conlan of Arizona from Mr. Edwardq Durell, dated January 7, 1976: [quoting]

Dear Mr. Conlan,

Your letters of December 5, 1975, to Mrs. Mary Barrow and Mr. Art Bentley both of Lake Havasu City, Arizona, have been sent to me for comment. To that end I write direct to you, with copies to them and other interested parties.

In your letter to Mrs. Barrow you state among other things that, quote: Grand Juries are empaneled to investigate criminal wrongdoing, and that if, quote: you personally have evidence of crimes committed in connection with our nation's gold holdings, please let me know so that I can put you directly in touch with appropriate officials of the United States Justice Department who would have jurisdiction in this matter.

In your letter to Mr. Bentley you state among other things that while you have, quote: some misgivings about the gold situation, quote: I can assure you that exposure to any radioactive poison would have caused me serious illness. Neither I nor anyone else who went to Fort Knox has suffered any such illness.

Please allow us firstly to answer your letter to Mr. Bentley. It is common knowledge in nuclear medicine that if one is exposed to alpha particle radiation of plutonium, death due to cancer can come in a matter of months or years. It all depends upon dosage level and duration of exposure. In this respect we would suggest that you contact Dr. John Gofman, former professor of Medical Physics emeritus, University of California at Berkeley; or listen to him by way of a one-hour tape cassette obtainable from AUDIO BOOKS, INC., P. O. [old address deleted]; special tape No. 2 for \$6.00 postpaid.

In this tape Dr. Gofman speaks on the effects of radioactive poison, among other things.

In addition, over 18% increase in cancer deaths in the first seven (7) months this year over last year has taken place in the central-eastern states, which has left medical authorities in the dark as to the cause. They felt they had made such tremendous cancer advancements in the last few years, and then to have such a high upsurge in the first seven months this year over last year in that area alone, is baffling.

One more thing about this radioactive poison in the United States Bullion Depository at Fort Knox hereinafter called 'Fort Knox'. We know from sources in the Intelligence industry that this plutonium poison was part of the plutonium-239 stolen by members of the Intelligence community in 1966 and that this most deadly substance was processed in four plants—two in Kentucky, one in North Dakota, and one in California—into radioactive liquid poison. It was then taken—60 pounds each—to Peru, Panama, Bolivia, and Argentina under cover of a multinational cement corporation by a CIA officer, Harold Leroy White, for the sole purpose of threatening to contaminate the United States-planned and built water aqueduct systems in those countries for political and economic pressure. Sixty pounds, however, intended for use in Argentina, was brought back by Mr. White and placed in the Central Core Vault at Fort Knox where it has been stored ever since late 1968. The casks are now corroding, causing leakage and contamination over the entire areas east and southeast of Kentucky, and as far away as Cuba. This contamination is endangering the lives of over 40 million people in this country. Can we afford to allow these people to be expendable?

The federal government has now publicly admitted our charges that opium and morphine —150,000 pounds and 24,000 pounds respectively—are stored at Fort Knox. Why will it not admit the existence of the plutonium?

It is suggested that to do so might subject the Government to thousands of legal actions involving hundreds of millions of dollars under the Federal Tort Claims Act and/or the Price Anderson Act, the 1954 Atomic Energy Act as amended, Title 42 Section 2011 and following for, quote: 'extraordinary nuclear occurrence'—[*to avoid*] that is, quote: 'any event causing a discharge or dispersal of source, special nuclear or by-product material from its intended place of confinement in amounts off site or causing radiation levels off site and which has resulted or will probably result in substantial damages to persons off site or property off site.'

And why will it not admit the loss of our gold reserves? For the same reasons—[*to avoid*] legal actions including those criminal in nature. And in the latter connection, we would like here to pursue your suggestion to Mrs. Barrow and list the charges of the high crimes committed relative to disappearance of the people's gold reserves.

On behalf of the American people it is herein charged that the United States Treasury Department hereinafter called 'Treasury'—in violation of its Constitutional duty to protect the people's gold and in violation of its Constitutional duty to take care that the laws relative to the safeguarding and custody of said gold be faithfully executed, has failed so to do in that between January 1, 1961, and January 1, 1974, prior and subsequent thereto, Treasury engaged itself through its officers/agents and in concert with others in America's corridors of financial power in a course of conduct or plan designed to convert unto themselves the people's gold entrusted to it for safekeeping for the avowed purpose of profiting unjust enrichment; and in a course of conduct or plan designed to cover up, conceal and protect those responsible and to conceal the existence and scope of other unlawful covert activities.

The means used to implement this conduct or plan have included one or more of the following: 1. Treasury has failed to render a true account of the amount of gold shipped out from the United States Bullion Depositories from 1961 to 1968 under color of the 'London Gold Pool Agreement'; 2. Treasury has failed to reveal the true prices, if any, received for the sale of said gold or reveal the names of the ultimate purchasers of said gold; 3. Treasury has failed to give a true account of the amount of gold shipped out of the United States Bullion Depositories from 1968 to 1974 under color of an ad hoc committee composed of the Chairman of the Federal Reserve Board, the Chairman of the Council of Economic Advisers, the Chairman of the White House Council on International Economic Policy, the Secretary of State, and the Secretary of Treasury, among others; 4. Treasury has issued a statement dated August 31, 1974, purporting to list 24 million ounces of good delivery gold at Fort Knox when in actual fact the Secretary of the Treasury admitted December 3, 1974, that such listing is false or misleading; 5. Treasury has taken, December 9, 1974, without lawful authority, two million ounces of gold from the Exchange Stabilization Fund by a simple bookkeeping device and four days later announced by way of the General Services Administration that there would be an auction of two million ounces of gold on an 'as is' basis January 6, 1975. In addition, a Dutch auction was held June 30, 1975, with the remainder of said gold based on a price not considered best for the taxpayers of America; 6. Treasury has caused a statement to be issued April 11, 1975, which is false or misleading in that it purports to list all of the gold shipments out of Fort Knox when in actual fact such list omitted among other things a shipment of gold consisting of four (4) tractor-trailer loads on January 20, 1965, which shipment consisted of 1.762-million ounces valued at over sixty-one million dollars (\$61,000,000) at \$35.00 per troy ounce—the par value for official gold at that time; 7. Treasury has in its immediate possession and control the necessary keys, combination numbers, and timecontrol data for the vaults, depositories, and their mechanisms. It thus has the highest duty to take care that its trust be faithfully executed, but it has acted in a manner contrary to its trust and subversive of responsible government to the great prejudice and to the manifest injury of the people of the United States by acting in concert with others to aid and abet, to surreptitiously remove the gold under the cover of legal right; 8. Treasury has made false or misleading statements for the purpose of deceiving the people of the United States into believing that a thorough and complete inspection and audit have been conducted with respect to allegations that Fort Knox contains no significant amounts of gold and not accounted for, in that an inspection trip to Fort Knox September 23, 1974, revealed one (1) cell-like compartment, No. 33, to contain only copper-hued bars. Mrs. Mary Brooks, the Director of the Mint, Treasury, said, quote: 'It's all here.' Her statement is analogous to the so-called Audit of October 1974 of only three (3) of the cell-like compartments at Fort Knox, which Audit calls the Report to be submitted to Congress February 10, 1975—also based on a belief that, quote: It's all here.

Further, the inference given by the inspection trip and the Audit was that the gold at Fort Knox was of good delivery form and the remaining ten (10) cell-like compartments were full of good delivery gold; 9. Treasury is withholding relevant and material evidence or information from the American people in total disregard or violation of the Constitutional right of the people to know what has happened to its gold reserves and to its right of freedom of information for purposes unrelated to national security, the enforcement of laws, or any other lawful functions of Treasury in that the Central Core Vault at Fort Knox was concealed from the inspection group of over 100 news media people, six (6) Representatives, and one (1) Senator of the United States Congress; 10. Treasury has unlawfully utilized its authority to cause the General Ac-

counting Office to fail to take care that the laws be faithfully executed in that the General Accounting Office, a legislative entity, was forced to have only two (2) of its own people on a settlement committee to audit the alleged gold at Fort Knox, whereas Treasury had thirteen (13) of its own people on said committee; 11. Treasury has not caused to be made an annual physical inventory of the people's gold since 1953. Thus Treasury has failed to take care that Title 31 USC be faithfully executed by failing to make the required annual physical inventories.

In all of this and more, Treasury has acted in a manner contrary to its trust and subversive of Constitutional government to the great prejudice of law and justice and to the manifest injury of the people of the United States; wherefore, Treasury through its officers, agents and others in concert with it, by such conduct or plan, warrant such parties be brought before appropriate legal authorities to answer these charges; and, further, for the restitution of the people's gold except that portion which is contaminated by radioactive poison in which case said parties shall be ordered to pay the current market gold price and for such other appropriate action as may be deemed just and proper in the premises.

In support of the charges, please be informed that former Congressman Frank Chelf's AFFIDAVIT dated April 7, 1975, in which he deposes and says among other things, and I quote: that the United States government was moving quietly as a church mouse out of Fort Knox; and that the gold was, quote: constantly and surreptitiously on the move.

Fort Knox is located in former Congressman Chelf's Congressional District. He further deposes and says that, quote: 'In response to my previous requests for gold removal information, Treasury officials had been courteous and most friendly but always non-committal or evasive.' Mr. Chelf had earlier made the same charges on the floor of the House of Representatives, but to no avail. (See *Congressional Record* page 15522—August 21, 1963.)

Further, Lt. General John L. Ryan, Jr., US Army (Ret.), in his statement of September 26, 1975 before Congressman Otis G. Pike in his office, has proved the existence of the Central Core Vault and in fact has drawn sketches of it. In view of this, there is no valid reason for the Secretary of Treasury to continue to deny the existence of the Central Core Vault at Fort Knox unless there is something deeply secret stored therein. There admittedly may have been the necessity for some secrecy in the 1960's when all of the gold at Fort Knox was stored in the Central Core Vault. Why the secrecy now, since the Comptroller General has stated on February 10, 1975, quote: As of June 30, 1974 about 55% of the gold claimed by the Treasury was stored in thirteen (13) sealed compartments at the United States Bullion Depository at Fort Knox, Kentucky?

As further evidence, we call your attention to the balance sheets of the 12 Federal Reserve Banks, which carry Gold Certificate accounts as an asset to reflect a stated amount of gold which, in turn, is reflected as a liability on Treasury balance sheets; however it is submitted these Gold Certificate accounts reflect assets—gold—which do not in fact exist in Treasury vaults. This same situation prevailed in 1943 relative to silver when, quote: '14,000 tons of silver from the Treasury reserve backing American paper money was secretly taken from Treasury vaults although carried publicly on the Treasury balance sheets', cited in *Tragedy and Hope* by Professor Caroll Quigley, page 855, 1966/1974.

We could go on, but suffice it to say that Treasury during our 18 months investigations has not moved to

refute by evidence the basic charges outlined above. Meanwhile our economy is suffering by those twin disasters, inflation and deflation—high prices with high unemployment—initially caused by the disposing of our gold reserves in secret and its attendant game plan.

Mr. C. Gordon Tether, in his December 11, 1975 article 'A NEW TWIST OF FORT KNOX SAGA' in the *Financial Times of London*, stated: [quoting]

But whatever the cost in terms of loss of face, might not the United States authorities be well advised to do whatever is necessary to demonstrate that there is no Fort Knox cover-up? In the light of what has happened in the United States during the past few years, deeds inevitably now speak louder than words; and the refusal to prove that they have nothing to hide, is inevitably destined to go on fostering precisely the opposite impression.

Considering all of the above, would you please be so kind as to put the undersigned and Dr. Peter Beter, as you offered to do for Mrs. Barrow, 'directly in touch with appropriate officials of the United States Justice Department who would have jurisdiction in this matter'? I am authorized to state that Dr. Beter concurs with the contents of this letter and is fully prepared to give further evidence before a United States Grand Jury and any Congressional investigating committee in confirmation of the charges herein cited, among others.

Further, I would suggest you personally bring this letter to the attention of the Chairman of the House Banking Committee of which you are a member, for appropriate action. Failure on your part to do so will lend credence to the fact you, yourself, have become part and parcel of the cover-up on this vital matter; and failure on the part of the Chairman of said Committee to take such action will further lend credence to the fact that he himself is in league with those underlying forces at work in America's corridors of financial power.

Most respectfully,

/s/Edward Durell

[End quoting]

Here is Congressman Conlan's reply in its entirety, dated February 26, 1976—seven weeks after the date of Mr. Ed Durell's certified letter: [quoting]

Dear Mr. Durell,

Following up receipt of your certified Open Letter to me, I wanted to bring you up-to-date on my actions. I have written to the Chairman of the House Banking, Currency, and Housing Committee Henry Reuss; Chairman of the House Domestic Monetary Policy Committee Wright Patman; and Chairman of the House Government Operations Committee, Jack Brooks. I will let you know when I receive their replies.

Also, I am enclosing a copy of my letter to Secretary Simon in which I request a complete inventory of United States gold holdings. I have asked him to let me know what action he plans to take in this regard.

It is unfortunate that there are not more Congressmen and people in the Administration and the Attorney General's office who are more interested in clarifying this matter. I am just one sincere Congressman, Mr. Durell; and much as you and I would like to think, I cannot order official Washington to do yours and my bidding. If I could, Henry Kissinger and others would have been replaced a long time ago.

Cordially,

John B. Conlan Member of Congress

And that is apparently that, as far as John Conlan was concerned. He continually professed to be concerned about Fort Knox, yet there was not even the token of an attempt to open any doors for a good investigation into the matter—no speeches on the House floor, no press conference, no real follow-up to Mr. Durell's letter in any way—just a very intimate letter to William Simon, Treasury Secretary, who himself is party to the cover-up. Why didn't John Conlan tell us what Bill Simon told him on the night of January 5, 1975, in private?

There have been many articles lately about the fact that the government routinely covered up and lied about nuclear radiation experiments and leaks; one example is the *Austin American Statesman* article of December 15, 1994, p. A8, titled: "Legal, publicity fears spurred radiation secrecy, files show".

Another example article is one titled: "Plutonium numbers don't jibe, council says. Discrepancy between U. S., private figures is enough for 300 nuclear bombs" by William J. Broad, *New York Times News Service (Austin American Statesman*, May 20, 1994, p. A17). This article tells of 1.5 metric tons of plutonium that has disappeared. Perhaps someone dropped a cigarette on it and it went up in smoke? Or maybe mice ate it?

DON'T RAIN ON MY CHARADE

The Carter Administration became so concerned about the plutonium and the missing gold controversy that on July 28, 1977, Treasury Secretary Blumenthal took the extreme step of going to the Fort Knox Bullion Depository himself. He had himself photographed by *Time* magazine sitting on the same stack of warmed-over junk gold bars viewed at Fort Knox in Compartment No. 33 in September 1974. Then he went to Louisville to deliver his speech prepared before he left Washington, saying how impressed he was with the wonderful hoard of gold he had just inspected at Fort Knox. Former Treasury Secretary William Simon knew better than to go there personally, even at the height of the public controversy over Fort Knox three years ago. Instead he sent poor Mrs. Mary Brooks, the unsuspecting head of the Bureau of the Mint, to tell the world, "It's all here." But now extreme measures were called for in the name of "cover-up" because, while the public slept, the powerful financial community showed signs of awakening with a roar.

The United States Treasury Department had been aware for some time that something would have to be done about the resurgence of concern about Fort Knox, so during 1977 about 1.5 million ounces of gold were obtained from Portugal. This, plus other assorted reserves of mostly junk gold that had been scraped together, brought America's true gold stock to just over 3-1/2 million ounces. This was a mere pittance compared with the 277 million ounces on official Treasury books, but it did provide something to use for

psychological gold sales once again. Then the Treasury made a big deal of announcing that the United States will hold six monthly auctions of gold amounting to 300,000 ounces each. At this rate, if the United States really had the claimed stocks of gold, auctions could be held monthly for 77 years—yet the Treasury offered to do so only for six months, as a psychological ploy.

GOLDFINGER WAS REAL

Ian Fleming, in his book *Goldfinger*, devised a fictional scheme to show that Fort Knox might not be impregnable after all. He raised the question: "What would happen to the dollar and other currencies if the Fort Knox gold were no longer available?" And he proposed the unthinkable thought that someone, if they were rich enough and greedy enough, might want to get their hands on America's gold.

The actual *Goldfinger* story, of course, was fiction; but the basic points which were just mentioned were fact. *Goldfinger* was published in 1959; and barely two years later in 1961, the hemorrhaging of America's monetary gold supply began. Agents of David Rockefeller within the United States Government provided a cloak of authority called the "London Gold Pool Agreement"; and then for seven years until 1968, big Army trucks loaded with gold bullion rolled out of Fort Knox constantly—and all without a word to the public!

Some of the gold shipments during those seven years were recorded on a list kept by the United States Mint. Almost without exception the shipments listed went to the New York Assay Office, where they disappeared without any further accounting. The New York Assay Office was the focus of a scandal in December 1978 involving missing gold. Over 5,000 ounces had simply disappeared; but that was a very small tip of a very large iceberg, and so the controversy over the missing millions in gold at the New York Assay Office was quickly smoothed over and covered up. They could not afford to allow any real investigation which might let the public know the truth. According to the official list of shipments, a large fraction of America's monetary gold went to the New York Assay Office in the 60s. There it disappeared, never to be seen again.

But the real situation was even worse. Long ago Beter's sources gave him hard evidence of many large gold shipments from Fort Knox which were not even listed. In *Audio Letter No. 2* he revealed a specific example of this. It was a shipment on January 20, 1965, in which four (4) tractor-trailers loaded up at Fort Knox and then headed for railroad tracks across the river at Jeffersonville, Indiana. His sources provided him with details, including photographs, of the operation. But the shipment was one of many which did not show on any official Government list of shipments.

In June 1975, Mr. Edward Durell and his other associates were able to confront officials of the United States Mint with this example of missing shipments, and for once the confrontation took place under circumstances in which the Mint was under great pressure to respond. In the most specific terms the Bureau of the Mint was asked what was shipped out of Fort Knox in the four tractor-trailers on January 20, 1965. The written answer dated June 19, 1975 came from the then Director of the United States Mint, Mrs. Mary Brooks. She confirmed that this unlisted shipment amounted to more than one-and-three-quarter (1-3/4) million ounces of gold—and it was not junk gold melted down from old coins which were confiscated from Americans in 1934. The shipment was part of America's true monetary gold, good delivery gold which is .995 fine or better. After this admission in writing about an enormous secret shipment

of gold out of Fort Knox, one would have thought that there would be fireworks, but not so!

This is the attitude Beter encountered when he began giving public warnings about deliberate plans for economic chaos. He was first alerted to the Fort Knox Gold Scandal by none other than British Intelligence in London after completing a secret mission for Queen Elizabeth in Zaire; and in his book *The Conspiracy Against The Dollar*, he outlined the overall plan, including the unseen role of America's gold. He had one major advantage which Ian Fleming did not have. The United States does not yet have an Official Secrets Act like that of Britain, and so he was not forced to fictionalize. Instead he was able to give the real plans and real names of those responsible for things to come.

The prototype for Ian Fleming's *Goldfinger* was none other than David Rockefeller, and in his book Beter showed in detail how Rockefeller played his kingpin role in the plan to destroy our economy. He described how this was leading to a collapsing dollar, skyrocketing gold prices, a stagnating economy, spiraling financial problems for State and local governments, urban unrest, and eventually a planned nuclear war. But when David Rockefeller himself was interviewed about Beter's book, even he resorted to the technique "Fictionalize to close eyes". His comment about *The Conspiracy Against The Dollar* was: "Interesting science fiction."

ROGER BABSON'S WARNING

In 1961 the so-called "London Gold Pool Agreement" was set up. It was an informal agreement that was never authorized by Congress; and under that agreement, our gold started flowing out of the United States in a hemorrhage that lasted nearly 7 years. One courageous Congressman, Frank Chelf of Kentucky, spoke repeatedly on the floor of Congress about what was happening to our gold.

The Fort Knox Gold Scandal was predictable long ago for those with eyes to see. The famous prophet of the 1929 Stock Market Crash, Roger Ward Babson, gave a clear warning of things to come while the Fort Knox Bullion Depository was still being built. There was an article about his warnings in the *Literary Digest* for August 29, 1936. The article described Babson's objections in the words, quote:

"By dumping most of America's gold hoard into a steel and concrete strong box in the mountain fortress at Fort Knox, Kentucky, Uncle Sam is putting too many of his eggs in one basket." Two very relevant questions posed by Babson were also mentioned: (1) Is not the United States as liable to have internal revolution as to be attacked by foreign nations? And (2) Are not gold and commodities much safer distributed among millions of people than stored in Russian fashion under the control of politicians?" The article quoted Babson as he thundered:

"To secure control of nearly one-half the world's total gold supply requires only securing control of the White House. The key to these great vaults is hanging on the wall of the President's private office."

[To be continued]

CHAPTER 6

THE BLACK NOBILITY UNMASKED WORLDWIDE by Dr. John Coleman

On the Front Page of the 9/2/97 issue of CONTACT, before anyone else dared to even suggest "murder" or "assassination", we used those words to describe what had just befallen Princess Diana a few days earlier. That Front Page headline screamed "Desperate Move By Monarchy's House Of Windsor to Preserve The 'Grand Plan'". And that "Grand Plan" goes back a long way.

Indeed, in the context of introducing our Front Page story for the 9/16/97 CONTACT, titled "More Clues About Murder Of Princess Diana; Dark Connections Go Back A Long Way", I reminded that ones not forget the central role of the "Black Nobility" in this unsavory event. Many had forgotten to whom I was referring.

I suggested that everybody go back and review Dr. John Coleman's revelations about this subject of the Dark Nobility brotherhood because of the House of Windsor's roots tracing back to the Venetian Black Guelphs branch of that nasty bunch of aristocratic crooks.

To help with understanding this critical piece in the larger puzzle, we are here reprinting a superb research monograph by Dr. Coleman, originally written in January of 1986 and reprinted in the October 1997 issue of his publication World In Review. (Maybe this fortuitous recent publishing event was due to our mid-September mention of the subject?)

In any event, pay close attention to just how extensive is this black web of intertwined families wielding tremendous power.

-Dr. Edwin M. Young, Editor-In-Chief

10/86 DR. JOHN COLEMAN

When I first introduced this term [Black Nobility] to the U.S. in 1969, few if any people knew what it meant. My experience with this group was first hand, on location, which gave me a real insight into who they were and what they stood for. Since then, others have been mentioning this group, but it is still a mystery to a great number of people. With this in mind I am elaborating on the subject for the benefit of those who are new to my work.

I remember when I first began to publish my work on the conspiracy, the Council on Foreign Relations and the Wall Street connection to the Bolshevik Revolution, what a time I had. No one would pay the slightest attention to what I had to say; in short, I was simply not believed. But times have changed. All of these secret societies, the Illuminati, the Bilderbergers, etc., have become fairly well exposed. Then I began to dig even deeper, and in a five-year period, beginning around 1970, 1 came up with some new information that had previously not been touched upon by anyone writing about the conspiracy. I discovered that there

was a loosely-knit group of people with immense wealth, who would stop at nothing to gain their ends. They made the Mafia look like chicken feed by comparison. While researching old books in London on the subject of ancient noble families, I came across a phrase I had not seen before, "the Black Nobility". Now after some nine years of research, I know what that term really means. This message is about the Black Nobility and its immense power. During the course of this message I hope to show you how the Black Nobility is intertwined with the Illuminati, the Jesuits, the Freemasons and the Council on Foreign Relations, and what a devastatingly evil influence it has had, and still has, upon world events. I want to mention in passing that in many of the books I researched, most vital information appeared on page 666 of the books. Coincidence perhaps.

In my opinion, based upon intensive research, the most powerful of the Black Nobility families are located in Italy, Germany, Switzerland, Britain, Holland and Greece in that order, with Denmark forming an important linkage. There are other families, such as the notorious Braganzas, living in Brazil, who may one day return to Portugal Therefore I will deal with the Braganzas as a separate entity from the powerful Black Nobility families of Europe. Please be aware that the foregoing is a broad and general classification. There are individual families in Britain for example, who are immensely rich and powerful, but for the sake of good order, I will endeavor to stick with my general classification, although, as you will observe, with the interlocking networks and intermarriage, that will not always be possible.

The Black Nobility is very much alive and kicking in January 1986, as I write this message. In many respects they are more powerful today than they were in the Middle Ages. Just as an example, take a look at the Grosvenor family in England. This Black Nobility family has existed for centuries on ground rent. Today the family owns at least 300 acres of land in the heart of London. The land is never sold, but leased on a 39-year leasehold agreement—the ground rent of the Middle Ages. Grosvenor Square, in which is located the American Embassy, belongs to the Grosvenor family, as does Eaton Square. In Eaton Square apartments are rented out at the going rate of twenty-five-thousand pounds a month, and that does not include maintenance costs. This will give you some idea of the immense wealth the Grosvenor family has from ground rents, and it will help you to understand why the Black Nobility wants to get rid of industrial progress along with the excess population it supports according to the Black Nobility and its puppet organizations, such as the Council on Foreign Relations, and the Royal Institute for International Affairs. The Black Nobility adds up to immense wealth, immense power, and an immense capacity for dirty tricks. Because of the notorious successes of the Italian Black Nobility in carrying out black tricks, such as murder, robbery, rape, etc., on a grand scale, it earned the name "Black Nobility".

The Black Nobility dates back to the early part of the 12th century, so it has been around for a long time, and is very well entrenched in power, influence and above all, it is immensely wealthy. Money is power, and if that be the case, then the Black Nobility is all powerful. One of the earliest and most important displays of its power came in the period 1122 to 1126, when John Comnenus, a ruler of high moral character, tried to unseat the Venetian oligarchists. The war with Venice stemmed from John's refusal to renew the privileged trading rights (monopolies) held by the Venetian oligarchical families, because of the shameless manner in which they had exploited and abused these privileges. The Venetian fleet attacked John's ships, and ravaged the Aegean, occupying Corfu and forcing John to renew their blatant privileges. Nothing has changed since the 12th century. Just try opposing the Grosvenors, the Braganzas or the Savoys and see what becomes of you. No matter whether you are the head of state, or whatever your title and position may be, you are bound to come off second best. In 1155, trade privileges were granted to

the Genoese Black Nobility which they still hold today. Anybody who attempted to cross the Venetians paid a heavy price for it, as the Byzantine emperor discovered to his cost when he tried to wrest trade from the Venetian oligarchists between 1170 and 1177. The emperor had to pay an enormous indemnity to the Venetian oligarchical families for his failure to break their grip on monopolies. The Mafia could learn a great deal from the early Venetian noble families, and probably did!

Venice is so important when it comes to the Black Nobility, that I must devote more time to it than any other oligarchical group. The first of three crusades established the power of the Venetian Black Nobility, from 1063 to 1123, and solidified the power of the wealthy ruling class. The Black Nobility aristocracy achieved complete control of Venice in 1771, when the appointment of the doge was transferred to what was known as the Great Council, which consisted of members of the commercial aristocracy, a complete triumph for them. Venice has remained in their hands ever since, but the power and influence of the Venetian Black Nobility extends far beyond its borders, and today in 1986, is felt in every comer of the globe. In 1204 the oligarchical family parcelled out feudal enclaves to their members, and from this epoch dates the great building of power and pressure until the government became a closed corporation of the leading Black Nobility families.

A few words about the Great Council, because it still operates in much the same way as it did back in 1171. The Great Council, then as now, is restricted in membership to those who belong to the oligarchical families. In 1297, it was restricted in membership to those who had been members within the preceding year. A so-called commission added other names, and then the Council was closed to new members, except by heredity. This effectively excluded the citizens of Venice from having any say in a government of the small group of hereditary commercial oligarchical families, i.e., the Black Nobility. The Black Nobility earned its title through dirty tricks, so when the population revolted against oligarchical monopoly in government as well as everything else, its leaders were quickly seized and brutally hanged. Tiepolos Rebellion, as it came to be known, was the only uprising in the history of Venice. Secret assassinations, bankrupting of citizens, kidnapping and rape of female members of families who had revolted against the oligarchists, was all part of the "black" bag of tricks used to stifle oppositions to its rule. Much of today's terrorist tactics spring from the manner in which these disgusting families conducted their affairs. They brooked no opposition to their rule, and from their families sprang most of the "royal" lineage of European oligarchical families as we shall see.

One such Venetian Black Nobility family is the Guelphs, from which the present Queen of England, Elizabeth II, comes. This ancient line includes names like Ethico, Henry, Rudolph, Cunigunda, Azoll, Queen Victoria, her house being the House of Este Guelph. The name Este comes from the Marquis of Este, of Venice, also known as the House of Albert Azoll. This line is connected to the Welfs, which is not a title but a name, and can be traced back to Cunigunda, Prince of Welf, one of whom was the celebrated King of Italy, Odaocer. Empress Judith, ancestress of the Prince Consort, is called Judith of Welf (Guelph). Judith, the Welf, means "Lady of Judah" of the Hebrew princely family. The Welfs migrated into Venice, and the Estes are an offshoot of this family. Other names in the Guelph dynasty include the Count of Lucca, and the Finaldo family.

The Guelphs are so intertwined with the German aristocracy through the House of Hanover, that it would take several messages such as this one to name them all. Suffice to say that the name Guelph carried considerable power, and the family took great care, using whatever methods, however unsavory, it deemed necessary, to keep its power and great influence. Of such stuff is the Venetian Black Nobility made. It is

small wonder that Prince Charles and his wife visited Venice a short while ago. The circumstances surrounding the visit were kept under wraps, but it would appear that it was undertaken to renew the ties that bind the Venetian oligarchists and the British dynasty. (They went to visit the Frescobaldis.) These and thousand like them, scattered throughout Europe, the oligarchical elite, keep their secrets, so we shall never know what Charles and his dear wife were up to during their Venetian visit, other than to visit the Frescobaldis. The Hanoverian English King George I came from the duchy of Luneberg, a part of Germany, which had been governed by the Guelph family since the 12th century.

These "noble" families are behind most, if not all, of the wrongly named pro-environmentalist movements of the world, which are [to] curb population growth (of ALL nations). Prince Philip and Prince Charles are the most visible symbols of this movement; and both have often spoken with the utmost callousness about the need to rid the world of unwanted people. The Princes live off ground rents and therefore are a true part of the conspiracy to destroy industry and take the world back to the New Dark Ages. I may be bold to say that the noble families are up to their noble eyebrows in the drug trade, but not directly, mind you. They are always most careful to see that there are plenty of willing intermediaries to do the dirty work for them. Certain old aristocratic families in England, Canada and the USA are definitely controlling this massive trade, and that is why it cannot be wiped out. When President Nixon embarked upon a program that was guaranteed to stamp out drug trade, he found out who was boss. The Tavistock Institute set up an elaborate plan to get rid of Nixon, and humiliate him as no world leader has ever been humiliated. At the same time, the Tavistock Institute designed its Watergate plot in such away that, for awhile, Americans lost faith in their cherished institutions and the foundation of this nation was shaken as never before. This is the power of the Black Nobility. Never underestimate it.

Cooperating with the European noble families are American families like the Harrimans, the McGeorge Bundys and dozens of others we have come to be known as the Eastern Liberal Establishment. The Club of Rome was formed to brainwash Americans and it played a key role in the downing of Nixon, by mass brainwashing of the American public, carried out through the pages of the despicable *Washington Post* and the *New York Times*. The royalty of Europe very much favors the Club of Rome, and was secretly delighted in the part it played in humiliating Richard Nixon and the American people. Of course their delight had to be concealed, but one monarch, Queen Juliana of the Netherlands, ordered an exhibition of the ideas of the Club of Rome to be put up in Rotterdam. The royal houses of Europe have never forgiven the Americans for defeating them in 1776. While it was primarily the British that lost the war, so intertwined are these Black Nobility oligarchists, that in reality, the American Republic represented a threat to them all, and still is a threat to their Dark Ages feudal ideas.

Among these noble families are to be found leading Freemasons, practitioners of witchcraft, black magic, occultism and a historical connection, of course, with the Jesuits. The history of the magician Cagliostro shows just how strong this was. Cardinal deRoban, a Jesuit prince of the Bourbon family, spent his time drinking and hunting women. He fell in love with Marie Antoinette, but she despised him. The noble de Roban approached Cagliostro for help in seducing Marie Antoinette. Cagliostro was a Mason, and he used Masonic rituals in some of his spells and incantations. Other nobles who sought out Cagliostro for his magical secrets were Baroness D'Oberkirch, the Marquise de LaSalle, Prince de Soubise and dozens of others from the Black Nobility. We must remember that while professing Christianity, the oligarchical families, or at least the greater part of them, actually despise it in secret. That is why so many of them are Masons. As I said in one of my messages, Masonry gave them a sense of purpose. Among the ordinary

people, the feeling of helplessness is not always overcome by Christianity. It is not that Christianity is a fault; it is because we are under a barbarous Babylonian system wrongly called Capitalism. In many cases, the Christian faith can only promise better days to come in the world hereafter, and the less strong among us are unable to grasp the message of Christ that his kingdom is not this world. The feelings of helplessness in the face of earthly adversity is perhaps best expressed by the Danish philosopher, Kierkegaard, who wrote: "Where am I? Who am I? How did I come to be here? What is this thing called the world? And if I am compelled to take part in it, where is the director? I want to see the director." There is in so many of us a sense of being cast up, high and dry and helpless. The oligarchical Black Nobility live for this world only-not for them the deprivations and its expected rewards in the life to come. They do not believe in a life to come, and they demand and take their cake now and eat it now. That is what made the Italian Black Nobility so utterly ruthless in its climb to power; it cared naught for Christian beliefs! These Black Nobility and royal families are influenced greatly by the Book of Creation, the Zohar, written by a Spaniard, Moses de Leon. Occultism, witchcraft and black magic. Masonry-that is their true religion-not Christianity at all. Their symbol is the snake. In some cases, the story slips out. A popular soap opera running on American television is All My Children. One section of it dealt with "the Cobra" and referred extensively to a drug smuggling organization calling itself by that name. It is not strange to relate that among themselves, the royal and noble families are known as "the crowned Cobras of Europe". It is no secret either, as I said earlier, that so many of these oligarchists are in the drug trade through well-distanced intermediaries. All evidence of the roles played by the Black Nobility in arming, financing, and encouraging synthetic revolutions, the Liberation Theology movement and other elements that go to make up the world revolutionary movement, is very well hidden. Once in awhile, a Black Nobility name floats to the scum on the surface of the troubled waters, like that of Hugo Spadafora, who announced in the New York Times in December of 1980 that he was forming an international brigade to fight anywhere in Central America "where the armed struggle is the only avenue left for the people". Spadafora comes from a long line of the Italian Black Nobility, and be says that there has got to be "authentic unity" of all revolutionaries, Marxist, Catholic (Liberation Theology), Social Democrats and what he calls "progressive Christian Democrats". All this is very good for the arms trade, from which the Black Nobility derives an enormous income, while at the same time helping to wipe out the useless eaters they want to rid the world of.

But mostly the Black Nobility stays out of sight. When I read in 1980 what Spadafora said, I was amazed at his boldness in coming out into the open. Frankly I expected his fellow Black Nobility to get rid of him as a threat to their well-oiled, luxurious existence, but it did not happen. Not all Black Nobility are royal houses, but just for the record, nearby is a list of the royal families of Europe.

I have purposely excluded the Romanovs, because of the murder of the entire family of the Tsar. A number of the above-mentioned royal families no longer have thrones to sit on, but that does not mean that they have no power. On the contrary, many of them are more powerful than they were while actually ruling their respective countries. In some cases, they themselves miscalculated, and were deposed. A case in point is that of King Constantine of Greece, who is very closely related to British and Danish royalty. King Peter promoted the Greek "colonels" coup in 1967, but after quarreling with his protegés, they kicked him out in 1973. Crown Prince Alexander of Yugoslavia was deposed by Fitzroy MacLean so that be could be used by British intelligence during the Second World War. His brother, Prince Andrej, runs the Order of St. John, a Black Nobility order, which operates in various parts of the world, including the USA, as an agent for British intelligence and a cover for drug-smuggling operations, notably the dope-for-diamonds part of the trade.

Most, if not all, of the crowned and uncrowned beads of these dynasties enjoy huge incomes from ground rents. All favor the Global 2000 Report, Project 80s, and ending industrial progress. All are opposed to nuclear power. The reason is obvious enough; they want the world to return to what it was when they were its absolute rulers, that is, they ardently desire a return to a Feudal system. The Swiss banks owe their existence to these families and, of course, to the fortunes made by the non-royal members of the Black Nobility, especially in the last twelve years, when dollars from the drug trade have swamped Swiss banks. Another important point: Swiss banks are Masonic-controlled, and are NOT as secret as we have been led to believe, but more about that in my upcoming message on that subject.

The so-called northern tier of the oligarchy consisting of Britain, Belgium, Scandanavia, Germany and the Netherlands is "royal" but the "southern tier" is not. Nevertheless the southern tier has as much money, power and influence as its northern cousins, even though many of its royal households no longer exist, that is to say, they do not exist officially in countries like Italy for example. Switzerland is their haven, something they have in common. Switzerland's perpetual neutrality was guaranteed by the influence of the Jesuits who established a seminary at Lucerne. In 1815 the Jesuits and their Freemason allies among the crowned heads of Europe, held the Congress of Vienna on March 20th and March 29th, 1815, two Acts were passed which forever guaranteed Swiss neutrality. This was done so that no matter how many times they quarrelled with each other, no matter how many times they provoked wars in which the common man had to do the fighting, by the 1815 special agreement, their money in Switzerland would always be safe from plunder. That is why Switzerland has always been able to remain outside of wars going on all around her. Not because any of the warring nations were afraid of the Swiss military, but because the crowned heads of Europe and the uncrowned Black Nobility entered into an agreement in 1815, that no nation should interfere with Switzerland. The 1815 agreement is the reason why Switzerland exists today. It protects the ill-gotten gains of Europe's royalty as well as the wealth of the non-royal members of the Black Nobility.

At the time of the Italian financial crisis a few years ago, the Italian government clamped down on currency leaving the country. Every car leaving Italy for Switzerland was carefully searched. Airports were checked; in short, the Italian government thought it had stopped the speculation killing the lira. But not so. The Black Nobility ignored the Customs and police, safe under royal patronage, they took lira out of Italy by the truckload! Laws are not made for the Black Nobility! Only the common people have to obey the laws of the country and that goes for well ordered, lawful Switzerland as well. If it were not so, how was it possible that Gelli "escaped" from a prison that was like a fortress. Why did the Justice Minister resign in unseemingly haste when a bomb went off outside his house? The Justice Minister had made the mistake off failing to obey Masonic orders and he was brought to heel. If you think your money is safe in Switzerland, think again, unless you are a Mason, a member of the Black Nobility or one of the "royal" families. Or if your name is Pallavicini or Colonnas or Agnelli, then linage from the Geulphs to the forces that stopped Charlemagne and Frederick II.

You would soon be discovered if you used any of these names, as the Venetian Black Nobility has its own super secret intelligence service, and I am not talking about Heydrich's hangover, alias Interpol, which is the private preserve of Mr. David Rockefeller. I am talking about a killer network of intelligence agents paid by the Thurn and Taxis families. I have it on good authority that Prince Louis Ferdinand Hohenzollern is being used by the Soviets to sell the idea of a neutral Germany, on the promise that if be can deliver, then the Soviets will reunite Germany and see to it that all "royal houses" are restored to their rightful place. This is part of the decoupling of Europe from America plan, and at least this section of the Black Nobility is

working alongside the Soviets, using vassals like Kissinger to do the actual work.

The Black Nobility is ever busy on the financial front. As I said, billions of dollars flow into their safe haven, Switzerland, something like \$280 billion per annum in flight capital and drug money. Now the British are perfecting the Euromarket system, a Black Nobility fraud scheme of immense proportions, which when fully operational, will give the Black Nobility virtual control of most nations. The Masonic P2 Lodge and the Jesuits play a great role in this dirty operation. The 1974 oil-shortage hoax netted the Black Nobility hundreds of millions of dollars, which was further bloated by the so-called Eurodollar scam, another of their dirty tricks. Against such forces, conventional governments are powerless. The Black Nobility has the power to make or break ANY government as they showed America by getting rid of Nixon.

The British Guelphs rule by dominating the raw materials markets, and for years have "fixed" (a very good description) the price of gold, a commodity they do not produce or own. The House of Windsor (Guelph Black Nobility) also controls the price of copper, zinc, lead, and tin. It is no accident that the principle commodity exchanges are located in London. The House of Windsor can make or break the price of any commodity, or control it at a desired level. South Africa is just making this discovery. The price of gold remains at an artificially low level, and will stay there until the South African economy is ruined or the South Africans give up control of their country to some communist barbarian, as happened in Rhodesia. (Mrs. Thatcher's "democracy" in the heart of Africa.)

These operations are carried out by Black Nobility-run companies like Lonrho and Oppenheimer, Philbro, British Petroleum and several smaller companies. These companies have bought into the United States in a way that should alarm every patriotic American. We must not allow ourselves to forget that it was the Black Nobility House of Windsor (Guelph) that ordered Henry Kissinger to activate the 1974 oil hoax, which victimized the American consumer in a most cruel fashion. It is because of things like these that our world is in such a financial mess. It is because of these gigantic frauds that struggling people have lost faith in Christianity, and blame capitalism for their misery, when it is not capitalism or Christianity that are to blame, but the selfish piggishness, the unbelievable arrogance of the Black Nobility and the royal families that are responsible for this sad state of affairs.

Almost all the leading financial and raw material institutions are in the hands of the Black Nobility oligarchists. These elite few exercise power beyond the control of normal governments, and are a law unto themselves. It is they who are responsible for the shortages, the inflationary cycles, the high prices, the poverty, and suffering so many are forced to endure. They have destroyed the God-given dignity of man, they have taken away the right of human beings to be treated as human beings, thereby destroying the plan of God that says we are all individuals with a right to individual human dignity. But one cannot be dignified in the face of hopeless economic circumstances.

Don't blame it on Christianity and capitalism. Blame it on the Black Nobility and the crowned heads of Europe and the Eastern Liberal Establishment in the USA, you steelworkers, you auto industry and housing industry workers in America who do not have a job. To the unemployed in England, I say, look to your House of Windsor and to the Josephs and their vassal, Mrs. Thatcher, to find the source of your misery. Do not blame it on Christianity or Capitalism. While millions are out of work; the Black Nobility Duke of Grosvenor had the audacity to say that he does not ask people to rent his apartments at 25,000 pounds

per month—they seek him out, he proudly says. This man has never done any real productive work in his life. He lives off an immense income from ground rents of his real estate holdings in the heart of London. He is part of the Black Nobility bent on making a wasteland of British industry, already almost totally destroyed.

One of the most blatant examples of oligarchical power is Monaco, where the royal house of Grimaldi, which traces its ancestry back to the Grimaldis of Genoa, hold sway. It is a private paradise for the oligarchists of Europe. Its base was established at the turn of the century by the Societe Bains de Mer, a company that controls everything that moves in the principality. Edward Blanc, a relative of Prince Rainier, was the founder of the company, and be married into the oligarchical Rainiers, who, in turn, are run by the Thurn and Taxis Black Nobility. Prince Rainier suffered a sharp reminder that he is only nominally in charge when his wife was killed in an "accident". Prominent Black Nobility personalities who are involved in the business end of Monte Carlo are Prince Trubetzkoy and the Portanovas from the Venetian oligarchy. But we should not think that it is only in the field of money that the Black Nobility operates. The Braganza family, which has its roots in the Venetian Black Nobility, was deeply involved in the attempt to destabilize Poland, as were the Jesuits through Cardinal Hoffner and Monsignor Utz. The object with Poland was to destroy a nation state, just as the Braganzas are now destroying the nation states of South and Central America. The Hapsburgs want a united Poland, Austria and Hungary, and the Soviets have promised it to them, if they will help in decoupling Europe from America.

The von Thurn and Taxis families were also deeply implicated in the "solidaritist" plot to overthrow the Polish government and bring in a Moscow puppet regime. Other Black Nobility families involved in Poland were the Hohenzollerns, the Hapsburgs, the Wittelsbachs and the Wittgenstein families. All these families have histories that take them back to their roots in the Venetian and Genoese Black Nobility families. The role played by the Jesuits in the solidarity affair in Poland is perhaps not so clear, but the Jesuits did play a leading role in keeping personal contact with the KGB until General Jaruzelski smashed their contact man, Kania.

There are so many Black Nobility names that I can mention, but space does not permit it. I do want to include in this list of haughty aristocrats the name of the largest landowner in Germany, Prince Weldburg Zeil, whose family tree also has its beginnings among the Venetian Black Nobility. This agent of the One World Government CFR-Trilateral group has publicly backed the Global 2000 Report, and is one of the leading opponents of revitalizing German industry, which like British industry, is already partially destroyed and beyond recall. Again, it is ground rent that gives him his enormous fortune, and as I said, this is the life style the Black Nobility want to see restored, so, away with industry and away with excess population! Going to the other extreme, Alfred Hitchcock was another operative widely used by the Black Nobility. Hitchcock worked for British intelligence, and significantly, was trained at a Jesuit school. Hitchcock was used by the British to mass-brainwash audiences through the medium of the film industry. His movies are supposed to generate a sense of fear. Of himself, Hitchcock said: "I feel it is tremendously satisfying to use the cinematic art to achieve something of a mass emotion. I was put into a Jesuit school in London. It was probably during this period with the Jesuits that a strong sense of fear developed." *Spellbound* was the first Hitchcock movie to use a satanistic theme, which is, of course, much loved by the Masons and therefore the Black Nobility and the oligarchists, as a means of causing us to fear their power.

So from Hitchcock to Cardinal Beneli of Florence who worked for the Colonna and Palavicini Venetian

Black Nobility families, the Black Nobility demonstrates its ability to make use of all types to do its work. What does the Black Nobility hope to achieve?

The answer is very simple. It wants to return the world to the New Dark Ages, where the elite few families will rule the world. What they consider excess population will be killed off by famine, epidemics of disease, and wars. Those that escape the holocaust will survive under a feudal system. Industry, which is the chief villain, at least according to the Black Nobility, must be shut down completely. This will help to curb population growth. The world will be a smaller and better place to live in, they say. While that may be true for this elite power group, the rest of us are going to have a pretty thin time of it, if the plans of the Black Nobility ever succeed. Given the fact that the Black Nobility and the royal houses of Europe have cut a deal with the Soviet Union, and the Geulphs of Britain are keeping their options open through backdoor negotiations with Moscow via Mrs. Thatcher, the plans of the Black Nobility, which at first sight appear to be farfetched, are beginning to take on the look of a grim reality. Only by exposing the machinations of this dirty group can we hope to stop them in their tracks. Educating patriotic Americans is the only way we can do this, and by that I mean, educating our people to the reality of the Black Nobility and its worldwide plan to destroy the USA as we know it today. It is only the USA and Christianity that stand in the way of success for them, that is why both must be destroyed!

CHAPTER 7

THE NEWS DESK SPECIAL REPORT by Dr. Al Overholt 12/31/97

CONCENTRATION CAMPS LISTING?

From the INTERNET, courtesy James M. Seabourn, 12/31/97: [quoting]

Alabama:

Opelika WWII German/Italian POW camp now being renovated.

Alaska:

* Wilds of Alaska, possibly East of Anchorage. No access by road, however, there is a railway system. Facility holds 500,000 and will be used for forced labor.

Arizona:

* Ft. Huachua, Arizona: 20 miles from the Mexican border, 30 miles from Nogales. Rex 84 program, Emergency Custodial Facility.

* Florence: WWII German/Italian POW camp now being renovated.

* Pinal County, Gila River: Renovated WWII Japanese-American special internment detention facility.

* Yuma County, Colorado River: Renovated WWII Japanese-American special internment detention facility.

Arkansas:

* Ft. Chaffee: Has a new runway for aircraft, new detention camp facilities with capacity of 20,000 prisoners.

* Chicot/Drew Counties, Jerome: Renovated special Interment camps for Japanese-Americans, WWII.

* Descha County, Rohwer: Renovated WWII Japanese-American special internment detention centers.

* Blythville AFB: This base was closed but is now being used as a camp location. New wooden barracks have been constructed at this location. This camp is surrounded by high wire topped with barbed wire, and has guard towers.

* Berryville: FEMA facility located east of Eureka on hwy 62. Mark Korneke claims that it is located near [*chicken-man*] Tyson's property.

* Omaha: FEMA facility located on Hwy 65 south of old wood-processing plant. It is on an old dirt road that leads to a toxic-waste dump. Note: The facility in MS. is also located on an old toxic-waste dump.

Colorado:

* Trinidad: WWII German/Italian POW camp now being renovated.

* Prowers County, Granada: Renovated WWII Japanese-American special internment detention facility.

California:

* Oakdale, CA: 90 miles East of San Francisco on HWY 120. Holds a minimum of 15,000 people, REX 84 program, Emergency Custodial Facility.

* Vandenberg AFB: Located midway between San Luis Obispo and Santa Barbara. The base is on HWY 1 and close to HWY 101. REX 84 program, Emergency Custodial Facility.

* Ft. Irwin: Irwin is a remote mountain. region south of Death Valley National Monument. This base is designated as inactive; however, there is a concentration camp located at this facility about 30 miles from Interstate 15 in Barstow.

* Inyo County, Manzanar: Renovated WWII Japanese-American special internment detention center.

* Modoc County, Tule Lake: Renovated WWII Japanese-American special internment detention facility.

* Sacramento Army Depot: No specific data at this time.

Florida:

* Avon Park: No data available

* Camp Krome: Located near Miami Dept. of Justice detention and interrogation facility.

* Eglin AFB: This base is greater than 50 miles long extending from Pensacola Bay to HWY 331 in De Funiak Springs. It is adjacent to Interstate 10 on the north and the Fort Walton Beach vacation spot. REX 84 program, Emergency Custodial Facility.

Georgia:

* Ft. Benning: Located East of Columbia near the Georgia/Alabama state line. REX 84 program, Emergency Custodial Facility. Prisoners from all over the U.S. may be brought in via Lawson Army airfield.

* Unadilla, Ga., Macon County: Located on East Railroad Street. Plunket road leads into the facility 1-1/ 2 miles from Unadilla on county road 230. This is a FEMA prison, manned and staffed, but no prisoners. * Oglethorpe, Ga., Macon County: Facility is located five miles from Montezuma, three miles from Oglethorp. Traveling south on highway 49, located on the west side of the highway. This FEMA prison has no staff and no prisoners.

* Morgan, Ga., Calhoun County: I-75 exit 32 to 300 south to Albany. Take highway 234 to Morgan. Go through Morgan taking highway 45 south. The FEMA facility is 1-1/2 miles on the right (west) side of highway 45. This FEMA facility is fully manned and staffed but no prisoners.

* Camilla, Ga., Mitchell County: from Camilla take highway 19 south, travel 5.4 miles from 37/19 junction to Mount Zion Road, turn left (east) on Mount Zion Road. The FEMA facility is located on Mount Zion Road, aprox. 5.7 miles south of Camilla. This facility is not manned or staffed and their are no priosoners. * Hawkinsville, Ga., Pulaski County: Located on fire road 100/Upper River Road, 2 miles west from alternate 129 north 257/112 east. Five miles east of Hawkinsville. This FEMA facility is fully manned and staffed but no prisoners.

* Abbeyville, Ga., Wilcox County: South side of Abbeyvilleon highway 129 (Broad Street) off highway 280 (Main Street). This FEMA facility is fully manned and staffed but no prisoners.

* McRae, Ga., Telfair County: 1.5 miles west of McRae on highway 134 (8th street). The FEMA facility is on Irwinton Ave. off 8th street. This facility is fully manned and staffed but no prisoners.

Frequencies: 153.7400 Georgia State Correctional Institutions; 154.9050 Intrastate Coordinating (carto-car/state wide); 154.9350 Intrastate Coordinating (base-to-base/state wide); 155.3700 Georgia Police Intersystem (state wide)

Idaho:

* Jerome County, Minipoka: Renovated WWII Japanese-American special internment detention facility. * Kooski PLUS 50 miles East... Near Lolo Pass Moose Creek. Unmanned and there is a nearby landing strip in or near a national forest.

Illinois:

* Marseilles: It is located on the Illinois River off Interstate 80 on HWY 6. It is a relatively small facility with a capacity of 1400 prisoners. Though it is small it is designed like other concentration camp facilities with high fences topped with barbed wire and guard towers. Being located on the Illinois River it is possible that prisoners will be brought in by water, air and ground. Note: This facility is relatively close to Chicago, Illinois.

Indiana:

* Thousands of acres located just out of Indianapolis, Indiana, holds a large concentration camp facility complete with barracks, high fence, razor wire, towers, turnstyles, a railroad, helicopter landing pads, and what appears to be three large furnaces with 3-inch mains on one of the buildings.

This is a massive facility, still under construction with a completition date sometime in 1996.

* Ft. Benjamin Harrison: A U.S. Army facility located on the outskirts of Indianapolis will be used to hold prisoners of the NWO.

* Ft. Wayne: FEMA detention facility

* Terre Haute: FEMA detention facility

Kansas:

* Leavenworth: U.S. Marshal's Fed Holding Facility PFP.

* Concordia: WWII German/Italian POW camp being renovated.

* El Dorado: Federal prison to be converted to U.N. forced labor facility.

* Topeka: 80 acres converted to a holding camp for anti-New World Order prisoners.

Kentucky:

* Louisville: FEMA detention facility

* Lexington: FEMA detention facility

Louisiana:

* Livingston: WWII German/Italian POW camp being renovated.

Maine:

* Houlton: WWII German/Italian POW camp being renovated.

Missouri:

* Richards, Gebaur AFB: This facility is located in Grandview. A large civilian internment facility has been built on this facility, and base personnel are restricted from the area.

Michigan:

* Bay City: Sits on Saginaw Bay which connects to Lake Huron. Prisoners may be brought in by ship from either the United States or Canada. This facility has high fencing, barbed wire and guard towers.

* Grayling Camp, Grayling, Michigan: National Guard Base. Detention facility. Guard towers, razor wire.

See the photographs at http://www.flash.net/~msmith01

* Southwest area of the state: FEMA detention facility

- * Central part of the state: FEMA detention facility
- * Detroit: FEMA detention facility

Mississippi:

* Hancock County: The NASA facility at this location has two camps, the first being located at the end of Kiln road at Waveland, and then the next road after ammo road at the Post Office. The second camp is located in the center of a rest station back from the Interstate. Inmates from the Hancock County Jail claim they have worked details involving the delivery of food to these camps under the supervision of U.N. guards. One individual claims that one of these camps is full of Europeans: men, women and children all within the same compound. He said that the U.N. guards stationed there were severely beating the prisoners who appeared to be involved in forced labor.

Though it is impossible to verify this information at this time I did hear a recorded interview with this inmate, and he sounded very sincere.

Nebraska:

* Scottsbluff: WWII German/Italian POW camp being renovated.

- * Northwest corner of state: FEMA detention facility
- * Northeast corner of state: FEMA detention facility
- * South Central Hastings area: FEMA detention facility

Nevada:

* Elco: There is a prison facility 10 miles out of Elco.

* Wells Camp is located in the O'Niel Basin area, 40 miles North of Wells, and west off HWY 93, 25 miles.

* Winnemucca Camp is located at the I-80 mile-marker 112, on the south side of the road and 3/4 miles off of the road.

* Wells/Winnemucca Camp is lcated near the base line of the mountains.

* Reno, Nevada: PLUS 150 miles east, south side of road if you're headed west, 150 yards off the road.

New York:

* Ft. Drum located in upstate New York, probable location for Eastern area processing of people, located newr the St. Lawrence River and access to Lake Ontario. Both waterways may be used for transport. Located very close to Canada.

* Watertown: FEMA detention facility

* Albany FEMA: detention facility

* Buffalo: FEMA detention facility

Ohio:

- * Cleveland: FEMA detention facility
- * Columbus: FEMA detention facility
- * Cincinnati: FEMA detention facility
- * Lima: FEMA detention facility

Oklahoma:

* Oklahoma City: Tinker AFB—this is a civilian detention facility, all base personnel are prohibited from going near the area, and the area is under constant guard.

* McAlester: WWII German/Italian POW camp being renovated.

* Will Rogers Air Port: This is a newly constructed FEMA facility, and it is believed that it will be used as

a primary processing center for prisoners West of the Mississippi River.

Pennsylvania:

* Indiantown Gap Military Reservation: Located North of Harrisburg, Pa. Used for WWII POW camp and renovated by Pres. Jimmy Carter. Was used to hold Cubans during Mariel boat lift.

* Camp Hill: Camp Hill, Pa., located off I-15, sits across the navigable Susquehanna River from Harrisburg. Close to Cumberland Army Depot and the Camp Hill Correctional Facility.

* Crossville: WWII German/Italian POW Camp being renovated.

Texas:

* Ft.Hood: Ft. Hood has a newly-built concentration camp, constructed complete with towers, high fencing, and barbed wire.

* Mexia: WWII German/ Italian POW camp being renovated.

* Amarillo: FEMA detention facility

Utah:

* Millard County—Central Utah: Renovated WWII Japanese-American special internment detention facility.

* Skull Valley Camp: Williams property—west of the old bombing range south/southwestern portion of Camp Williams. This camp was discovered by a man and his son who were rabbit hunting; they were discovered and apprehended.

* Utah Lake: 15 miles south of Saratoga Recreation Center, 200-300 yards off the road, black wire 40-to-50 feet tall, made to look something like a golf driving range.

* Cedar City: East of Cedar City, Utah—no more data.

Washington:

* Okanogan County: Borders Canada and is a site for a massive concentration camp capable of holding hundreds of thousands of people who will be used for slave labor. This is probably one of the locations that will be used to hold hard-core patriots who will be held captive for the rest of their lives.

Wisconsin:

* Ft. McCoy: Located in western Wisconsin 30 miles East of LaCrosse between the point [*sic*] where 90 and 94 intersect. REX 84 program, Emergency Custodial Facility.

* Central part of the state: FEMA detention facility.

Wyoming:

* Park County-Hart Mountain: Renovated WWII Japanese-American special internment detention facilities.

* North Central part of the state: FEMA detention facility

* Southeast part of the state: FEMA detention facility

* Southwest part of the state: FEMA detention facility

* East Yellowstone: Manned facility—investigators were apprehended by European soldiers, unable to identify the language used by the foreign soldiers; American government helped clear the situation.

Please visit:

<http://www.prospectorsbanqueclub.com> and <http://www.eagleflt.com>

To receive posts from this list send an e-mail to me with the word "subscribe" in the subject box. David E. Rydel, EAGLEFLIGHT United States Theatre Command; Voice-248-391-0798, Fax-248-391-6785, e-mail: <EAGLEFLT@thumb.net> [End quoting]

I haven't verified any of this, but thought it should be brought to your attention even so. Very interesting how many of these places are staffed and prepared but no prisoners. **They must be expecting to use them soon**!

CHAPTER 8

WOW...THANK YOU ALL AND HAPPY NEW YEAR, TOO! by Dr. Edwin M. Young Editor-In-Chief

It is not very often that I'm at a loss for words. However, to the amusement of my co-workers, I have frequently been speechless over the past few weeks as your miraculous notes and cards have flooded the *CONTACT* offices in response to my request for financial help (on page 14 of the 12/9/97 issue).

Your generosity has been overwhelming—so much so that we have *far exceeded* the several-thousand-dollar amount for which I described an immediate need. And that's good, because there's always the unexpected.

Like the flood late Christmas night in the room that serves as local storage for the newspapers and *Phoenix Journals*, as well as doubling as a large meeting room. Due to the recent cold weather, a pipe burst in the ceiling, which then rained down upon the papers, and didn't reveal itself until a lake of water was spotted, the next afternoon, pouring out of the entryway doors to the room.

This is life. But aren't we fortunate to have the compensation from so many of you who were moved to help us. As a result of the funds you sent, we are making much-needed improvements to the newspaper storage arrangement, in the process of cleaning up the mess.

Maybe the single most important gift you gave us—while you thought you were "just helping out a bit" financially—is the vote of confidence in what we are trying to do. Speaking on behalf of the entire staff, we have all been greatly buoyed-up emotionally by the kindness and warmth and encouragement of the notes that have been accompanying even the most "anonymous" of contributions. Maybe the funniest note so far came from A.S. in Boulder, CO. He wrote:

"Dear Dr. Young,

"Every time I receive a new *CONTACT* my thanks go out to God for leading me to it. Every week I look forward to the next issue.

"To me it is the most important information available as to what is going on.

"So, please accept the enclosed and use it for any needs you may have. What the hell, it will all go down the drain soon anyway.

"Thank you for publishing such an excellent paper."

Or, as Ms. V.H. wrote from Auburn, WA:

"Keep CONTACT coming. Keep (red) hair intact. Hope lots of folks respond."

Well, they have responded—and still are responding—with some of the contributions up in the \$2000, \$1000, and \$500 categories. Can you believe that?!

This level of help allows us to continue to address the needs of, for instance, those in prisons who regularly write to us pleading for "any old copies" of *CONTACT* which they, in turn, share with possibly 30 or 40 others who have plenty of desire (and time) on their hands to learn more about the rotten system within which they have become ensnared.

How do you measure *CONTACT*'s distribution or effect as a teaching tool under such dispersive conditions? You can't count those 30 or 40 prisoners as being on the mailing list. And yet who knows what difference, what contribution they may eventually make—like when a security company hires a reformed burglar as an expert consultant.

So many of you expressed your sentiments to me, in one or another kind of wording, as did Ms. E.P. in Red Bluff, CA, who sent quite a sizeable contribution along with these warm and gracious words:

"Thank you for the opportunity to give. I love Truth!"

Listen to that. She thanks US for allowing her to help the cause. Or as Mrs. G.B. in Emporia, KS, put the same sentiment:

"I'm so glad you made your requests known. It is my pleasure to help out what little I can."

Well, there's no such thing as "little" help and, indeed, Truth IS the goal for all of us.

But—getting Truth out the door each week has often been a chess game of wits with the adversarial forces, who try mightily to stop *CONTACT* through whatever means possible. At least now we have a bit of a buffer to better handle the exploding water pipes, the computer hemorrhages, the surprise publication costs, and other adversarial distractions which are just a "normal" part of doing a most unusual business.

And while we're on the subject of giving and our appreciation for same, we here at *CONTACT* do not for one moment wish to overlook those of you who, because of the tight economy and maybe a very restricted retirement income, could not make a financial contribution at this time. Your warm and sincere notes of encouragement during this Holiday Season decorate and enliven the walls of the *CONTACT* offices, radiating the TRUE spirit of this season of hope.

Those prayer-energies and good-intention-energies sent our way are just as important a contribution avenue. Everyone has something different and unique to "bring to the party" and we would like to be quick to acknowledge that not everyone is in a position to contribute to *CONTACT* financially, though we know you most certainly would help out if you could.

I had originally entertained the thought of personally responding to all of you who responded to my 12/9/ 97 plea for help. But when what I thought would be a trickle rose to the wonderful level of a deluge, it became obvious that such was not going to be possible. Thus the necessity for this public reply route. So, on behalf of the *CONTACT* team, let me take this opportunity to thank all of you who heard "the call" and responded in one way or another. Since energy must always *flow* in its utilization from the limitless abundance of Creator Source, we look forward, with some measure of excitement, to how such gracious giving MUST likewise flow back, greatly multiplied, to each of you as we enter the new year.

CHAPTER 9

ATON: A REMINDER TO THOSE WALKING THE "TRUTH BEARER" PATH

1/3/98 ATON

Good morning, little one. It is I, Aton, the One Light. Be at peace, for there is no need for alarm. You are quite able to translate My Energy!

There are many reasons for this interaction at this time. I have ones all around your globe bringing forth these messages. What is taking place in the U.S. is a very focused part of a much larger picture. There is, indeed, great pressure on those of you who have chosen to walk the path of "Truth bearer".

I have chosen my crew for this mission for very PERFECT reasons. You each volunteered to participate at this time—some, for very specific roles, and others on an "as needed" basis. Some of you have been (or will be) filling-in for ones who fail to respond to the call. In that event, you will find that you will be given to remember past abilities and talents. If need be, I shall carry you until such time as you can walk on your own.

With such an event, there is often inner confusion as a result of the fast-paced "ramp-up" cycle often associated with awakening these abilities. Many or you have been groomed from early childhood for the roles that you are now playing. This is to say that, for a good many of you, you had to face great adversarial attacks at an early physical age.

For every one of you who made it this far, there are three or more who did not. But, so too are there others waiting and ready to "step up" if and when the need arises. Never underestimate the depth of planning of this mission.

The path that you have chosen is one of service unto your brethren. This is a most difficult challenge for the majority of the physically oriented crew. There are great EXTERNAL pressures pulling on you—pressures to prove your physical worth to family, neighbors, and friends. Your opponent is a master at exploiting any and all insecurities. If you allow, even for a moment, your shielding to drop (frequency to lower), the adversary will attack in a manner consistent with that of a trapped animal.

When you catch yourself feeling angry or short tempered with one another, please take a moment to breathe in and be thankful for the breath that brings you life. In the moment of TRUE heart-felt appreciation for those things that are seemingly small and subtle, you will not be able to maintain your anger with another Lighted soul, and the resultant upward frequency shift will cause the departure of the dark energy trying to cause division among you.

You will soon be reaping your just rewards (returned energy flow) for the years (lifetimes, in most cases) that you ones have spent in preparation in order to get to your current level of perception and understanding. When you lift up another and help them to their feet, so too shall you be lifted up by others. When you ignore the cry of one in need, so too shall you be ignored.

There is a speed-up at this time in which you ones will be witness to near instant manifestation of returned energy flow. This can work for you or against you, depending upon your alignment with the flow of Creation itself.

You can no longer hide your true self from the world, for if you harbor within yourself any measure of ill intent, animosity, anger and such for another, it will come back to you amplified so quickly that the resultant drain is likely to cause severe reactions as the energy seeks its natural balance. Let go of the past and move forward! Be quick to forgive and others will be equally quick to respond to your lighter, more en-Light-ened state.

Those with ample energy are often the ones using their available energy to deliberately help another. Thus energy comes back multiplied, and the result is often very fulfilling to all involved. The focus upon others, rather than upon self, in a BALANCED interaction, is the single most important lesson you can perfect in that physical domain of experience.

On a related subject, I see that many of our physically-oriented crew members are being very lax in their conscious and deliberate efforts to maintain a high-frequency emotional state. NO ONE IS BEYOND THE REACH OF THE ADVERSARY'S INFLUENCE AT THIS TIME! THE GREATER THE TEACHER, THE GREATER THE ATTACKS.

I HAVE SENT MY MESSENGERS TO ASSIST YOU THROUGH THESE MATTERS, AND I SEE THAT THE MESSAGE MUST BE REPEATED OVER AND OVER. WHY? BECAUSE MANY OF YOU "THINK" THAT YOU ARE BEYOND THE REACH OF THE ADVERSARY AND THAT THE MESSAGE DOES NOT APPLY TO YOU! NO! YOU UNDERESTIMATE THE INFLUENCE AND MASTERY OF THESE DARK ONES. THESE ONES CAN AND WILL EXPLOIT ANY AND EVERY WEAKNESS YOU HAVE. NONE ARE BEYOND THIS TESTING. NONE!

This caution I have sent forth over and over to you ones. Take this message within and seek deliberate understanding. Learn to FEEL the adversary around you.

The more direct your level of participation, the greater the attacks will be. My public receivers are among the most heavily attacked ones at this time. I ask that these ones be especially attentive to their emotional states. Be not offended by another, for you need not the distractions. Allow the offensive ones to pass through your experience and resist not. The resistance only keeps these ones around much longer and will only serve to drain you of your time and energy. Always effort to maintain the greater perspective on why it is that you are here at this time.

Hold your heads up when you walk, and be quick to find reason to offer another assistance, even if it only be a smile of appreciation. I know that many of you are getting tired, and I also know the inner strength and perseverance that you are capable of drawing upon, even if you yourself do not.

I am Aton, the One Light. I am Creator. I AM!

CHAPTER 10

THE NEWS DESK by Dr. Al Overholt 1/10/98

OREGONIANS LAUD STATE IN SHUNNING SOCIAL SECURITY IN FAVOR OF IRAS

From THE DAILY NEWS, Los Angeles, 1/5/98: [quoting]

MEMBERS of Congress who still think it's politically risky to touch Social Security should go west—to Oregon.

A grass-roots Social Security reform movement is under way, and it begins in a state where "Rockefeller Republican"—which is to say "liberal"—is still regarded as a term of praise. In May 1997, the Oregon Legislature overwhelmingly passed a resolution calling on Congress to give the state a waiver that would let it "opt out" of the Social Security system and provide individual retirement savings accounts to its residents. Not just to public employees—as was done in a few Texas counties in the early 1980s—but to every worker in the state.

Following the vote, the usually liberal *Portland Oregonian* newspaper gave the resolution a cautious thumbs-up: "In its current incarnation, Social Security is headed toward insolvency, and it's clear that Congress must do something soon—and if reform happens, Oregon—by declaring its willingness to forge ahead on its own—would be right to claim some of the credit".

The idea for the Social Security opt-out was spearheaded by Oregon state Sen. Gene Derfler, R-Salem, a 73-year-old retired small-business man who is a Social Security recipient himself. Explaining his enthusiasm for the idea, Derfler said: "If you ask any young person if they expect to collect Social Security when they retire, most will say, 'No.' It is not a fair situation. The federal government is not going to address the problem—they have their head in the sand. The answer will have to come from the states, as it did on welfare reform. We would like to have the opportunity to implement a state plan".

Randall Pozdena, a former Federal Reserve economist working for the Portland-based Cascade Policy Institute, has calculated several plausible scenarios for how a privatized system would work in Oregon. Pozdena favors placing each worker's payroll taxes into an "Oregon Private Retirement Account", which would funnel the money into stocks, bonds and other private investments likely to yield a higher return over time than the current Social Security system.

The idea of letting states opt out is forcing public officials to think hard about how the process of privatizing Social Security would work. Many of the problems that face individual states also would face the country if it privatizes Social Security. These include what to do about midcareer workers—who would have to make the transition from the government-run pension system to private savings—as well as how to pay for the benefits of existing Social Security recipients and those workers about to retire.

But the problems are not insurmountable. In Oregon, for example, Pozdena calculates that current Social Security benefits can be paid for by maintaining the employers' share of the payroll tax for the next 23

years. Meanwhile, those enrolled in the new, privatized system could look forward to substantially higher retirement benefits than Social Security will offer.

Even assuming an extremely conservative 3 percent rate of return on their investments (the stock market's historical average, including the years of the Great Depression, is 7 percent), individuals in the private system would enjoy benefits 10 percent more generous than those offered by Social Security. With a 5 percent rate of return (not far above the safest government securities available today), they would enjoy 50 percent more income than Social Security offers.

A number of issues still need to be resolved before a state opt-out plan can be considered realistic. For instance, what safeguards and restrictions on retirement savings investment will be necessary to prevent fraudulent or imprudent investment? And what happens to workers who move into or out of Oregon? Workers leaving the state might face the prospect of losing some of their retirement savings unless Oregon persuades Social Security to allow workers who leave the state to remain enrolled in Oregon's plan.

Hypothetical problems aside, the opt-out strategy remains a good way for states to put pressure on Washington to fix Social Security. Following Oregon's lead, several other states are thinking of passing their own opt-out resolutions.

Of course, real change won't come easily. Even in Oregon, the state's congressional delegation—while generally supportive of the opt-out—has declined to introduce the legislation needed to allow Oregon to complete the task.

What these lawmakers fail to grasp—indeed, what most of official Washington fails to grasp—is that the politics of Social Security reform are changing: If it used to be politically dangerous to talk about making changes to Social Security, the day is fast approaching when the danger will be in keeping the program as it is. [End quoting]

My take on this is: The politicians don't fail to grasp the changes. What is happening is they have to figure a way to keep the money coming in and quit paying so much out. They use these funds for their other devious purposes and don't intend to lose them.

NAZI HUNTER NAMED HITLER COLLABORATOR

Simon Wiesenthal gained international fame as a Holocaust victim and post-war Nazi hunter. A new trial is casting doubt upon Wiesenthal's integrity.

From THE SPOTLIGHT, 12/22/97: [quoting]

Austrian Chancellor Bruno Kreisky charged famed "Nazi-hunter" Simon Wiesenthal with being a Nazi agent in WWII. Kreisky is scheduled to testify about Wiesenthal's tainted past in a slander suit brought by Wiesenthal.

"I can understand that he [Wiesenthal] wanted to save his life under the Nazis, but he has no moral

authority to point his finger at others," Kreisky said at a news conference. "My opinion was, and is, that he was an agent."

Kreisky made his accusation after Wiesenthal charged that Friedrich Peter, head of the right-wing Freedom Party, had been in an SS unit that committed executions in occupied Russia during the war.

Wiesenthal established his Center for Holocaust Studies in Los Angeles in 1977 as a "holocaust survivor". He has made an intentional career of promoting guilt for the victimization of Jews in WWII.

The Murderers Among Us, The Simon Wiesenthal Memoirs, edited by Joseph Wechsberg, says Wiesenthal, a known member of the Polish resistance underground, was allowed to hide two illegal pistols in the desk of *Oberinspektor* Adolf Kohlrautz, his immediate German superior at the Ostbahn Repair Works.

Wiesenthal also "had relative freedom and was permitted to walk all over the yards" and had his own office in the yards, according to the book. That is not the picture presented of "holocaust victims" by the Simon Wiesenthal Center for Holocaust Studies. [End quoting]

The truth is coming out and it won't be pleasant for these Elite thugs who have been enslaving the world.

60,000 PISTOL-PACKING FEDERAL BUREAUCRATS SHOW WHY PEOPLE FEAR THE GOVERNMENT

From the INTERNET, 1/98: [quoting]

A new report revealing that almost 60,000 federal employees now carry weapons has prompted the Libertarian Party to come out in favor of gun control—for the federal government.

According to a study by the General Accounting Office (GAO), an astounding 60,000 government employees in 45 different agencies now carry guns as a routine part of their job.

And it's not just law enforcement agents: Poultry inspectors, park rangers, and disaster aid workers are all allowed to carry weapons—in addition to special agents from the Small Business Administration, NASA, the Department of Education, the U.S. Fish & Wildlife Service, and even the Department of Veterans Affairs, noted Steve Dasbach, national chairman of the Libertarian Party.

"Federal employees have gone nuts—gun nuts," he said. "It's time to impose a waiting period on the federal government, while the American people conduct a background check on these armed and potentially dangerous bureaucrats."

According to the GAO investigation, the number of federal employees with guns is growing rapidly—up by 20% in the last 10 years. In fact, 2,436 armed personnel were added to the federal government's payroll last year alone.

Even worse, federal employees are getting more powerful weapons. According to the GAO, the Energy Department now has access to machine guns, and other agencies can summon tanks and military helicopters. In addition, the Western Journalism Center discovered that the National Park Service and the Department of Human Services now have SWAT teams.

Machine guns? Tanks? SWAT teams? What's going on?

Dasbach said he has a theory: "Congress has passed over 3,000 criminal laws, and federal agencies have churned out hundreds of thousands of regulations that carry criminal penalties. The result is that ordinary Americans run a constant risk of violating laws they've never even heard of as federal agents scramble to enforce those laws at the point of a gun. [End quoting]

Is there any question among thinking people why almost no government official will be safe without a gun in the very near future when a few more people wake up to who's doing what to whom?

CONTACT does NOT advocate violence for any reason. We only report it like we see it. Non-violence is God's way—the word, not the sword!

WATER IS DANGEROUS

Excerpted from THE JUBILEE, Nov./Dec. 1997: [quoting]

Congratulations to Nathan Zohner, 14, of Idaho Falls for a science project that demonstrates the politicalization of science. His display was about the dangers of dihydrogen monoxide. He pointed out that dihydrogen monoxide—a major component of acid rain—can kill you when accidentally inhaled, and causes severe burns in gaseous form. He then asked who would support a ban on this substance. 86% said yes, 12% were unsure, and one person pointed out that dihydrogen monoxide is H_20 , or water. [End quoting]

What better example could we have that ignorance is not bliss? The New World Order depends on this dumbing down of America to lead the sheeple to the slaughter.

STUDY: USELESS DRUGS WERE GIVEN TO BOSNIA

From THE ORLANDO SENTINEL, 12/18/97: [quoting]

At least half of the drugs donated during the war in Bosnia-Herzegovina were unusable, and there is evidence the relief effort may have been used to dump outdated supplies, according to a study in today's *New England Journal of Medicine*.

The cost of disposing of an estimated 17,000 tons of the useless medical supplies now falls on the World Health Organization, which plans to build incinerator plants for that purpose, the study's authors concluded.

They also said the companies that donated the medicines have probably received tax deductions for their

worthless contribution Dr. Patrick Berckmans and other researchers from the European Association for Health and Development in Brussels and the European Institute of Oncology in Milan used a variety of sources to track supplies that entered Bosnia-Herzegovina between 1992 and the middle of 1996.

They found that out of the 27,800 to 34,800 tons of drugs and medical materials donated between 13,900 and 20,900 tons were useless or unusable.

Drugs whose shelf life expired by the time they arrived, drugs with unreadable labels, medicines spoiled during transportation or storage were commonly sent to the war-torn region. [End quoting]

Isn't this what we could expect from the Elite drug companies? After all, it's their Elite brothers who promote the wars, so why would they donate free—**good**—medicines to prevent deaths? Remember they have a plan to kill off billions of people. This way they make money off bad drugs and still kill off the people. They also get the contracts to destroy their waste drugs. They win every possible way—**for just a short time longer.**

HELPING HEARING

From POPULAR SCIENCE magazine, Jan. 1998: [quoting]

Geoffrey ball has had impaired hearing since birth. And for many years, he has been dissatisfied with conventional hearing aids that use the ear canal and eardrum as amplifiers. They can cause irritating feedback noise, distort sound, and be uncomfortable. So Ball invented an alternative while at Stanford University: a device that attaches to one of the tiny bones of the inner ear.

hearing aid

"As a patient, I've been waiting so long for something like this," says Ball, who recently had the device, called the Vibrant Soundbridge, implanted in his ear as part of a U.S. clinical trial. While U.S. trials proceed, Vibrant Soundbridges could be on the market in Europe later this year, according to Symphonix Devices of San Jose, California, which is developing the technology.

The key innovation in the Vibrant Soundbridge is Ball's Floating Mass Transducer, which is about half the size of a grain of rice.

During a surgical procedure, the transducer is attached to the incus bone (nicknamed the anvil because of its shape) with adhesive. A magnet and coil in the transducer work together to oscillate the tiny bone, creating vibrations that stimulate the auditory nerve, which carries signals to the brain. An external device, hidden by hair behind the ear, processes incoming sound; it controls the speed and degree to which the bone is oscillated, to create different pitches and levels of sound. —Mariette DiChristina [End quoting] It sounds (pun intended) like it's a marvelous invention that will benefit hundreds of thousands of people—if allowed to proceed into the marketplace.

WAR ON RIGHTS

From THE NEW AMERICAN, 10/27/97, 1998: [quoting]

The decades-long "war on drugs" has been, in practice, a war on individual rights—and Levine is convinced that such has been the purpose of the enterprise from the beginning. "We haven't had the type of upheaval my CIA friend predicted, but there has been a long process of undermining our freedom and institutionalizing criminal behavior by our government," Levine observes.

"If we're going to fight a war on drugs, it's going to have to be carried out at the local level, by locally accountable people working with the cooperation of the community," Levine concludes. "The feds—and, remember, I was one for 25 years—are following a different agenda. There are some very good, coura-geous federal agents whose efforts are being wasted, just as mine were, by a political Elite that has no interest in winning this war." [End quoting]

This shouldn't be surprising to *CONTACT* readers. If any surprise it should be from the fact this became publicized.

RUNNER BILLS TO INCLUDE HIV

From THE DAILY NEWS, Los Angeles, 12/30/97: [quoting]

Assemblyman George Runner says he will introduce legislation calling for mandatory HIV testing of all newborns under a two-year "Baby AIDS" pilot project in Los Angeles County.

Modeled on the New York law that requires HIV testing for all newborns, the bill requires that test results be kept confidential between parents and physicians.

"This is a bill of compassion for babies," said Runner, R-Lancaster. "We need to do everything we can to build up their immune system."

While test results will be confidential, statistical information on how many infants test positive would be compiled by the state in an effort to better understand how to reduce the rate of HIV infection among infants, Runner says.

While HIV testing is voluntary, Runner says the state requires mandatory testing of infants for far less common diseases, such as phenylketonuria and galactoseinia—both genetic disorders that can lead to mental retardation, and which together were detected in 428 infants from 1980 through 1996.

HIV infection is the sixth-leading cause of death among children ages 1 to 4 in the United States, according to Runner's staff. Approximately 1,300 to 2,000 children are born with HIV annually in the United States, officials say.

Money for the tests—estimated at \$2 million to \$3 million annually—would come from the \$60 million the federal government gives California every year for medical and support services for low-income HIV-

positive patients. [End quoting]

The Elite are making it much easier to do away with babies with the mandatory use of needles on the newborn. They can give contaminated shots to selected ones they don't want to live and help their depopulation plans.

Remember how 2000 years ago the Elite tried to get rid of all babies 2 years old and under? **They always keep reusing the same template to enslave and depopulate.**

WHERE IS THE EAGLE? GONE.

From UNKNOWN, 1997: [quoting]

The Great Chief in Washington sends word that he wishes to buy our land. How can you buy or sell the sky—the warmth of the land. The idea is strange to us. Yet we do not own the freshness of the air or the sparkle of the water. How can you buy them from us? Every part of this Earth is sacred to my people.

We know that White man does not understand our ways. One portion of the land is the same to him as the next, for he is a stranger who comes in the night and takes from the land whatever he needs. The Earth is not his brother but his enemy, and when he has conquered it he moves on. He leaves his fathers' graves, and his children's birthright is forgotten.

There is no quiet place in the White man's cities. No place to hear the leaves of spring or the rustle of insect wings. But perhaps because I am savage and do not understand—the clatter only seems to insult the ears. And what is there to life if a man cannot hear the lovely cry of the whippoorwill or the arguments of the frog around the pond at night.

The Whites too, shall pass—perhaps sooner than other tribes. Continue to contaminate your bed and you will one night suffocate in your own waste. When the buffalo are all slaughtered, the wild horses all tamed, the secret corners of the forest heavy with the scent of many men, and the view of the ripe hills blotted by talking wires. Where is the thicket? Gone. Where is the eagle? Gone. And what is it to say goodbye to the swift and the hunt, the end of living and the beginning of survival? [End quoting]

Our Native brothers have a lot to teach us if we would only listen.

TCAP STORAGE DEVICE

From the INTERNET, <http://www.accpc.com/tcapstore.htm> 1/7/98: [quoting]

American Computer Company announced that it has, after five months effort, successfully assembled a transcapacitor based storage "disk drive" with the assistance of "Tata Industrial Semiconductors", a Tai-wan-based silicon foundry.

Described as a "Poker Chip Sized" solid state disk drive, the new semiconductor could be seen in service by the end of 1999 or early in the year 2000. The device can store over 90 billion characters of informa-

tion, the capacity of 15 Digital Video Disks, or 112 ordinary CD-ROMs, or printed material which could fill <u>90 ten-story buildings [emphasis mine]</u>.

capacitor

Its power consumption is described as "negligible", and the speed of access is said to be "limited by the computer it is connected to, reading a full 1 million bytes of information could take as little as 10 nanoseconds".

The development team, underneath Phillip Huang, has visualized PC's with "no RAM memory needed" in a future implementation which might mate one or more of the INTEL Pentium II Processor(s) with the "90b8" device, along with an "embedded Windows NT operating system". Estimated price for the "Hard Drive" version of the 090b8: \$895.

When reached for comment, a spokesperson stated: "The best part of this design is, it has NO MOVING PARTS TO WEAR OUT, and is 1000 times faster than even the FASTEST Mainframe Hard Drives ever made by IBM. It can store up to about 20 or more hours of continuous high definition television video on a single cartridge, making it ideal for future "set top boxes" used in future film rental systems, that can store 6 to 10 complete first-run films for viewing, retrieved by Cable TV modem on a Pay Per Retrieval—Multiple View basis. It will be able to record an endless amount of Television, News, and Internet Data. It is designed to be "removable" so that it can be taken out and stored (it has its own off-line battery). It is extremely versatile, because it is so compact, a typical system could incorporate multiple slots and owners could own multiple 090b8's. Over time, we expect its price to the end consumer will drop. It will likely change the entire industry: PC's will be able to outperform Mainframes by an order of magnitude, and supercomputers using thousands of this new device, will truly be able to store information in ways that have never been done before."

"We intend to sell the device upon introduction next year, as a component Computer assembly houses can simply buy and add to their PCs, and consumers can buy and upgrade existing machines with. We may just NOT sell it to the top 10 PC Companies who monopolize our industry. It's success hinges upon how reliable our ability to produce such a technology is, one so far ahead of today's memory technologies that it is more than 720 times the capacity of IBM's recent storage announcement, and perhaps a hundred years ahead. Compared to what the Army allegedly discovered 50 years ago, our rendering is probably rather primitive. Humanity must be, on the intelligence scale, the equivalent of a "low grade moron" wherever this device's design came from. In a report read to me yesterday, we have been told that IBM is extremely 'jumpy' about all this, and local confidential inquiries in the Westchester County, New York area around IBM's "New Orchard Road, Armonk" headquarters seems to indicate that while most IBM'ers agree with what we are doing 100%, IBM Corporate Relations continues to try to find ways to upset our applecart, pardon my pun."

PATENTS PENDING. ALL RIGHTS RESERVED WORLDWIDE. American Computer Company.

The Transfer Capacitor BASED 90 Gigabyte Storage Drive (photo depiction of wafer without leads or housing)

chip

[End quoting]

It's hard to comprehend that the information stored on this "pokerchip" chip, if printed on paper, would require 90 ten-story buildings for storage.

Far greater amazing devices are waiting for God's people after this planet gets through its tribulation times.

SUBJECT: INTERNET, FCC

From the INTERNET, 12/21/97: [quoting]

I am writing you this to inform you of a very important matter currently under review by the FCC. Your local telephone company has filed a proposal with the FCC to impose per-minute charges for your Internet service. They contend that your usage has or will hinder the operation of the telephone network.

It is my belief that Internet usage will diminish if users were required to pay additional per-minute charges. The FCC has created an e-mail box for your comments, responses must be received by February 13, 1997. Send your comments to <isp@fcc.qov> and tell them what you think.

Every phone company is in on this one, and they are trying to sneak it in just under the wire for litigation. Let everyone you know read this one. Get the e-mail address to everyone you can think of. [End quoting]

Why would the phone companies try to cut out business? Only because the power of all the people having instant communication all over the world is hampering their control—**severely.**

TERRORISM SEMINAR SPONSORED BY FEMA

From *THE SEEKERS*, by Mary Snell, P.O. Box 6708, Texarkana, TX 75505-670, Nov./Dec. '97: [quoting]

Late August—A three-day "Terrorism" seminar. Sponsored by FEMA. Attendees: Local police and sheriff departments, ATF, FBI, U.S. Marshals, and Texas DPS, about 65 in all. FEMA showed a caravan of vehicles and gear. Local patriots profiled for 'future attention'. Plans were made on how to deal with local patriots when the 'balloon goes up'. Gun confiscation was discussed. It appeared they were getting ready for a 'round-up'.

The main speakers are self-appointed experts from the ADL and the Southern Poverty Law Center whose agenda is the establishment of the New World Order. It is this 'unbiased' opinions [*sic*] in which these "terrorism" seminars are held. The police are so influenced that they are in 'lockstep' with the NWO. They happily enforce the guidelines of the totalitarian State and think they are patriots for doing so. Rest assured gun confiscation will happen and if you resist you will be arrested as an enemy of the NWO. [End quoting]

JUDGE: FBI SHARPSHOOTER MUST FACE TRIAL IN RUBY RIDGE CASE

From *THE ORLANDO SENTINEL* (AP), 1/8/98: [quoting]

BONNERS FERRY, Idaho—A judge Wednesday ordered an FBI sharpshooter to stand trail on a state manslaughter charge for the death of white separatist Randy Weaver's wife in the 1992 siege at Ruby Ridge.

The U.S. Justice Department decided in 1994 against prosecuting Lon Horiuchi and upheld the decision last year after a long review. But in August, Boundary County Prosecutor Denise Woodbury filed a charge of involuntary manslaughter.

Magistrate Judge Quentin Harden decided there was probable cause to bring Horiuchi to trial on the state charge. Harden scheduled a Feb. 13 arraignment.

A federal judge is scheduled to hear arguments Monday from Horiuchi's lawyers in Boise that the case should be transferred to federal court.

Harden ruled after reviewing briefs that the defense and prosecution recently submitted on whether Horiuchi was negligent, reckless or careless in firing shots.

Horiuchi's lawyers have argued that the state failed to meet its burden of proof that Horiuchi was grossly negligent, or that "standards of care" had been violated.

Horiuchi was among dozens of federal agents who surrounded Weaver's cabin. Weaver was being sought on an illegal-weapons charge. His 14-year-old son, Sam, and deputy U.S. Marshal William Degan of Boston also were killed in a gunfight at the outset of the 11-day siege.

If convicted of involuntary manslaughter, Horiuchi could get 10 years in prison.

Horiuchi testified in 1993 during a trial for Weaver and Weaver's friend Kevin Harris that he had been aiming at Harris when he fired the shot that killed Weaver's wife. Horiuchi said he had aimed at Harris as he ran back into the cabin.

At a Dec. 17 hearing, Harden found that Horiuchi unlawfully killed Vicki Weaver without malice, but he held off ruling on whether the FBI sniper would be bound over for trial. Harden made no comments on the reason for his decision in Wednesday's order.

Woodbury also filed state murder and assault charges against Harris in Degan's slaying and the wounding of another federal agent, but Harden dismissed the charges Oct. 2 because Harris already had been cleared of murder and other charges in the 1993 federal trial.

Harden said the state charges violated an Idaho law that bars prosecution of someone who already has faced prosecution in another state, territory or country. [End quoting]

1998 YEAR OF DESTINY?

From *Flashpoint* (12-97) and others: [quoting]

1998 the Year of Destiny. If you are into numbers then this is a 6 year! 666 perhaps. 666 times 3 is 1998.

America will be 222 [*one-ninth of 1998*] years old (counting from 1776) adding up 6 (the incarnate evil). Clinton, the 42nd president will be 42 (again both add up to 6). This presents a nation's birthday whose number is six, the president also gives us two sixes (666).

The U.N. will celebrate its 51st birthday (6). 1998 will be Clinton's 6th year since election and six years since the Waco Massacre.

Microsoft, Motorola and McDonnell-Douglas (and others) will complete their launch of 66 satellites in space, setting up a worldwide system of techno-spying and invasion of personal privacy that only George Orwell's Big Brother could appreciate.

1998 the triple-witching year of Destiny. [End quoting]

UNIDENTIFIED FLYING OBJECTS SPOTTED OVER COSTA RICA

From the INTERNET, 12/27/97: [quoting]

The Costa Rican mass media reported on Thursday that unidentified flying objects were spotted the day before in the country's air space over Golfito district, which is 330 kilometres to the south of San Jose. However, TV cameramen were unable to film them as they did on Monday,

On December 22 cameramen from two local television channels filmed at least a dozen "flying saucers" in the sky south of the Costa Rican capital. Before the eyes of hundreds of people, they made zigzag maneuvers for several minutes. Flight controllers of the International Juan Santamaria Airport counted "approximately fifty thousand traces" of their movements. Some car drivers stopped to watch the phenomenon.

According to Ufologist Carlos Vilchez, most remarkable is the fact that these UFOs appeared in daytime, that they were seen by hundreds of people and were filmed by TV cameramen. He also expressed the view that an influx of UFOs into the air space of this Central American country could be expected within the next two months.

About ten "saucers" were watched by hundreds of people over San Jose exactly one month ago. They flew over the city for several minutes. They were also filmed by TV cameramen.

Scientists have not found any explanations for this phenomenon. [End quoting]

I predict more and more people all over the world will be exposed to flying saucers and other types of spaceships.

GRASSROOTS ACTION IS IMPERATIVE

From *NATURALACTIVISTS*, JAN/FEB '98: [quoting]

The ADA and state dental boards continue to harass mercury-free dentists, thereby preventing legitimate dialogue about the potentially profound health consequences of mercury and restricting the public's access to information and treatment.

For more information about this issue and how to get involved, call Citizens For Health at (800) 357-2211. [End quoting]

Why, oh why is education of the public in a private dental office (not coerced) considered a crime worthy of seizing a license that took a minimum of 6 years of tough college courses to obtain. Isn't this telling you the Elite are trying to prevent you from learning something that might be very beneficial to you??

Where is freedom of speech? Under these circumstances most politicians should be impeached for misleading and lying to us. Aren't those the implications above? However, we have absolute proof that politicians are lying to and harming people, but **they don't have proof that amalgam doesn't harm people**!!

CHRISTIAN AMERICA?

ANTON LAVEY DIES

From *THE JUBILEE*, Nov./Dec. 1997: [quoting]

Anton Sandor LaVey, founder of the Church of Satan, died on Halloween morning of a pulmonary edema at 67. He lived in San Francisco where he founded the Church of Satan. LaVey claimed that his brand of Satanism was more about freethinking than it was about the worship of evil. Anton LaVey is not a free-thinker anymore. He knows the truth now. [End quoting]

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF RELIGION

From *THE JUBILEE*, Nov./Dec. 1997: [quoting]

A bill before the House (HR1685—Wolf, R-CA) creates an Office of Religious Monitoring (ORM) which

is based on specifications from the *UN Charter* on Human Rights. It trains government employees to evaluate different religions. [End quoting]

Where is separation of state and religion in this instance??

DESERT STORM TROOPS TO HAND BACK MEDALS

From THE INDEPENDENT OF JAPAN: [quoting]

British veterans of Operation Desert Storm are to make the ultimate gesture of their sense of betrayal at government inaction over Gulf War Syndrome. Next month, dozens will go to the Ministry of Defence to hand back the medals they won serving Queen and country. Ian Burrell reports.

They were intended as symbols of heroism. Silver medals, bearing the airman's eagle, the sailor's anchor and the soldier's SA80 rifle, were issued to those who returned home victorious from war in the desert. The sandy stripe on the ribbon was a reference to the difficult terrain in which the 51,000 holders of the new Gulf War medal had risked their lives.

But just as thousands of the returning troops have fallen ill or died since the war, so the medals themselves have lost their lustre; the badges of pride have become objects of loathing for many sick veterans.

Next month, in the most dramatic display of their anger since the end of the conflict, scores of veterans will converge on the Ministry of Defence in Whitehall to return their medals.

The mass protest is believed to be unprecedented in the history of the armed forces and will underline the sense of abandonment felt by many of those who have become ill since serving in the war.

Their sense of isolation has been enhanced by their belief that the Government has abandoned Labour's pre-election promises that they would be fairly treated.

Mr. Rusling, of Hull, is now sick, and feels the Government has failed him. "Such is my distress and sadness at the way the veterans have been treated that if it takes this gesture to make them sit up and think then we will throw the medals back at them."

Last Tuesday night Dr. John Reid, the Armed Forces Minister, said he and the Ministry of Defence had put unprecedented effort into investigating Gulf War illnesses and the Government had doubled the resources allocated to the problem. [End quoting]

Finally these soldiers and many people are beginning to awaken to what war has always been about—the using of the lower classes and uninformed to fight for the rich to gain more riches and maintain their power, and to hell with the ones who do their killings and rapings for them.

<u>A POEM</u>

From a FAX, courtesy of N. McLaughlin, '97: [quoting]

BE A MAN, MY SON!

If you can keep your head when all about you Are losing theirs and blaming it on you; If you can trust yourself when all men doubt you, But make allowance for their doubting too: If you can wait and not be tired by waiting, Or, being lied about—don't deal in lies, Or being hated—don't give way to hating, And yet don't look too good, nor talk too wise;

If you can dreamand not make dreams your master; If you can think—and not make thoughts your aim, If you can meet with Triumph and Disaster And treat those two impostors just the same: If you can bear to hear the truth you've spoken Twisted by knaves to make a trap for fools, Or watch the things you gave your life to, broken, And stoop and build 'em up with worn-out tools: If you can make one heap of all your winnings And risk it on one turn of pitch-and-toss, And lose, and start again at your beginnings, And never breathe a word about your loss; If you can force your heart and nerve and sinew To serve your turn long after they are gone, And so hold on when there is nothing in you Except the Will which says to them: "Hold on!"

If you can talk with crowds and keep your virtue, Or walk with Kings—nor lose the common touch, If neither foes nor loving friends can hurt you, If all men count with you, but none too much: If you can fill the unforgiving minute With sixty seconds' worth of distance run, Yours is the Earth and everything that's in it, And—what is more—you'll be a Man, my son! —Rudyard Kipling [End quoting]

<u>A POEM</u>

From THE SEEKERS, byMary Snell, Nov./Dec. 1997: [quoting]

DON'T QUIT

When things go wrong, as they sometimes will, When the road you're trudging seems all uphill, When funds are low and the debts are high, And you want to smile, but you have to sigh, When care is pressing you down a bit— Rest if you must, but don't quit.

Life is odd with its twists and turns, As every one of us sometimes learns, And many a person turns about When they might have won had they stuck it out. Don't give up though the pace seems slow— You may succeed with another blow.

Often the struggler has given up When he might have captured the victor's cup; And he learned too late when the night came down, How close he was to the golden crown.

Success is failure turned inside out— So stick to the fight when you're hardest hit— It's when things seem worst you must not quit.

-Author unknown

CHAPTER 11

THE NEWS DESK SPECIAL REPORT by Dr. Al Overholt 1/10/98

WORLD DOMINATION

AMERICA FLAUNTS POWER ON "EVE OF DESTRUCTION"

State Department Warns Americans Abroad: "Watch Your Backs"

From THE FREE AMERICAN, January 1998, http://www.TheWinds.org/index.html: [quoting]

The U.S. State Department issued a warning on November 19th to all Americans on foreign soil. "In light of events unfolding throughout the world, U.S. citizens traveling or residing abroad are advised to exercise greater than usual caution," the announcement said. "We cannot discount the possibility of random acts of anti-American violence, such as drive-by shootings, kidnapings or bombings. U.S. diplomatic posts worldwide are taking appropriate security precautions."

It is not uncommon for the State Department to issue warnings and advisories to Americans planning travel to or residing in certain foreign countries, but an announcement of a global scope is quite unusual, if not an original. Such a warning should cause all Americans to stop and reflect on the true causes of the evident rise in the world's hostility toward Americans. Why should the citizens of a generous, good and free nation have to fear for their lives the world over?

The State Department bulletin cites the recent conviction of Mir Aimal Kasi for the murders of CIA employees outside of the CIA headquarters, as well as that of Ramzi Yousef for the World Trade Center bombing, as reasons for heightened security. Both men are Pakistani. The killing of four U.S. businessmen in Pakistan last week in alleged retaliation for the convictions, the slaughter of tourists by fundamentalists in Egypt this week, and the "general situation in the Middle East", were also cited as reasons for alarm.

The bulletin does not explain the real causes behind "terrorist" acts. It does not explain why the World Trade Center was bombed, or the CIA employees killed, or why the four U.S. businessmen were shot in Pakistan, or why the Khobar Towers in Saudi Arabia were bombed, killing 27 U.S. servicemen. Most Americans are satisfied with the explanations given by their government and the official news media. These explanations can be summed up in the words: "We are the good guys and they are the bad guys and that's why they want to kill us. But don't worry, your government is making the world safe for democracy." We will now examine one of the true reasons the world hates America.

STATE TERRORISM ON A COLOSSAL SCALE

Last week there was a nation living in fear of a massive terrorist attack. This is a nation that has been held

hostage since 1991, starved half to death and toyed with like a cat toys with a mouse. The country is Iraq and its big threat to the U.S. is its failure to fully cooperate with U.N. inspectors probing the broken-down remnants of its U.S.-made defense infrastructure. Iraq claims that for the past six years trade sanctions have been starving their children and causing great suffering while U.N. inspectors piddle around, always looking for more to inspect, never quite finished with their work so sanctions can be lifted. Iraq says it has had enough and tells the Americans on the inspection team to leave. Then the campaign of terror begins.

In response to this affront to its moral and political superiority, the U.S. sends 22 warships and 300 warplanes to the area, and begins beating the war drum of destruction. President Clinton, draft dodger turned warlord-in-chief, makes a series of public comments designed to whip up war fever in the U.S. Defense Secretary Cohen goes on television, holding up a five-pound bag of sugar to show how much anthrax it would take to wipe out "half the people in Washington", anthrax that Iraq allegedly possesses. The media war propaganda is so effective that 84% of Americans surveyed support bombing Iraq if it shoots at American spy planes flying over its territory. 54% support bombing Iraq just for excluding American inspectors on the U.N. weapons team. (1) How easy it is to make criminals of so many?

As the U.S. began its military buildup earlier this month, the fear in Iraq must have been palpable. Iraqis remember the January '91 aerial bombardment that killed tens of thousands of civilians, and over fifty thousand military conscripts by conservative estimates. During the bombing campaign of "Desert Storm", sophisticated American aircraft targeted civilian Iraqi infrastructure such as water, sewage and power plants, inflicting a form of biological warfare on civilians. Such devastation created unsanitary conditions that ensured long term suffering among the population, suffering that has been prolonged and aggravated by American enforced economic sanctions. (2).

The U.N. "coalition forces" (read U.S. and U.K., with token participation by others) targeted Iraqi civilian infrastructure for the purpose of creating suffering, despair and political upheaval. President Bush did not want the credit for putting Saddam in jail with Manuel Noriega or having him knocked off, as that would not go over well with Arabs generally. Iraqis must do it themselves and, so, the U.S. launched a campaign of terror against civilians, bombing them into the preindustrial age and then holding them hostage through sanction-induced starvation and deprivation of the basic necessities of life. The bombing campaign was state terrorism on a colossal scale. U.N. sanctions were economic terror of the same magnitude, causing the deaths of over half-a-million Iraqi children due to malnutrition and preventable disease. Over one-third of children in Iraq are stunted or deformed due to malnutrition. Malnutrition was nonexistent in Iraq before U.N. sanctions were imposed in August 1990. (3).

WORLD GOVERNMENT... BY ANY MEANS NECESSARY!

The terror, slaughter, starvation and general suffering inflicted upon Iraq by the United States during the Gulf War becomes even more incomprehensible in light of the long-term foreign policy goals that created the war in the first place. If Saddam is the thug the news media says he is, he is no different now than in the 1980s when the U.S. built his military machine for him, and he is no worse than the ruling Sabah family dictatorship in Kuwait who the U.S. put back in power after the Gulf War. What's more, Iraq was and is

a strategic asset in helping the United States establish its perennial presence in the Persian Gulf, its hegemony over Middle East oil, and in demonstrating the force of "international law" (read U.S. law) in the entire world. Some claim that Saddam is on the C.I.A. payroll. While that may or may not be true, we may know that the Gulf War was contrived by the United States for the purpose of obtaining its political goals, and that Iraq is a pawn in the power game.

The history of Kuwait and Iraq is complex. Suffice it to say there is much more than meets the eye. The American press mocks Saddam's ignorance of the American political system, but your average American's ignorance of the history of the Gulf region is even more profound. Iraq's southern border with Kuwait dates back to an agreement with Turkey in 1913 which was never ratified. Kuwait was the administrative sub-district of the Iraqi province of Basra at the time. When Iraq was given its independence in 1932, Kuwait remained under British control. Since those times, the unresolved border issue has festered, resulting in short-lived Iraqi invasions in 1961 and 1973. Kuwait has remained a Western-controlled "corporate state" colony, ruled by the despotic, Western-supported regime of the Sabah family. To Iraq, Kuwait represents the humiliation of Western control and domination. (4).

1990 was the year the Sabahs seemed to do everything to pick a fight with Iraq. Kuwait broke OPEC quotas, glutting the global market with oil and causing a drop in prices. This hurt Iraq financially, as it was struggling with its war debts from the Iran-Iraq war. Kuwait had previously drilled laterally in the Rumaila oil field, which is ninety percent in Iraqi territory, and took a hard line on a number of other issues involving a loan and Iraqi access to the Gulf. Iraq has only fifteen miles of shoreline and the land is unusable because it is marshy. These are a few of the issues that irritated relations. (5).

As irritations came to a head, U.S. government officials flashed a "green light" to Saddam's government that in essence said, "Do what you want, we will not interfere." When Senator Bob Dole visited Baghdad on April 12, 1990, he told the Iraqis that the U.S. had no interest in the Kuwait border issue. Under Secretary of State John Kelly related the same message; and on July 25, 1990, American Ambassador April Glaspie was summoned to meet with Saddam in Baghdad.

She was asked about America's position on the border issue and she replied that it was an "Arab-to-Arab problem". She told Hussein of President Bush's desire to maintain a friendly relationship, and that he hoped the border issued could be resolved peacefully. (6).

On the eve of Iraq's invasion of Kuwait, State Department spokesperson Margaret Tutweiler stated in a press briefing that the U.S. had no special defense treaty with Kuwait. On August 2, 1990, Iraqi troops poured across the border into Kuwait. National Security Adviser Brent Scrowcroft and Defense Secretary Richard Cheney immediately flew to Saudi Arabia to warn King Fahd that Iraqi troops would soon be on his doorstep and convinced him to allow a massive deployment of U.S. forces into his country. As the Saudi's cast their lot with the U.S., the Arab world was divided and American hegemony was soon to be complete. The rest is history.

THE GLOBAL CONQUESTS OF A DESPOTIC "NEW WORLD ORDER"

Soon after Iraq's invasion, Bush launched into his characteristic demonization of Saddam Hussein, so

reminiscent of his tirades against Manuel Noriega during the U.S. invasion of Panama. "America stands where it always has—against aggression, against those who would use force to replace the rule of law," said the invader of Panama and the only head of state to be condemned by the World Court for "unlawful use of force". For some reason, the official press missed the irony of Bush's bombastic hypocrisy. It performed its propaganda function with the usual relish, whipping up war hysteria with long tales of Iraqi atrocities. It wasn't difficult to convince Americans to go along with the attack on Iraq because they generally love a good war if the enemy poses no threat and they can watch the action on the evening news.

In spite of the broad coverage the war received, the subtle introduction of a new way of thinking remained mostly undetected. The "liberation" of Kuwait was the ostensible objective that was evident on the surface, while the "stealth" objective was the establishment of world government. With the Cold War over and the Soviet Union ready to cooperate, it was time to move. The "winds of change" were favorable, or so they seemed.

The Bush administration went before the United Nations, first to obtain sanctions against Iraq and, secondly, to obtain a Security Council resolution authorizing military action against Iraq. Both were obtained, as was the illusion that the U.S. is now subordinate to the world body. Bush played the moderate, pretending to rely on sanctions to force Iraq out of Kuwait, while quietly building up a formidable military force in Saudi Arabia. Saddam seemed content to let the buildup proceed.

During his State of the Union address in early 1991, President Bush outlined the bigger picture for the U.S. Congress and the nation. Concerning the Gulf crisis he said: "What is at stake is more than one small country, it is a big idea—a New World Order...to achieve the universal aspirations of mankind." This was the true objective of the war—a New World Order—not the "liberation" of Kuwait. The Gulf War was the battering ram to bring it about. He went on to say that the New Order would be "based on shared principles and the rule of law...", that is, a world government would be established to enforce this "New Order". He also said, "The illumination of a thousand points of light...The winds of change are with us now." (7). The "points of light" was reference to an esoteric phrase used by proponents of world government since it was coined by Dante in 1313 A.D. The winds of change were indeed blowing, not in favor of the universal aspirations of the downtrodden masses of the Earth, but the international Elite who have wanted absolute power for so long.

Later, on February 6, President Bush fills in the picture a little more when he tells the Economic Club of New York: "My vision of a New World Order foresees a United Nations with a revitalized Peacekeeping function."

Admiral Stansfield Turner, head of the Central Intelligence Agency, defined the real purpose of the Gulf War even further when he declared on a CNN program in July '91: "We have a much bigger objective. We've got to look at the long run here. This is an example—the situation between the United Nations and Iraq—where the United Nations is deliberately intruding into the sovereignty of a sovereign nation... Now this is a marvelous precedent (to be used in) all countries of the world. (8).

And so it has been. The Gulf War provided new legitimacy to the U.N., put teeth into subsequent Security Council resolutions, and set a precedent creating the inviolability of "international law", which close scrutiny will reveal to be the dictates of the international money and political Elite.

The recent "crisis" over U.N. weapons inspection teams in Iraq has given the political Elite another opportunity to emphasize the sacred, infallible status of this "international law". "The United States warned Saddam not to expect any concessions simply for doing what is mandated by the United Nations," blared an *ABC News* story on November 17, which also quoted Defense Secretary Cohen as saying, "We are not seeking any deal in order to insist that he comply with his obligations. There should be no question about that." Cohen went on to say, "He must comply and there must be no compensation or any carrots offered in order to entice him to do what he is legally obligated to do." Legally obligated? By what? By "international law", to which all nations must bow. What is Saddam "legally" obligated to do? Allow the U.N. to intrude into its sovereignty—to search every nook and cranny, even Saddam's "presidential compounds" (9), to dictate what he can and cannot do, forever. This is the "marvelous precedent" so accurately described by Admiral Turner in 1991 and so wonderfully played out on the evening news from the Persian Gulf.

THE WORLD HATES U.S.

During the Gulf War, Uruguayan writer Mario Benedetti well described the "New World Order" President Bush ushered in during his Gulf War. In the Chilean journal *La Epoca* he wrote that the resemblance of Bush's "New World Order" to Hitler's "Neue Ordnung" and Mussolini's "Ordine Nuovo" was not just coincidental. The "express intent" of Bush's war was "to show both the Third World and its old and new European allies that from now on it is the United States that orders, invades, and dictates the law, period."

Benedetti went on to write, "When liberation fever hits the United States, the alarms sound everywhere, particularly in the Third World," which lacks the ability to escape "the liberated wreckage". (10).

Most Americans have been brainwashed by their television sets into seeing their country as a protector of everything good in the world. This is a result of not having a free press. Several months ago Cuban President Fidel Castro described the U.S. as "King Kong escaped from his cage". The man's official leadership credentials notwithstanding, his statement reflects the true sentiments of most of the world, except for the few who enjoy the perks and privileges of this oppressive system.

All Americans would do well to consider the despotic nature of their foreign policy establishment, so long employed in the wrecking of the world, and now directing its attacks on middle American values and culture. This is the despot that fomented the Gulf War to promote its aims and to consolidate its power. This is the tyrant that plunged two Arab countries into destruction, killing hundreds of thousands of people, and setting off an ecological catastrophe, all for the sake of establishing its hegemony over Mideast oil and creating a precedent for world government. Of all the accusations the American regime has heaped upon Saddam Hussein, be they true or not, they apply more accurately to the government of the United States. This regime is a bigger threat to its own citizens, its neighbors, and to world peace than all of the tyrants in the world combined. Because the U.S. is the world's preeminent wielder of chemical, biological, and nuclear weapons of mass destruction, this is an especially ominous thought.

AS THE SAYING GOES, THERE IS "HELL TO PAY"

Perhaps by considering the experience of other nations, we may understand why Americans need to watch

their backs wherever they go in the world. Whether we know of our nation's crimes, are indifferent, or remain willfully ignorant of it, we all share in the collective guilt as well as the consequences of state terrorism. Our just desserts may not come in a conventional military conflict, as there is no longer any power that can challenge the United States. It will come, however, be it through revolution, terrorism, financial collapse, or any number of natural or man-made calamities. It will come, it is just a matter of when.

"Therefore thus saith the Lord; Ye have not hearkened unto me, in proclaiming liberty, every one to his brother, and every man to his neighbor: behold, I proclaim a liberty for you, saith the Lord, to the sword, to the pestilence, and to the famine; and I will make you to be removed into all the kingdoms of the Earth." Jeremiah 34:17. END

FOOTNOTES:

1. ABC's Nightline with Ted Koppel, 11-12-97.

2. From "Aftermath", an article by Prof. Noam Chomsky, published in Z Magazine, October '91.

3. Child mortality and malnutrition statistics obtained from a statement released by the International Commission of Inquiry on Economic Sanctions, quoting facts published by UNICEF, WHO and FAO, 7-15-96.

4. "The Art of Deception—How the American Public Has Been Misled", an essay by Prof. Jim Huck, teacher of American History and International Relations.

5."The Art of Deception", cited above.

6."The Art of Deception", cited above.

7."A Chronological History of the New World Order" by Dennis L. Cuddy, Ph.D

8."A Chronological History...", cited above.

9.11-20-97 *ABC World News Tonight* quoted U.N. inspectors as wanting to search Saddam's "presidential compound". All enemies of the official regime live in "compounds". Is the White House a "compound"?

10. From "Aftermath", cited above. [End quoting]

Isn't it about time we quit standing up for the ones in our government who are causing—probably—**the most hatred in this world—even though they are nothing but patsies for the crown of England**!!

* * *

Two quotations were tacked-on to the above article: [quoting]

"I'm much afraid that schools will prove to be the great gates of hell unless they diligently labor in explaining the Holy Scriptures, engraving them in the hearts of youth. I advise no one to place his child where the scriptures do not reign paramount. Every institution in which men are not increasingly occupied with the Word of God must become corrupt." —Martin Luther [1483-1546]

"The *First Amendment* has erected a wall of separation between church and state, but that wall is a one directional wall; it keeps the government from running the church, but it makes sure that Christian principles will always stay in government." —Thomas Jefferson, 1 Jan 1802, address to the Danbury Baptists.

* * *

UN/USFS (UNITED STATES FOREST SERVICE) TAKEOVER! by Dr. Al Overholt 1/10/98

From the INTERNET, courtesy of James M. Seabourn, 1/7/98: [quoting]

Colorado State Senator Charles Duke said in a speech "it's ALL over!"

Word that I have received is that the USFS as of January 2, 1998 has been turned over to the UN. The personnel 'have been threatened with death' for telling ANYONE! WE MUST FIND OUT WHAT IS GOING ON. This is not 'coffee shop talk', these people ARE PARANOID!!

What we do know, our area USFS <u>have been armed</u> and have spent two weeks being trained at Fort Huachua, Az., in house-to-house search and seizure!

What does that have to do with the Forest Service? What about your area?

WE MUST HAVE INTELL[*igence*]!!! As Mark from Michigan said in his VHS tape "A Call To Arms— America in Peril", We must upset their agenda, we MUST get them off balance!! Tyranny can ONLY survive in the dark, we MUST shed the light on these One World Order people!! We have been told that most of the patriots are agents of...part of the government. Even a spy has to have a believable STORY to infiltrate US!! To get US off guard! To set US up etc.!!

What WE MUST do is to find out EVERYTHING POSSIBLE about this 'takeover', we have been told that the 'agencies' have 80,000 people under arms. How many [*armed*] people WERE ADDED with the Forest Service??

OUR Military is in 130 countries doing the UN's work. They will not be able to help US!!

We have been told that "We won the cold war", but...PPD 25 and Executive Order #12919 gave our troops and missile bases over to the UN in 1994. WE WON—is that another LIE?

SPREAD THIS FAR AND WIDE, WE MUST STOP THEM. WITH OUR CREATORS HELP WE CAN!!

REPOSTREPOST***REPOST!!!

[End quoting]

Remember one important factor—violence is not of God or His true people. Education certainly is. As is stated above, learn all you can about this and certainly clear your space with the Light and ask your guides how to apply your knowledge. God help us all to hear and act accordingly as the storms get worse. The sun will shine again, however—don't give up!!

CHAPTER 12

THE NEWS DESK ANOTHER SPECIAL REPORT

COMMANDER KORTON SPEAKS ABOUT CURRENT WORLD SCENE

Editor's note: The following writings by Communications Commander Tomeros Maasu Korton have been informally shared with Dr. Al Overholt over the past 6 weeks. Commander Hatonn has suggested that the most appropriate avenue for also sharing these writings with you, at this time, is under the umbrella of Dr. Overholt's ongoing News Desk Special Report format.

11/21/97 KORTON

U.N. CONTROL OF U.S. AIR FORCE

Good morning. I come in the Light of Holy God for service unto mankind, for it is a time of sharing and communion. I am a facilitator, linguist, and translator—all in one.

There are many, many visitors, and their craft, in your sphere of influence. They are here to help man, as a species, make the transition into higher-dimensional transition. We of the Hosts of God have various and sundry methods of making "contact"; however, we are limited by your perceptions of what God can and cannot do. My job is to aid you in your understanding of the hows, whys, and wherefores of our presence.

My task is most difficult because mankind is programed to fear anything that comes from "out there". And yet he believes in the Christos Master Teacher as a being of unlimited expression and accomplishment, a being who is himself coming from "out there". Dear ones, you cannot have it both ways. If he is not yet on your place, then BY DEFINITION he is NON-terrestrial.

Does that mean that He is an extraterrestrial? Yes. Does it mean, since you are no different (except for your level of learning and knowledge) and from the same Source, that you are "extraterrestrial"? Yes. So where does that leave you? Right in the hand of God, my friends.

In the heavenly places, also defined as "off terra firma", there are pleasant and benevolent beings and there are beings who are not so "nice". Just as with any placement, you have entities who follow the Laws of God and the Creation, and those who choose to be the adversary to God-ness. That is called FREE WILL CHOICE and it is a quality of being you are all birthed with. But it does not come without "strings attached".

What you reap, you will sow in like measure. Indeed, entities have come to Shan (Earth) with the intent to break the Cosmic Laws and enslave God's "children of the lower grades of learning", if you will. How do you think evil was let loose on your plane in the first place? Those ones are paying the price for breaking His Laws and are now "landlocked" within your spaces of experience. Unfortunately, God's people have

to now share those accomodations with the usurpers of freedom.

Why did God allow this to happen? God will allow you to do as you will, that IS free will. However, before you cast blame, it is not God who did this to you. YOU did this to you. You have allowed evil to take up residence in your mansion given to you by our Creator Source. So it is YOU who will change of it, if a thing be changed. That is what we are here for.

Mankind does not learn easily that which has been purposely kept from him, for when Truth finally does surface in the face of a constant diet of lies, there is fierce resistance to change from that which is comfortable and familiar. Your adversary has spared no expense to see to it that their lies are consumed with a goodly amount of honey and sweet song.

Their PLAN is not one of perfection, but it has been in gestation for centuries. You do not even know what Truth looks like in actual functioning operation—as in government or science, for instance. You have NEVER had a truly functioning "Republic" as envisioned by your inspired "Founding Fathers". Evil was introduced from the beginning and has grown steadily ever since. You are almost completely chewed and swallowed by the beast. All that is left is the digestion of your last remaining rights as a nation of "free" people. Then you are finished. And as goes America, so goes the rest of the world.

Is there hope? As long as you have the thought possibility—AND GOD IS PART OF THE EQUA-TION—there is always hope! And let me tell you, chelas, GOD WINS IN THE END. Even the "big bad boy" himself knows that. It is just a matter of finishing out the final act of the cosmic play. You see, the physical does not matter one whit in the higher dimensions, but to you of this electrical compression of perceived solid matter, it IS YOUR REALITY, and INTENT of action and thought is all that matters.

One of your best tools, as given by God, is your ability to REASON. You have a mind that is a fragment of Creator's Mind, with all the power of God's infinite universe available for your use. It is yours to utilize IN THE MEASURE OF YOUR KNOWINGNESS OF THAT CONNECTION TO GOD'S MIND. Your brain is a tool also; it is used to allow the body to function according to the WILL of MIND. Therefore, your brain must be "programed" to facilitate those HIGHER FREQUENCIES of thought. And to do that you must first *DESIRE* TRUTH, for TRUTH IS THE FOUNDATION OF THE UNI-VERSE. And once the desire is there, you must ask for that which you seek of Holy God, and it will be given unto you. But it will never be in the form you expect.

God IS the WORD! Ponder this carefully. How else do YOU perceive it is going to be given? Why would God not keep His promise of bringing The Word BEFORE the changing of the cycle? It is not conceivable that CNN, a mouthpiece for the Committee of 300 evil controllers, will allow The Word to be shouted far and wide if it means exposing their lies—which it does. God would not utilize such biased and silly methods to teach His children. REASON offers that He would use that which has been tried and tested since the beginning—direct COMMUNION THROUGH INSTINCT, INSPIRATION, AND IMAGINATION, YOUR PERSONAL CONNECTION TO CREATOR SOURCE.

Until you "remember" how you did it in lifetimes past, it is necessary to learn from your brothers and sisters who are a little ahead of you. Never forget that it is the MESSAGE you are scrutinizing, and NOT the messenger. Mankind has been programed to not see beyond the images and ideologies placed before

him. If the controlled major media label one an anti-anything, 90 percent of you accept that pronouncement. Meanwhile, it becomes all but impossible to reach the ones looking for Truth because they have already made up their minds that the presenter is ill-informed. Instead of judging someone because of what someone else has said, try listening to WHAT is being said first, and then allow reason and insight to guide your decisions. Who knows, you might learn something.

STARS IN THE AFTERNOON?

Ones are now witnessing what appears to be "stars" in the middle of the day. How can this be? Just like the twinkling and strobing CRAFT in your night skies, you have a flotilla of ships in the daylight sky making a more obvious presence to any who care to take a break from their "daily grind" and look up.

Are they "good guys" or "bad guys"? Would you know the difference? That is one of the reasons why I, Commander Korton, am here.

I specialize in establishing and maintaining operating communications links. I am able to cover an extensive spectrum of frequencies in order to help couple the third-dimensional expression with that of the higher-dimensional expressions.

Our craft can operate in the physical dimensions, but at the present time they are mostly kept on station in a dimension that is outside of your perception. At the higher frequencies our ships are quite impervious to your technology. However, when we materialize and make presentation, our ships CAN be vulnerable to your crude weaponry.

The governments of your world have space-capable craft that are seen from time to time, and "witnesses" are carefully arranged. If you see these vehicles, it is because they (or we) want you to, for they have a visual barrier that shields them from unintentional observers. We of the Command are not beyond causing their shielding to be penetrated. If enough of you see them, and you are not afraid to speak of your sightings, then their eventual unveiling will not come as such a shock.

When we next sit to write I would like to discuss a most heinous plan by elements of your governments for World Capitulation—A STAGED EXTRATERRESTRIAL INVASION.

Thank you for your service. Know that those in service to God do not walk the path alone. Salu. Korton to clear, please.

11/27/97 KORTON

Good morning. I am Korton of the Lighted Hosts of the One Creator Source. Yes indeed, CLEARING OF YOUR SPACE IS MOST IMPORTANT. It is how WE commune with our brethren AND with God, and it is THE METHOD of ensuring that the dark energies do not interfere with the bringing of The Word. It is tedious at times, I know, but when you let down your guard for a moment, that is when your adversary advances upon you. When you give the evil ones no opportunity to establish a "beachhead", then God's workers and messengers can go about their Father's business with the surefooted integrity that is the beacon of Truth the masses are searching for. It is through this recognition of the lack of evil tamperings,

that is felt and perceived, even if at a "subconscious" level, that allows ones to "see" God's message between the lines.

BEINGS FROM "SPACE": FRIEND OR FOE?

Allow me to say right now that YOU HAVE NO ENEMIES NOW COMING TO YOU FROM WHAT YOU TERM "OUTER SPACE". You do not get to participate in this most spectacular of God's cosmic "motion picture" universe, featuring BEAM SHIPS and their occupants, unless you are in service to God and the Laws of the Creation. However, you-down-there have a lot of dandy "toys" that will completely fool the sleeping masses. If you know not how a thing functions or its capabilities, you are in no position to question media drivel that has been presented for your consumption.

Since when do you have a ten-billion-dollar satellite spinning out of control to the point of being useless (so you are told) yet all video sequences depict a stable craft AND Shuttle? Come now, chelas, these "LIVE" pictures are fabrications. You have the capability to produce these space-capades right out of Holly-wood's GOVERNMENT-SPONSORED film studios. One of these semi-secret production studios, now a private HIGH SECURITY facility with an extensive film vault, recorded hundreds of nuclear blasts. The workers are high-level-clearance production personnel who are former intelligence analysts for the military, and they are quite capable of "pulling a fast one" at the behest of NASA.

That which is allowed to be scrutinized by the public, films such as Ron Howard's *Apollo 13* with its weightless actors bobbing around like corks, is "throw-away" technology. Your Shuttle astronauts have taped sequences PREARRANGED FOR EVERY MISSION in case a launch does not go as planned, and, dear ones, these Shuttle trips NEVER happen as is presented to you. The very most you can hope for is a smooth, remotely-Piloted landing from out over the ocean, courtesy of a piggyback ride from a 747 aircraft.

Do you not think it interesting that the "Sun sensor" satellite "capture" was not shown to you live? How about the report that the video equipment "failed" just prior to capture, yet it was later restored after the payload was safely fastened inside the Shuttle cargo bay? I'm afraid if you do not pay attention to that which you ARE shown, you will miss the clues that will help you discern that which does not make the Evening News. The non-news is the last place you will see truth regarding that which is happening DAILY in your skies.

Do you think you will be told truth regarding so-called extraterrestrial landings? You are not even rightly informed about gravity effects aboard your space platforms. We of the Command find it most humorous that you are still shown pictures of weightless humans, when gravity control has been perfected long ago. They show you these things because they can get away with it. As long as you are kept "in the dark" about your governments' true capabilities, you will be at the mercy of every bit of technology devised to manipulate and control you.

It was not always so. Technology, for the most part, is conceived with the ideal of advancing mankind (at

least that is true for your Russian counterparts). However, with the prevalence of evil upon your place, you now live in a world where tools that were designed to benefit human beings are being used to further enslave them.

These tools have now become extremely dangerous as your elite scientists, who are in service to your evil controllers, have gone too far. They have tampered with the very Life Force itself. And that, dear ones, is a no no. Hence all the beloved attention your little orb is getting this day. God/Aton has promised that another planet SHALL NOT BE DESTROYED in the manner of other placements that have had the misfortune of experiencing man's unchecked aggression. This precious LIVING BEING, Mother Earth-Shan, has suffered enough and will be allowed to cleanse Herself.

Does this mean that you are "off the hook"? I'm afraid not. What is cleansing and self-nurturing to Mother Earth may well be fire and brimstone to a lot of unprepared humans. And, if indeed it comes to that, or a prana-wave chain-reaction, your only salvation will be from we of the Hosts.

CHARIOTS OF FIRE AND SILVER CLOUDS

When Mankind's Day of ATONement is upon the lands, he will look to the heavens and see God's Glory. But will he know what he is seeing?

The capabilities of human and machine far exceed that which you have been led to believe from Earthbased sources. That which you do not know IS the norm, not what you have witnessed or read about. You have normal-seeming aircraft that have the capability to be rendered quite INVISIBLE to you. There are planes equipped with heinous forms of death dispersement, some of which can be scaled down to fit in the palm of your hand. You have machines that have the ability to travel through time, and there are ships that can travel from one end of existence to the other as fast as a thought. I doubt *The Discovery Channel* gives you blueprints to such things.

Your ancient works describe such craft, as do your hidden and confiscated "secret writings". Many of the prophets and seers have told you, in visions and from a perspective onboard our craft, of thunderous chariots that spit fire and wheels of light. How would YOU describe one of our craft just a hundred years ago? How about a few thousand years ago? How about today? Would you not likewise utilize current terminology? And if it be false information, would you not be guilty of spreading fear and panic, if that be the intent of the self-proclaimed "experts"? You are going to have to build your own base of knowledge and wisdom if you are to be a beacon of truth for the masses, for when they turn from the skies in fear and panic and look to you for understanding, what will you say if you know not what you are seeing?

HOAX OF THE TWENTY-FIRST CENTURY

If the biggest *Hoax of the Twentieth Century* (an excellent book about the case against the presumed extermination of European Jewry by Arthur R. Butz) is the Khazarian exaggeration and manipulation of "the Holocaust", then a holocaust (def.: Destruction, usually by fire) perpetrated by extraterrestrial tyrants should qualify as the next "great" lie for the new century, if you indeed have a new century on Earth to look forward to. Understand, I am not diminishing the memory of those who were killed, for even if it happened

to one person, whether Jew or German (just over 300,000 people died, most by starvation and most were German P.O.W.s), it is a tragedy that should never have happened to ANY of God's children.

Will all this come to pass? What have YOU done to prevent it? It DOES NOT have to be played out according to the way the script reads. Armageddon is a prophecy of man, not God. It was written by men to control other men; God has nothing to do with it. Remember free will?

I come in the service of God and the Creation, I travel with and as part of the Hosts of God, here at this time to assist mankind during this most magnificent evolutionary change. Yes indeed, it is truly a grand time of experience, for it is a time of remembrance and responsibility. It is a time of working knowingly with God. Keep yourselves tightly shielded, chelas, from here on out, for the assaults will increase in both intensity and diversity. Whenever one of God/Aton's fragments comes into acceptance of that which is perceived to be his or her appointed task, there is great fanfare and spiritual celebration, for many are called, but few choose to actually hear and respond to that call.

You, my scribe, will be known as the translator Marpa. As you may well have guessed, it is an occupation you have been in preparation for since you were a babe. It is a knowingness which you can certainly identify with from looking back to your lessons that have brought you to this day, and we will share some of these experiences at a later time, for your brothers and sisters need to identify with that which you have now come to be comfortable with.

However, complacency due to forgetting to clear your space of all forms of evil or not causing the energies you work with to identify themselves, would be most foolish indeed. Always use Reason to guide your thoughts and inspired works; it is your barometer of Truth. And when used in conjunction with the laws as given forth by God, for man to gauge actions and intent, REASON is THE shield that will protect you from evil in its most elemental form.

Thank you for your service, Marpa. May the Radiant Light of God provide Security and Inner Knowingness. I am Korton. Salu!

12/29/97 KORTON

Good morning, I come in service to God and the Creation. As you near YOUR "new year" you will be painfully aware of increased activities by your elite controllers. Stay in the presence of God and constantly maintain your Light Shielding. This is an electrical, frequency process; it is a real process, not wishful thoughts that are "out there" somewhere. By calling forth those energies, you counter the dastardly effects constantly bombarding your physical being. Since it is the only process that can protect you, it behooves you to make this communing a daily, moment to moment, habit. You are coming down to the wire now and the adversary is far out in front. However, like the proverbial tortoise, you CAN win with perseverance and truth as your Lighted shell. Remember, evil will always do itself in, all you have to do is finish the race to the best of your ability with Godly intent.

SHOTS ACROSS THE BOW

In times not so long ago, when a seagoing vessel would lead an armada into battle or a suspicious ship

steered into hostile waters, a warning shot across the bow of the ship would signify a definite meaning: "Stop what you are doing and turn back!" It does not take too much common sense to understand such an action.

This holds true in present times. Today's vessels also include air- and space-faring vehicles. A "shot across the bow" would indeed be done with more sophisticated cannons. When a 747 passenger jet from Hong Kong, in route to Hawaii, where most of those onboard were to celebrate the new year, is hit with sudden and unexpected "deadly turbulence" (which will become a new term in your media) you have to ask yourself: "What might be going on here?"

You have Hong Kong being a potential launching point of a MAN-CREATED pandemic flu that could wipe out MILLIONS IN A FEW SHORT DAYS. There has been a rash of ridiculously blatant plane crashes where aircraft are simply dropping out of the sky, cruising into mountainsides, or simply exploding in mid-flight. Nearly all were operating in weather not considered to be dangerous for commercial craft. They were designed to handle weather conditions and careful approaches to difficult airports, so why is it that these simple obstacles are now perilous pitfalls that are fast being blamed for these mounting disasters? Has air travel become more dangerous in recent years or is there a concerted effort to PREVENT you from traveling abroad?

A Russian Cosmosphere fired its charged particle beam-weapon in a defocused mode across the path of the Hawaii-bound 747. The Cosmosphere was several miles off to the side and just above the speeding jet when the shot was fired. When the beam is defocused and discharged at full power, it creates a wave-wall of downward-rushing air. An instant later the 747 flew into that wave, causing rapid and sudden altitude loss. This method of "attack" is not designed to destroy the aircraft; it is a message to ones onboard and on the ground TO HALT YOUR ACTIONS AND TURN AROUND!

Obviously the warning was heeded, but it remains to be seen if ones come forward to inform you-thepeople of WHY the message was sent. During the holiday seasons, your adversary never misses an opportunity to use these times of VISITING and COMMINGLING with friends and relations to further introduce biological and chemical agents for your demise. REMEMBER, 6 BILLION PLUS ARE TO BE ELIMINATED BY THE CLOSE OF THE MILLENNIUM. That means a lot of people are going to be making their transition (that is, die) in a very short period of time. Wars have not quite done the job, although you have not even begun to measure the actual casualties from your encounter with Saddam in the last "war".

Yes, there are chemical and biological agents that will "take you out" most quickly, but there are also mancreated illnesses that take SEVERAL YEARS to kill you. You are going to find that the true Gulf War casualties are only now becoming apparent.

APOCALYPSE BUGS: E.T.s WILL BE BLAMED

Your governments of the world, WHO ARE FULLY CONTROLLED BY THE KHAZARIAN BANKSTER CARTEL, are going to use their vast technological resources and bio-genetic advancements to unleash peculiar and devastating plagues upon humanity in the name of the Hosts of God. If you fear that

which comes from the heavens (or space, in your understanding; you cannot have one without the other), you will turn to man as your savior, and that would indeed be a most unfortunate mistake.

How can the adversary make the "cosmic connection" work? It is already law in your books. Contact with extraterrestrial beings, objects, or their craft is "punishable" by mandatory quarantining (imprisonment) at the discretion of the elitist tribunal AND THEY ALONE DECIDE HOW LONG YOU ARE INCARCERATED, AND, IN ALL LIKELIHOOD THE KEY WILL BE TOSSED! THEY WANT TO GET RID OF THEIR OPPOSITION, AND BREAKING THEIR LAWS IS THE EASIEST WAY TO DO IT WHILE YOU HAVE A FUNCTIONING *CONSTITUTION*. BUT WHEN THAT DOCUMENT IS DONE AWAY WITH, ALL REMAINING RECOURSE TO LAWFULLY BETTER YOUR PLIGHT EVAPORATES AS WELL.

THERE IS STILL TIME TO SAVE IT AND YOUR NATION. THE TORCH HAS NOT YET GONE OUT. WHAT WILL YOU DO, AMERICA? WHILE THE REST OF THE WORLD WAITS AND WATCHES, "ROME" IS BURNING. IS IT NOT TIME TO SMELL THE SMOKE AND DOUSE THE FLAMES OF TYRANNY AND HEINOUS LIES? GOD'S PEOPLE ARE WORKING DAY AND NIGHT IN COMMUNION WITH HIS LIGHTED HOSTS. WILL YOU ALLOW EVIL TO PAINT AN EVIL PICTURE OVER THE FACE OF YOUR ONLY SOURCE OF SALVATION AND TRUTH? Or, will you pick up that banner of hope and freedom and diligently participate in the preparation of that which will come to pass IN YOUR LIFETIME: THE MANIFESTATION OF THE LIGHTED HOSTS PRECEDING THE COMING OF GOD.

Protecting yourselves is of the utmost importance, for if there are no Lighted ones to be God's strong "arms and hands and voices", your adversary will have free reign in setting up your demise. You must help self so that God can help YOU help yourselves. It is the praying AND DOING with right action that allows the power of the universe to move your mountains. Yes indeed, the task is great, but so is your help. You can no longer depend on your politicians and puppet leaders to guide you, for they, too, for the most part, are in the dark.

EVEN THE VERY ELECT SHALL BE DECEIVED

Things have been brought here and provided for your use regarding HOW to protect yourselves from the biochemical attack. Those of you who innately know what is unfolding are the forerunners and wayshowers, and it is up to YOU to maintain a healthy functioning body in which to do the work, and then, to "wait upon the Lord", lest you be fooled by the tricks from the master magicians. Remember, even the very elect shall be fooled by the false presentations. The Master Teacher is not yet on your place in physical form.

He is not going to "appear" on a mountain to deliver some pre-rehearsed sermon, nor is he going to be standing upon some fluffy white clouds, beckoning the flock to follow. You must use reason and insight; since you are human beings you will require human resources to tend to your needs. And no, you do not have to die to be transported aboard craft (should such be necessary if planet Earth reaches a high enough level of danger). However, there are a lot of you who are unprepared as to your individual frequency requirements, and these ones will need tending once you "get there". These lessons I and my brethren bring are to prepare you for, among other situations, the physical aspects of Liftoff Day should such be

necessary.

We endeavor constantly to raise your vibrations, if you will, and, as necessary, we lower ours as much as possible, in order to help you better make the connection with us. And, should an emergency evacuation occur, we stand back, Commander Ashtar takes over, and we assist in removing every being—good, bad, as well as animals, to places of safety. This is not the desired method to remove you because you need "time" to adjust, but it is better than the alternatives under emergency conditions.

Remember also that your Mother Earth is moving into a higher frequency of vibration, and you will either accommodate yourselves to this by knowledge and right thinking, or you will simply be placed elsewhere of suitable placement to a less en-Light-ened mode of conduct. A remnant will be left behind. Those who are always the first to come and the last to go have, without exception, been those ones considered to be the enlightened. This is no private club; ALL can be the en-LIGHT-ened; it is what you petitioned for. Why wouldn't God so bless you? Maybe He has and you just have not opened your eyes and hearts to receive it!

Look at what is around you and what comes your way. God is the Subtle Gesture, the Guiding Hand, and the Still, Soft Whisper pointing to that which you have been seeking, lo these many eons. Is it not time to comprehend that which can be your very salvation? In the past, that which you perceive as time has been on your side; now, however, it is going to become a hindrance. You are nearing the Galactic Cycle Change and it is time to "see what you know", for it is in the knowingness of WHAT to do when the "going gets tough" that will decide whether you "pass or fail".

Thank you for your service, precious one.

Korton to clear, please.

12/30/97 KORTON

The United Nations is in FULL CONTROL of your Air Force for the purposes of maintaining control over the far-flung areas under British/Israel jurisdiction (which is all) AND to control and disseminate procedure with your non-terrestrial brethren. This is for PUBLIC consumption. The U.S. Air Force does not follow orders from President Clinton. As what should have been painfully obvious during the Gulf War, your Air Force operates at the behest of Khazaria, modern day (i)srael. For all practical purposes this branch of service is now a U.N. extension and has been so for years.

Early on, research and development was placed under Air Force authority, though the entire project was secretly controlled by the Department of Naval Intelligence. Air Force and Navy pilots who have witnessed our beam ships or antigravity craft belonging to the Russians have been threatened under penalty of death if they discussed what they had seen. Even so, some have tried to tell you what is going on.

In 1978 Gordon Cooper told the U.N. that "these are extraterrestrial vehicles circling the Earth". He and many other pilots-turned-astronauts have come forward but they are either suicided or their minds tampered with to stop them from talking. Many have themselves become disinformation givers. However, you can still find ones willing to talk if you as a nation of concerned citizens can prove to the ones who have

had the experience that you will stand with them. More recently, Shuttle astronaut John Blaha was recorded on a secret NASA channel by ham radio operators while keeping "extraterrestrial spacecraft under observance".

During your early flights into space by your rocket program it was a regular occurrence to film and tape visual and voice transmissions from the myriad of contacts with worldly "UFOs" and those of distant origin. It was such a "problem" that NASA was ordered to scramble ALL live communication channels from space, an order that, to this day, is not questioned by you-the-people. If you have no hot or cold wars with your space-faring former "enemies", then why do you not have open and free communication? Perhaps your Tavistock "spin doctors" need the opportunity to edit out and change that which they do not want you to hear.

A world populace is most difficult to control if the only place for untampered Truth to flow from (space or heaven) becomes easy access to your inquiring minds. The 800 million "cultists", by definition, who follow your papal dynasty would "lose faith" overnight over such "revelations". (By the way, how many of you remember that one of your popes actually sold Zyklon B [*cyanide*] gas to Hitler's Germany?)

DISC-SHAPED "UFOs": WHY ALL THE HYPE?

The big push is on to get you to believe you are primarily being visited by disc-shaped UFOs. There is documentation and photographic evidence of every conceivable geometric shape of these mysterious vehicles and probes. However, the classic "flying saucer" is your government's focus. Could it be to take some of the heat off your own Earth-based toys stashed in nice little below-ground hangers and test facilities? After all, you can not very well stage a mock invasion if you have exact replicas of the so-called invading ships, can you? One or two "captured" craft can be explained away as back engineering projects, but an entire fleet suggests something a little more ambitious.

You have had discs and saucers bobbing around your skies that were of German manufacture since before World War II. In fact, one of the main reasons Hitler's "Foo Fighters" did not conquer your Western world at the time was because weapons systems had not yet been efficiently attached to his machines. And where did he get the exotic metals to construct such things? Why, from you in America, of course. Check into the records of metal workers such as the Alcoa company and special projects associated with U.S. Steel. You would be shocked to find that much of those materials and resources ended up in the hands of your various "enemies" of the day.

You think that your industry and work resources are packing up today because of the likes of NAFTA and GATT. These are just publicly displayed trade agreements before, during, and after your hot and cold wars. THIS WAS DONE WITH YOUR MOST SECRET MATERIALS AND TECHNOLOGY. YOU-THE-PEOPLE HAVE NEVER BEEN THE WISER AND NOW YOUR LACK OF INSIGHT WILL BE USED AS THE BLUEPRINT TO MOLD AND CONSTRUCT YOUR VERY CASKETS. You have given away, or allowed to be taken, every means to manufacture your destiny.

Why have the ones in absolute power not used this technology to steamroll you into oblivion? They are. You are in the grasp of the largest-scale mind-control operation in the history of your planet. And as with the sheep being led to slaughter, you will not believe it until it is YOUR turn and you are close enough to death to be able to smell it, and then you will believe everything that we have been endeavoring to tell you. But it will be too late for your physical bodies. Though the soul, in the eyes and mind of God, will always provide you with the eleventh-hour opportunity for salvation, there IS a limit to what your physical body can experience. There is a point of no return.

The "trick" is to not allow yourselves to sink so low as to exhaust all recourse to better your plight. You have the tools and the knowledge to save yourselves—now. Why dicker around and wait until the last possible minute, as man always does, and then try to do it all in one day? Does not prudence demand that you set store WITH WHAT YOU HAVE AVAILABLE NOW that you might be free to plan for that which you are constantly being given (but do not seem to see) for your use?

Truth has ALWAYS been available to you. However, it has not always been given to you in the manner it is being given during these "ending times". Not because God did not offer, but because your EVIL CONTROLLERS DECIDED it was not in your best interest.

With the absolute control of your various forms of media, past and present, only now, with the changing of the great cycle, is there such a barrage of Truthbringing to counter your adversary's onslaught against individual sovereignty. Remember, Satan may have free reign, but as your adversary makes advances in the name of evil, so too do God's forces make strides in the direction of the Light. For the dark forces there is no winning of the "war", for every "battle" gained, God levels the playing field, and that is most undesirable to evil since the Lighted participants have technological capabilities and knowhow that surpasses theirs in every measurable way of counting.

God said He would provide you with that which you need to save selves. God said He would "HELP" you, He did not say it would be done for you. You had best utilize God's gifts of knowledge and insight, because if you do not, I assure you, your adversary will.

God's children are offered the tools of Truth and Wisdom first, and often cast them aside as doubt or fear of unworthiness. Those programed to do-you-in collect from the mud that which you apparently do not want and use these tools against you in the measure of THEIR knowingness of how to use them.

Your saving GRACE has been that the evil ones do not understand how to effectively utilize Truth because Truth is not in them. This is where you have the opportunity to reclaim your power and come into knowingness. However, as with any other cumulative process, the sheer volume of their accumulated information will smother your efforts, and like the Master Teacher said, "My people are destroyed for lack of knowledge." (Stored Truth in the data banks of the satanic deceivers is not wisdom gained, but only piles of information, and information alone can do little for you without Godly insight to guide its correct and proper use.)

It is for this very reason that KNOWLEDGE is what we of the Hosts are all about. It is not difficult to find salvation. However, the method you have been taught to gain it is not logical. God/Aton is the WORD AND THE LIGHT OF KNOWINGNESS. THAT MEANS YOU HAVE ALL THE POWER YOU NEED TO SAVE YOURSELF, BUT IT MUST BE ACCOMPLISHED THROUGH REASONING MIND. THAT MEANS HOURS OF STUDY AND MOMENTS OF SILENCE TO COMMUNE

WITH YOUR GOD/SOURCE ON HOW BEST TO UTILIZE THAT WHICH IS BEING SHOWN TO YOU. IT IS NOT DIFFICULT, BUT IT DOES REQUIRE FOCUS AND ATTENTION TO DETAIL. AS WITH NEVADA CORPORATE STRUCTURE, AN ACCURATE ANALOGY OF HOW THE PHYSICAL ASPECT OF YOUR SHIELDING WORKS, YOU MUST HAVE PERFECT PA-PER WORK IF YOUR SHIELD OF PROTECTION AND PRIVACY IS TO WITHSTAND THE PIERCING TACTICS OF THOSE IN SERVICE TO EVIL.

When man realizes he does not need weapons—primitive arrows and stones or microwave phasers—to defeat his enemy, then half our work will be done. Then we can get on with the joyous teachings that we bring of your Higher Resources and your interconnectedness with our Creator/Source. These are the things that I, Korton, and my compatriots are waiting to experience with you.

We are your relations and ancestors, and it is our responsibility to offer you the opportunity to learn at whatever level you are prepared to experience. Just as "when the chela [*student*] is ready the cohan [*teacher*] will come", we await with the answers to the universal questions. We, of infinite patience for our younger brethren, stand ready to assist. Salu.

1/5/98 KORTON

Good afternoon. Thank you for receiving my energy this day. Tomeros Maasu Korton present in service and Light unto Holy God. Let us roll up our sleeves and begin, please. We have much to cover and so little "time" in which to accomplish our task. When God is your copilot it is amazing how much can be done with what is perceived as so little.

THE BATTLE LINES ARE BEING DRAWN

The elite controllers want you to think everything coming from space is disc-shaped. Why? They are setting up sides for war. As the first Rothschilds (or Bauers, before they changed the family name in the 1700s) learned how to make unimaginable profits by financing ALL sides of a conflict created or fanned by them, so too do the present manipulators follow the script to the letter. Evil NEVER changes its tune; it does not have to. Up to now the same old song-and-dance has done nicely to lullaby you into war and submission. This time the battle lines, i.e. discs vs. spheres, will be intergalactic (as told to you).

How do you think it possible that nearly all great civilizations have come and gone virtually in like manner? There IS an architect to the process of "pillage and plunder", it just so happens that he ("they" would be more accurate) has been smarter than you have been led to believe. Your "history" lessons always seem to leave the serpent's blueprint out of the rendering, and without such a vital piece of the puzzle, an accurate picture of the whole is all but impossible to perceive.

FIRSTHAND INFORMATION

The reason "hackers" are the fall-guys on the Internet and in the intelligence community is because, like ham radio operators, they hear LIVE, ONE-ON-ONE TRANSMISSIONS of the conspirators' shenanigans, not to mention actual communications with OUR COMMAND. Since you are not going to get

this information from your institutions of dis-learning you are going to have to get it straight from the mouth of the sheep.

Eavesdropping or surveillance personnel make up all of your "official" witnesses. When you sign that legal document, for those of you in the cloak-and-dagger trade, you are incarcerated if you speak out. Treason, or some other trumped-up charge, is cited as your breach of contract, and your family is given lies as to your actual circumstances. These ones can be witnesses to the things many of you see.

Operating outside the laws of the land will avail you no victory in the eyes of the injustice system or the eyes of God if your actions break His Laws or the Laws of the Creation. However, there are methods sanctioned by God that are perfectly capable of defeating the adversary at his own game and it only requires Truth and Knowledge as your shield and buckler. Remember, you must always be as peaceful as the dove and as resourceful as that serpent.

When you enter a common law court with all your bases covered, it becomes very difficult for the evil controllers to present their case against you. You must stand together, however, if you are to prevail, for it is in numbers where your greatest strength lies as a people.

STAR TREK IS BASED ON ACTUAL COMMUNIQUES BETWEEN NORAD AND SPACE COMMAND

The 60s television series *Star Trek* was based on leaked, at first, data files from North American Aerospace Defense computers that contained official records of human and alien contact. Why would they keep this from you? Because we are not talking about flesh-eating monsters or world-conquering assimilators, but benevolent beings who are your heritage. And that, dear ones, does not fit the program of masters and slaves.

Star Trek was produced with the help of a former airline pilot who worked with our Command. I am not at liberty to offer much more than that at this time. Suffice it to say that Roddenberry fulfilled his commitment and was eventually taken out. Any projects that are now produced in his name are for the purposes of undoing the positive aspects of his work while he was alive. I do not suggest that you should not enjoy the entertainment value of these later works, just know what you are viewing.

The original television series focused more on attire and the structure of space-faring races and their societies as NON-INTERFERING beings. However, it was believed the citizenry would not accept that such societies could exist, so the Khazarian element created a silly Captain Kirk and monsters to entertain and add "realism".

Is there truth to the technology depicted? My goodness, yes. You have all these things and more awaiting your experience when you as a species come out of your primitive minds of wars and victims of wars. That warring consciousness WILL NOT BE ALLOWED TO ENTER GOD'S KINGDOM!

Man has no idea what actual dangers do await him in the far reaches of interplanetary and intergalactic, as well as interdimensional space, but it will be his ignorance that will be the perpetrator of his destruction. There ARE beings with the capability to wipe out any aggression by Earth man and completely enslave the

planet, and no beings would come to your rescue because man would be the aggressor.

You cannot venture forth into "uncharted waters" with no notion of the laws of space travel—not to mention not adhering strictly to the Laws of The Creation. There IS order to the universe as you perceive it to be, and it will be maintained. You will either follow those laws or you simply will not be allowed to travel very far from your solar island system. Yes, you have some dandy vehicles that can sustain life for a short time, but you have no capability as a species to survive very far from your world.

There are basic concepts that are still "alien" to your consciousness. For example: In *Star Trek: The Next Generation*, where you have more conformity with the crew and more display of technologies, you will have travel from the 23rd century back to the 21st century, or to the 24th, or dimensional shifting of the ship and crew. These things are all a reality. When you understand timelessness and spacelessness, then you will comprehend how these processes work. Until then, just knowing that they are possible is a very big step in opening the mind to the possibilities.

Holographic simulators of great sophistication are not only a reality but are so realistic by your standards of holography that you would not be able to tell the difference between what you are experiencing and what you believe to be reality. Since you, as a fragment of God, are already a hologram experiencing what you term physical life in what is actually a holographic universe, then it stands to reason that some very miraculous (not mystical) seeming things can be made manifest.

There is no mystery about it when you understand that everything is a hologram projected from a DNA fragment containing the makeup of the whole. You just lack the total physical projection system to duplicate what God's DNA, sometimes referred to as Akasha, does naturally.

Time and space are illusions constructed to be just that so you would have a playing field, as it were, to experience the play called creation. You are creating beings and you are endowed with all the power of God/Aton's universes IN THE MEASURE OF YOUR KNOWINGNESS OF THAT POWER. That is why it can be touted throughout time immortal that "knowledge IS power".

Star Trek: The Next Generation is fiction, but you can learn to think in a more positive manner from such shows IF you do not abandon reason and common sense while transfixed in front of that soapbox. While you do have many varied forms of life in the Creator's Kingdom, those you are likely to come into contact with aboard our ships, and most ones visiting you now, are not much different than you. A Lieutenant "Worf", for instance, would be stretching it. And yes, there are robotoid beings who would be a dead ringer for "Data". These manufactured entities do have the capability to "earn" the breath of life, but that only comes from God; man has no capabilities or jurisdiction regarding such matters.

BACK TO MORE EARTHLY TOPICS

You have a Super Bowl coming up, more balloon attempts, and a moon probe scheduled to be launched. Do these things have anything in common?

Any festive time, especially one as mesmerizing as the football game-of-games, provides great opportunity

for your adversary to launch an assault on America and literally bring your nation down in one fell swoop. It is a time when you are most vulnerable to attack, even your military and police unofficially stand down during the gladiator event. Not much different from ancient Rome, is it? As it is planned, neither will "Rome's" fiery climax be different. Can you not hear Clinton's Nero playing the sax while the blaze is being kindled?

And what of the big rush to float around the world with lunar test equipment? Over Russia yet? If the planners under the covers have their way, you can expect an international incident, sparking war. Or, if the Bolshevik-Zionists decide to play their entire hand, at the precise instant a balloon gets within sensor range of central Siberia, the location of the Earth bases for the Kremlin's space triad of strategic weapons, a first-strike NUCLEAR ATTACK could suddenly wipe out all the bases.

Delivered by your real stealth toys (not the ones your "Defense" Department has you so excited over), an aircraft that is "almost invisible" is like saying you are just "a little pregnant" (you either are or you are not), the thermonuclear detonations would be confirmed by instruments aboard the balloon. This would be followed by an all-out launching of everything in America's nuclear arsenal. Remember, the BZs [*Bolshe-vik-Zionists*] in the Pentagon have not abandoned their Project Z war plan. They have only delayed it until they can rearrange their chess pieces and assets, insuring that enough of them survive to rule over what remains after the "holocaust".

Espionage by lone flyers or balloonists is not such a farfetched thing. Amelia Earhart was doing just that during her ill-fated flight. Just because all eyes are on the one doing the spying it does not mean that it could not be an "officially" sanctioned "secret" mission. Hitler's spy masters devised the tactic of "hiding in plain sight" your most secret inventions and innovations. At air shows the allied spies were looking for secret aircraft while the most advanced design would be sitting on display, disguised as an unremarkable plane on exhibit. Since your OSS and CIA were created and staffed by the Gehlen and Canaris spies from Germany, it should not be so difficult to beleive.

What of the Moon probe? Do you think your controllers will tell you exactly what is on that rocket? As always, the clues will give you more insight than what you are being told. Even seemingly non-related occurrences can be helpful. Do you not find it interesting that a Chinese crew was rescued from a Britishowned ship which sank off the coast not far from Cape Canaveral? It did not take a *Titanic*-sized iceberg to sink it, just a broken water pipe, or so the story goes.

You would think a ship that far from home would be experienced enough to handle a little rough water. Retaliation for a planned attack on the lunar probe launch? Or perhaps the ship was equipped with highpowered lasers to keep any troublesome Cosmospheres at bay and was promptly dealt with. These scenarios might provide a bit more insight for observers and analysts into what really happened. Will there be any to come forward to confirm or deny? Only time will tell.

At any rate, you are in for a very busy few weeks, to say the least, and if you are prepared for all of the above, then it won't matter what happens as long as you are doing your perceived task in preparation for

those "rainy days" to come. Whether all hell breaks loose on Super Bowl Sunday or May 1st or the 4th of July, if you are prepared "it's all good" (or bad, depending on how you choose to look at it) as far as you are concerned, because you will weather the storm.

Go in peace and security. I am Commander Korton, bringer of Truth and Light to a world in dire need of both. Salu.